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THE SENATE OF CANADA

PROCEEDINGS
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BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Honourable SALTER A. HAYDEN, Chairman

No. 1

Complete Proceedings on Bill S-8,
intituled:
“An Act respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance Company”.

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 7th, 1967

WITNESSES:

Department of Insurance: R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.
Excelsior Life Insurance Company: M. K. Kenny, President; J. Fraser
Fell, Q.C., Counsel.
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THE STANDING COMMITTEE
ON
BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman

The Honourable Senators:

Aird Flynn Molson

Aseltine Gélinas O’Leary (Carleton)

Baird Gershaw Paterson

Beaubien (Bedford) Gouin Pearson

Beaubien (Provencher)  Haig Pouliot

Benidickson Hayden Power

Blois Irvine Rattenbury

Bourget Isnor Reid

Burchill Kinley Roebuck

Choquette Lang Smith (Queens-

Cook Leonard Shelburne)

Croll Macdonald (Cape Breton) Thorvaldson

Dessureault ¢ Macdonald (Brantford)  Vaillancourt

Everett MacKenzie Vien

Farris Macnaughton Walker

Fergusson McCutcheon White
McDonald Willis—(49)

Ex Officio-members: Brooks and Connolly (Ottawa West).

(Quorum 9)




ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, June
6th, 1967

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Leonard
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator MacKenzie, that the Bill S-8,
intituled: “An Act respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance Company”’, be
read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative. . ‘

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Leonard moved, seconded by the Honour-
able Senator MacKenzie, that the Bill be referred to the Standing
Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Leonard moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator MacKenzie:

That Rule 119 be suspended with respect to the Bill S-8, intituled: “An Act
respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance Company”.
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”
J. F. MacNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, June 7th, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-8, intituled: “An Act respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance Com-
pany”, has in obedience to the order of reference of June 6th, 1967, examined the
said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the said Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted.

SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairman.

1—4



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 7th, 1967.
(1)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Beaubien (Bed-
ford), Blois, Cook, Croll, Gouin, Irvine, Leonard and Macnaughton. (9)

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in English
.and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-8.

Bill S-8, “An Act respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance Company”’, was
read and considered.
The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.

Excelsior Life Insurance Company:
M. K. Kenny, President.
J. Fraser Fell, Q.C., Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report the
:said Bill without amendment.

At 9.45 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.

Attest.
Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 7, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-8,
respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance
Company, met this day at 9.30 am. to give
consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we
have before us for consideration this morning
two bills. We will proceed first with Bill S-8,
respecting The Excelsior Life Insurance
Company. As this bill is originating in the
Senate, I think the proceedings on it should be
reported. May I have the usual motion for the
reporting and printing of the proceedings?

The Committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we
have as witnesses Mr. M. K. Kenny, President
of The Excelsior Life Insurance Company,
and Mr. Fraser M. Fell, Q.C.,, Counsel. We
also have Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superin-
tendent of Insurance. Our usual practice is to
hear Mr. Humphrys first. Unless there are any
objections to that, I shall call him.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Mr. R. B. Humphrys, Superintendent of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators, this bill is identical with the bill
which was before this committee in the last
session.

The purpose is to convert The Excelsior
Life Insurance Company from the status of a
company with provincial incorporation to the
status of a company with federal incorpora-
tion. As such, the purpose of the bill is exactly

the same as that of many bills which have
been before this committee in recent years to
change provincial companies to federal com-
panies.

The main difference here is that the bill
proposes a somewhat different procedure from
that which has been traditional. Honourable
senators will recall that the usual practice in
cases such as this is to incorporate a new
company by special act and empower that
company to take over the assets and the
liabilities of the provincial company by agree-
ment. That system works very well in small
companies and we have used it very often.
This case, however, is somewhat different,
since Excelsior is a well-established company
with a large volume of business in force and a
large volume of assets. The traditional method
that we have used, involving a transfer from
one corporate entity to another, would require
a transfer of assets with the expense and
difficulty of re-registering mortgages and
securities and also involving the problem of
transferring the contractual liabilities of the
many thousands of policies outstanding, from
one corporate entity to another.

Therefore, this bill proposes a different
procedure, one whereby Parliament would de-
clare that the company is continued as a cor-
poration in the same sense as if it had been a
corporation incorporated by special Act of
Parliament; it would be clothed with all the
powers of a federal company and subject to
all the restrictions and obligations.

This proposal, as we explained last year, is
accompanied by a special act in the Legisla-
ture of Ontario, authorizing the company to
petition Parliament for the enactment of this
legislation. The Ontario act states that if
Parliament passes this bill, the company will
cease to be subject to the Ontario Corpora-
tions Act and will in all respects be in the
same position, having the same powers, and
so on, and the same liabilities, as a federally
incorporated company.



2 BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Excelsior Life itself is a very old com-
pany. It was incorporated in 1889. Although it
is a provincial company, it has been registered
under the Canadian and British Insurance
Companies Act and predecessor acts since
1897; so we are thoroughly familiar with it.
Our department has supervised it since before
the turn of the century. The company is in a
sound and strong financial position and we
have no worries about its state of affairs.

The major share interest in the company is
owned by a United States life insurance com-
pany, the Aetna Life Insurance Company. The
major interest of about 70 per cent was ac-
quired in 1960. However, the management of
the company remains Canadian. The majority
of the directors are required to be Canadian
and, in fact, nine of the 12 directors are
Canadian citizens resident in Canada.

The bill was considered by the committee
last year and was passed; it was passed by the
Senate and received second reading in the
House of Commons and was passed by the
Committee on Finance Trade and Economic
Affairs in the House of Commons. However,
third reading was not accomplished at the
time the last session closed. That explains the
reintroduction of the bill.

Mr. Chairman, that is all I have to say.

The Chairman: Are there any questions?
Mr. Kenny, is there anything you would like
to add?

Mr. M. K. Kenny, President, Excelsior Life
Insurance Company: I do not think I have
anything to add, sir, unless honourable mem-
bers of the Senate would care to ask any
questions.

The Chairman: Well, this is our second run
at it, so we have pretty well exhausted the
questions.

Mr. Kenny: Yes, I do think the subject has.
been exhausted.

The Chairman: Mr. Fell, do you have any-
thing to add?

Mr. Fraser M. Fell, Q.C., Counsel, the Ex-
celsior Life Insurance Company: No, sir.

The Chairman: Fine. There being no ques-
tions, are you ready for the question? Shall I
report the bill without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Committee proceeded to the next order
of business.
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THE STANDING COMMITTEE
ON
BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman

The Honourable Senators:

Aird Gélinas O’Leary (Carleton)
Aseltine Gershaw Paterson

Baird Gouin Pearson
Beaubien (Bedford) Haig Pouliot
Beaubien (Provencher) Hayden Power
Benidickson Irvine Rattenbury
Blois Isnor Reid

Bourget Kinley Roebuck
Burchill Lang Smith (Queens-
Choquette Leonard Shelburne)
Cook Macdonald (Cape Breton) Thorvaldson
Croll Macdonald (Brantford)  Vaillancourt
Dessureault MacKenzie _..-Vien

Everett Macnaughton Walker

Farris McCutcheon White
Fergusson McDonald Willis—(49)
Flynn Molson

Ex Officio members: Brooks and Connolly (Ottawa West).
(Quorum 9)



ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, June
6th, 1967:

* “Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Leonard
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator MacKenzie, that the Bill S-9,
intituled: “An Act respecting the Empire Life Insurance Company”, be
read the second time.

After debate, and—.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was’ theh read the second time.

'The Honourable Senator Leonard moved, seconded by the Honour-
able Senator MacKenzie, that the Bill be referred to the Standing
Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Leonard moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator MacKenzie:

That Rule 119 be suspended with respect to the Bill S-9, intituled: “An Act
respecting the Empire Life Insurance Company”.
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
J. F. MacNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, June Tth, 1967.

_ The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-9, intituled: “An Act respecting The Empire Life Insurance Company”
has in obedience to the order of reference of June 6th, 1967, examined the said
Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the said Bill.

All which is respeétfully submitted. ,
SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June Tth, 1967.
(2)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9.45 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Beaubien (Bed-
ford), Blois, Cook, Croll, Gouin, Irvine, Leonard and Macnaughton. (9)

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in English
and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-9.

Bill S-9, “An Act respecting The Empire Life Insurance Company”’, Was
read and considered.
The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.
Empire Life Insurance Company:
Herbert Blakeman, President.
Hal Jackman, Vice-President.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Leonard it was Resolved to report the
said Bill without amendment.

At 10.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

Attest.
Frank A. Jackson,

Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 7, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
‘Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-9,
respecting The Empire Life Insurance Com-
pany, met this day at 9.45 a.m. to give consid-
‘eration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: We have before us now, Bill
S-9, which is an act respecting The Empire
Life Insurance Company.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: In connection with this bill,
we have before us Mr. Herbert Blakeman, the
President, Mr. Hal Jackman, Vice-President,
and Mr. J. Ross Tolmie, Parliamentary Agent.
I think we will follow our usual practice and
call first upon the Superintendent of Insur-
ance, Mr. Humphrys.

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superiniendent of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman, the purpose and
structure are the same for this bill as for the
one we have just considered respecting the
Excelsior Life Insurance Company. The
Empire Life Insurance Company is a life in-
Surance company incorporated under the laws
of Ontario. It was incorporated in 1923 and
has grown and developed since into a well-
established, financially strong life insurance
company that is doing business in most prov-
inces of Canada.

Its purpose, as I say, is the same as that of
the Excelsior bill: to change the company
from a provincial corporation into a federal
corporation. The procedure proposed is the
same as that for the Excelsior. Again, the
Ontario Legislature has passed a special act

authorizing the company to take this course
and stating that, if Parliament approves this
bill, the Corporations Act of Ontario would
no longer apply and the company would
therefore be a federal company.

The main difference is that The Empire
Life Insurance Company is not registered un-
der the acts that our department administers.
It has operated through the years under the
supervision of the Department of Insurance
in Ontario.

We have, however, over the years had some
contact with the company. We have known
some of the officers and, more recently, when
this proposal was coming forth we made care-
ful studies of the financial statements of the
company, and examiners on our staff have
called at the company’s head office and made
some preliminary examinations of the compa-
ny’s records and affairs.

As a consequence, we are satisfied that the
financial position of the company is sound
and that it is well and efficiently managed.
We have no concern about the safety of the
policyholders and the general financial
strength of the company. Although the com-
pany is young as life insurance companies go,
it has developed well. It has over $600 million
of life insurance in force; its assets are about
$70 million and are generally of good quality.
About 50 per cent of the assets are in mort-
gages, all of which seem to be sound.

We have no criticism of the company’s
financial affairs or its financial position. The
company is Canadian-owned. According to
my information, there is no single shareholder
having a controlling interest. The principal
shareholders are the Dominion and Anglo
Investment Corporation Ltd., the Debentures
and Investment Corporation of Canada Ltd.,
and the Canadian and Foreign Securities
Company Ltd. These are investment compa-
nies. For further detail as to the ownershhip
of those companies, I would refer the commit-
tee to the representatives of The Empire
Insurance Company who are here, if the com-
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4 BANKING AND COMMERCE

mittee wishes any further information on
that.

The rest of the shares, as I understand it,
are very widely held, but with only about 3
per cent held outside Canada.

Mr. Chairman, I have no other comments.

The Chairman: Mr. Humphrys, I notice
that there is no minimum paid-up capital
required. Are you assuming that by virtue of
this bill the old company continues and that
whatever was there remains there?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. The company contin-
ues without change and the authorized capital
is specified in this act. The company, the
minute it is continued as a federal corpora-
tion, will continue in exactly the same state
as it is in now. Its paid capital is $704,000. Its
surplus funds are $4,400,000, and in addition
it has a reserve of $1 million for investments
and contingencies.

The Chairman: Are there any questions?

Senator Croll: I have one question aside
from the bill. Mr. Humphrys, as we give you
these further matters to come under your
department, are you sufficiently staffed to
handle them?

Mr. Humphrys: The Chief Examiner of the
department is in the room today, so perhaps I
had better be careful in what I say. He may
have a different view than I of the adequacy
of our staff. But I must say that in the last
year or two the pace of events in the financial
world has put a good deal more pressure on
the department and the staff of the depart-
ment than had been the case in years gone
by. So we have had to increase our staff. We
have been able to put more staff on, and I

believe that while we have to do still more in
that direction, we are making adequate steps
to develop a staff which will enable us to
meet our responsibilities. I cannot say that we
have had any difficulties in that regard, sena-
tor.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions you want to ask Mr. Humphrys? Now,
we have Mr. Blakeman, who is the President
and Mr. Jackman, the Vice-President; do ei-
ther of these gentlemen wish to add anything
to the excellent presentation we have had?

Mr. Herbert Blakeman, President, The
Empire Life Insurance Company: Mr. Chair-
man, honourable senators, I believe the Su-
perintendent has given you the pertinent in-
formation, the essential information concern-
ing the company. There is nothing that I
think should be added; however, we would
gladly answer any questions which may come
from honourable senators.

Senator Croll: A question arises in my
mind. I think I know the answer, but I am
asking it because I know Mr. Jackman pretty
well. Are the large companies to which Mr.
Humphrys referred Canadian-owned compa-
nies?

Mr. Hal Jackman, Vice-President, The
Empire Life Insurance Company: Yes, they
are, senator. They are Canadian-owned.

The Chairman: Mr. Tolmie, the Parlia-
mentary Agent, indicates that he has nothing
to add. Are you ready for the question? Shall
I report the bill without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The committee adjourned.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, June
8th, 1967
“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Walker, P.C.,
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Pearson, that the Bill S-13,
Intituled: “An Act to incorporate Farmers Central Mutual Insurance
Company”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Walker, P.C., moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Pearson, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on
Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”
J. F. MAcNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 14th, 1967.
(3)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9.30 a.m.

In the absence of the Chairman, and on Motion of the Honourable Senator
Haig, the Honourable Senator Leonard was elected Acting Chairman.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Acting Chairman), Cook, Croll,
Fergusson, Gouin, Haig, Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, Molson, Pearson, Rattenbury and
Walker. (13)

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in English
and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-13.

Bill S-13, “An Act to incorporate Farmers Central Mutual Insurance
Company”’, was read and considered.
The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.
Farmers Central Mutual Insurance Company:
W. F. Shoemaker, Manager.
W. J. McGibbon, Q.C., Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report the
said Bill without amendment.

At 10.05 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.

Attest.
Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.




REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, June 14th, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-13, intituled: “An Act to incorporate Farmers Central Mutual Insur-
ance Company”’, has in obedience to the order of reference of June 8th, 1967,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the said Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted.
T. D’ARCY LEONARD,
Acting Chairman.




THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 14, 1967

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-13, to
incorporate Farmers Central Mutual Insur-
ance Company, met this day at 9.30 am. to
give consideration to the bill.

Senator T. D‘Arcy Leonard, Acting Chair-
man, in the Chair.

The Acting Chairman: We have two items
of business before us today, Bill S-12 an act
to incorporate Western Farmers Mutual In-
surance Company, and Bill S-13 an act to
incorporate Farmers Central Mutual Insur-
ance Company. Both these bills were ex-
plained by Senator Walker on second reading
last week.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the said bill S-13.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the said bill S-13.

I understand it is the wish of counsel for
these applicants that Bill S-13 be proceeded
with first. Mr. McGibbon is here as counsel on
both bills.

We have before us as witnesses Mr. W. J.
McGibbon, Mr. W. F. Shoemaker, Manager,
Farmers Central Mutual Insurance Co. and
Mr. R. R. Humphys, Superintendent, De-
partment of Insurance. Shall we follow the
usual practice of having Mr. Humphrys ad-
dress us first?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Acting Chairman: Mr. Hopkins, our
counsel, has certified both these bills as being
in proper legal form. I would add that Mr.
Humphrys has with him Mr. D. E. Patterson,
Chief, Registration and Deposit Branch,

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superiniendent, De-
pariment of Insurance: Honourable senators,
the purpose of this bill is to incorporate as a
federal company a company that will be em-
powered to do all classes of insurance other
than life. The company will be a mutual com-
pany, that is one that is owned by its policy-
holders rather than being a company that has
capital stockholders and shareholders. The
purpose for incorporating the company is to
transfer an existing provincially incorporated
company from provincial status to federal
status. The provincial company now existing
is Farmers Central Mutual Insurance Co., a
very old company, incorporated in 1894 under
the laws of Ontario, and one which has been
doing a fire insurance business amongst farm-
ers in Ontario. The company at present is
under provisions of Ontario legislation which
covers the activities of farm mutuals. These
provisions are restrictive and enable the com-
pany to transact fire insurance, and that is
the only class, except windstorm in a very
limited fashion.

The company now has reached the stage of
its development where it would like to branch
out and do insurance in a number of other
classes. It feels it is necessary to offer this
service to its policyholders to compete with
other companies that are in the general insur-
ance business; and, as a consequence, it would
like to be in a position to offer a broader
range of insurance to its customers, including
liability insurance and a number of mis-
cellaneous classes that customarily go with
fire business.

We feel that the existing company, while
not a large company as insurance companies
go, is in a strong financial position. It has
assets of about $1% million and a surplus
of nearly $1 million. The premium income
last year was about $1 million.

This bill follows the same pattern that has
been before Parliament in a number of other
cases in past years for the same purpose,
which is effect to reincorporate a provincial
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6 Standing Commitiee

farm mutual company as a federal mutual
fire and casualty insurance company.

The incorporators, the provisional directors,
are all directors of the existing Ontario
company. The company is empowered to do
all classes of insurance, other than life insur-
ance. The bill provides that the company is
not to get into business until applications
have been received for at least $2 million of
insurance or, in lieu thereof, that an agree-
ment has been signed between the federal
company and the provincial company. It is
expected this latter course will be followed. If
incorporation is enacted by Parliament, this
company will enter into an agreement with
the existing provincial company whereby all
the assets and liabilities of members of the
provincial company are transferred to the
federal company, and the provincial company
will disappear. That is a pattern I am sure
will be familiar to honourable senators, since
we have had many similar cases before
Parliament.

There are a number of provisions in here
that are not found in the model bill attached
to the general insurance act. The reason for
this is that this company, being a mutual
company, is owned by its mutual policy hold-
ers. They are policyholders who enter into
insurance contracts and, instead of paying the
whole premium in cash, they sign a premium
note under which they oblige themselves to
pay a certain amount on call from the compa-
ny. The usual practice is to sign a note for 2
per cent—I think that is correct—of the face
amount of the insurance. The company makes
a call and the policyholder pays a certain
proportion of that, but remains liable for the
balance of the note, should the company need
the extra funds in the case of an emergency. I
believe I am correct in saying that in the
history of the company it has not been neces-
sary to make an assessment against that un-
called portion.

This is the essence of the mutual system as
referred to in this bill. It is the policyholders
who sign premium notes and are liable to
assessment up to the amount of the notes
should the funds be needed.

There are some further provisions dealing
with voting powers of the mutual policyhold-
ers, the rights of the directors to vary the
number of directors to be elected for one
meeting to another. These provisions, again,
follow the pattern that was used in bills to
incorporate other farm mutuals a number of
years ago, of which I think we have four now.

Mr. Chairman, those are the only comments
I have to make.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, there is one
thing I did not quite follow. How do they pay
their premium? Do they pay their premium
in the ordinary way, or just pay 2 per cent of
the premium and are liable for the balance?

Mr. Humphrys: They would sign a premi-
um note.

Senator Croll: For the total amount of the
premium?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, for the total amount of
the premium, but they would only pay part of
it. That part would be determined by the
company. The company would say, “You have
signed a premium note for so much. We ex-
pect you to pay 25 or 30 per cent of that in
cash,” so the policyholder would pay that in
cash, and if nothing more were needed by the
company he would not pay any more. But if
the company experienced heavy claims and
its other funds were not sufficient to meet its
obligations, it would come back to that
policyholder and say, “We want you to pay
the balance on the note.”

This is the system that has been used
through the years in the mutual fire and
casualty business, particularly farm mutuals,
and signing this note gives a contingent asset
that the company can fall back on if it needs
it. In the case of this company its financial
position is strong, and they have set their
premiums at a level and have governed their
underwriting in such a way that they have
not found it necessary to go back and assess
the policyholders beyond the initial amount
paid when the policy note was signed.

Senator Haig: Who determines the amount
to be paid in cash?

Mr. Humphrys: The directors of the compa-
ny would determine the amount to be paid in
cash.

Senator Molson: Will those premiums be
separated as to class or type of risk, such as
fire, casualty, and so on?

Mr. Humphrys: This company, in its pre-
sent form, is limited to fire insurance and a
very small amount of windstorm. Under the
new powers, where it would be able to enter
into a number of different classes of insur-
ance, they would have to set up premiums
structures that take into account the class of
insurance involved and the type of risk.
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Senator Molson: I am wondering, on the
call made on the premium note, would this be
confined to the class of insurance generally?

Mr. Humphrys: I would ask Mr. Shoemaker
to comment on that, but as matters stand
there is only one class they have had to deal
with. When they get into the broader range of
insurance, if they are doing these other
classes on the premium note basis they will
have to make a judgment whether they can
meet their needs from the particular class
which has given rise to that experience, or
whether they must fall back on all their
policyholders; and I think they would have
the right to fall back on all their policyhold-
ers because it is a mutual company and not a
mutual class. I think that the policyholder, in
signing the note, stands behind the company
as a whole, if the emergency should go that
far,

Other farm mutuals that have been reincor-
porated in this way and are under federal
legislation have done a considerable volume
of business. In some cases, most of their bu-
siness has been on the cash premium system
rather than the premium note system, where
they are really operating in just the same
way as any other fire and casualty company.
So, its policyholders would take out a con-
tract on the basis of a cash premium and pay
the full premium, and they would not be
obliged to pay anything more. So, the compa-
ny might have two classes of policyholder as
it grows: one being the mutual policyholders
who control the company and have the votes
and are obliged to come through if the com-
pany needs more money; and the other class,
where it is purely a contractual insurance
policy with a definite premium, and that is
all.

Senator Rattenbury: The call on these notes
is for the term of the policy?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

Senator Kinley: Will this company be sub-
ject to corporation taxes?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

Senator Kinley: I remember a statute was
passed when I was in the House of Commons,
and I think Mr. Dunning was the Minister of
Finance, that especially directed that these
insurance companies should not pay taxes,
and went further to say that the directors
were appointed by the farmers’ organizations.
Do you remember that statute?

Mr. Humphrys: I do not remember that,
senator.

Senator Kinley: I was in the house and I
opposed it because we thought it was taking
away the virtue of directors in that they were
not independent.

Mr. Humphrys: In this company the direc-
tors are elected by the mutual policyholders.

Senator Kinley: They have got to get the
policyholders before they get directors.

Mr. Humphrys: That is correct.

Senator Kinley: And in that case the incor-
porators have the company until they get the
policyholders?

Mr. Humphrys: That is right.

Senator Kinley: They are going to get a
note for the premium, and they will not col-
lect on the note?

Mr. Humphrys: They will collect part of
the note.

Senator Kinley: What is the effect of that?

Mr. Humphrys: It gives them additional
financial strength because the mutual policy-
holders have obliged themselves to pay more
if it should be needed.

Senator Isnor: Not more, but just the bal-
ance.

Senator Kinley: But a fire insurance com-
pany is supposed to have capital enough to
look after the hazards.

Mr. Humphrys: This is the basis upon
which these mutual companies were formed.
They were originally formed without capital,
and in lieu of the capital they had this under-
taking from their mutual policyholders to put
up more money should the portion of the note
paid in cash not be sufficient.

Senator Kinley: Suppose the policyholders
will not put up the money?

Mr. Humphrys: The company is in a posi-
tion to sue the policyholders for it.

Senator Walker: It is a promissory note.

The Acting Chairman: This company has
operated for over 70 years.

Senator Kinley: I quite understand that,
but they are entering into the credit business
—buy today and pay tomorrow. I think this is

:é
w



8 Standing Commitiee

something that destroys the stability of the
insurance business in this country.

Mr. Humphrys: I feel that any problem of
this type that the company may have encoun-
tered is something of the past, senator, be-
cause the company has now had some 70
years of experience, and it has never had
7> e

Senator Kinley: Why do you want to
change the present basis? What is the advan-
tage of this?

Mr. Humphrys: They are seeking federal
incorporation with exactly the same structure
as the company has in its present state. They
are not changing the ownership.

Senator Kinley: What about the tax be-
nefits?

Mr. Humphrys: Perhaps I should modify
my comment there. I said that the company
would be subject to tax. Now, mutual fire and
casualty companies are subject to income tax,
but I would want to modify that because I
think there is an exemption that applies in
cases of where more than half the business
comes from the insurance of farm property.
In this case, as long as more than half of the
company’s premium income arises from the
insurance of farm property it would not pay
tax.

Senator Isnor: Is that for a three-year peri-
od, or for the entire life of the company?

Mr. Humphrys: The tax exemption, sena-
tor?

Senator Isnor: Yes.

Mr. Humphrys: I think there is no time
limit on it. As long as more than half the
premium income arises from the insurance of
farm property the company does not pay tax.

Senator Croll: I am notoriously not a farm-
er. Could I be refused a policy by these peo-
ple?

Mr. Humphrys: This act does not restrict
the company to the insurance of farms. I
think it would be their intention to do some
business in the towns and villages. They do
not plan to go into the insurance of commer-
cial properites, but I think in respect of insur-
ance on dwellings, and insurance of that type,
they would want to expand into the towns
and villages.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, how do you
interpret section 5(2)? What does it mean
with these limitations?

Mr. Humphrys: Our general requirement of
fire and casualty insurance companies is to
set the amount of capital and surplus that the
company needs in accordance with the classes
of insurance that the company wants to un-
dertake. So, the pattern here, and the pattern
to be followed in other cases, is to ask the
company what classes of insurance it wants to
engage in from the outset. When they have
determined that we then indicate how much
capital they must have, and that is dealt with
in subsection 1 of section 5. Then we put in
subsection 2 which specifies the additional
capital and surplus they must have for each
additional class they want. This is a way of
ensuring that the company has adequate re-
serves by way of a margin of excess of assets
over liabilities in order to protect the policy
holders.

Senator Croll: I think a question was asked
in the house by Senator Pearson as to what
relationship there was between the company
in Bill S-12 and this company. Is there any?

Mr. Humphrys: To my knowledge there is
no relationship between these two companies.
I will ask Mr. McGibbon to confirm that.

Mr. W. J. McGibbon, Q.C., Counsel,
Farmers Ceniral Mutual Insurance Company:
There is no direct relationship between them.
I know that the Western Farmers Mutual
Insurance Company writes windstorm insur-
ance, and sometimes this company that we
are speaking about does get coverage from
the other company. But, other than that,
there is no direct connection between them.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, in connec-
tion with the cash premium business I do not
think I realized that a mutual company was
in two types of business. A question was
asked about the incidence of taxation. Is
there no difference to a mutual company such
as this whether it writes 80 per cent of its
business in cash and 20 per cent through its
mutual members or vice versa? Does this not
affect the tax position at all?

Mr. Humphrys: No, I do not think it does,
senator. I think the exemption that we have
been referring to is based upon the portion of
the premium income that comes from the
insurance of farm property, and I think the
exemption is available to a stock company as
well as to a mutual company.
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Senator Molson: Provided it writes more
than 50 per cent of its business in respect of
farm property?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, so it is not an exemp-
tion that flows to a mutual company. It is an
exemption that flows to any company that is
doing most of its business in insuring farm
property.

The Acting Chairman: Are there any other
questions?

Senator Kinley: You say that if it does half
of its business with farmers, then it does not
Pay income tax on the other half?

Mr. Humphrys: If more than half of the
premium income comes from the insurance of
farm properties then it does not pay any
corporation income tax.

Senator Kinley: Do you mean the premi-
ums, or the promises to pay on the notes?

] Mr. Humphrys: It would be the actual cash
income.

Senator Kinley: Suppose I have a farm—I
am not a farmer, but I have a farm and I can
tell you it is not very profitable—and if I
want to insure with this company and I give
them my note, then there is no corporation
income tax paid on that.

Mr. Humphrys: The company does not pay
income tax if more than half of its total
Premium income comes from the insurance of
farm property.

Senator Kinley: And therefore they have
an advantage over the company that insures
my industrial plant?

Mr. Humphrys: That is correct.

Senator Kinley: It means that there is one
law for one company and another law for
another. I do not like it.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, you are talk-
ing about the insuring of farm property, but
they are dealing with marine insurance and
sickness insurance and all the rest, and that is
certainly not insurance of farm property.

Mr. Humphrys: No.

Senator Croll: So, they will be caught by
the income tax act on their extended bu-
siness?

Mr. Humphrys: If their business were to
extend to the point that they were no longer
in the state where more than one half of their

premium income came from the insurance of
farm property they would lose their exemp-
tion. That is my understanding of the Income
Tax Act. 3

Senator Croll: But if they get any business
at all from the other powers here, it will
represent the lesser part of their business?

Mr. Humphrys:
broadly they operate.

It depends upon how

Senator Pearson: Mr. Humphrys, will the
passage of this bill entitle them, without any
more ado, to go into other provinces and
write insurance?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, senator, they will have
the corporate power to do business in any
place in Canada.

The Acting Chairman: I take it that there
is nothing in this legislation which restricts
them to Ontario, although they may volun-
tarily stay in Ontario?

Mr. Humphrys: That is right.

Senator Walker: There is nothing distine-
tive about these two companies who seek do-
minion charters; these rights are available to
all such farm insurance companies, whether
they are mutual or otherwise, is that not
correct?

Mr. Humphrys: Are you referring to the
tax matter, Senator Walker?

Senator Walker: Yes.

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. The exemption under
the Income Tax Act, as I understand it, de-
pends upon the source of the company’s bu-
siness, not on the capital structure of the
company or the organization.

Senator Kinley: It has got to be a mutual
company?

Mr. Humphrys: No, I do not think so, sena-
tor.

Senator Kinley: As I recall the statute it
was purely for the purpose of evading income
tax in the West.

Senator Croll: That could not possibly be.

Senator Molson: “Evading” or “avoiding”
senator?

Senator Kinley: I do not think it is good
law. The insurance business is supposed to
accept hazards and insure safety. In the
automobile business they take notes and al-
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10 Standing Committee

most everybody is travelling on credit, and I
wonder where the insurance business is going
to go next; I do not like it.

The Acting Chairman: Senator Molson?

Senator Molson: Has this company encoun-
tered any problem concerning underwriting
profits in the past five years?

W. F. Shoemaker, Manager, Farmers
Central Mutual Insurance Company: Honour-
able senators, in answer to Senator Molson’s
question we have not experienced underwrit-
ing profits in the past five years, and this is
one of the things we hope to rectify.

Senator Molson: Could I ask a supplemen-
tary? What underwriting losses have there
been in the last five years?

The Acting Chairman: Do you want the
gross or annual figure?

Senator Molson: From information on the
last five years.

Mr. Shoemaker: The underwriting loss in
1966 was $67,000 covered by investment in-
come. May I answer one question which was
put by Senator Kinley? The policyholder does
sign a premium note, but when he pays his
initial premium he pays the full premium.
The residue of the note is intended only for
catastrophe. The purpose of the note is just as
a contingency in the event that a serious
disaster strikes.

Senator Kinley: It is a reserve fund?
Mr. Shoemaker: That is right.

Senator Kinley: Now, a man pays his
premium and he pays for a catastrophe. What
do you give him for that note?

Mr. Shoemaker: We give him a lesser
premium to start with. If you take the two
companies, the General Insurance and the
farm mutual, you will find the farmers pay a
lower rate by virtue of the fact that they pay
on a premium note about 40 per cent lower.

Senator Kinley: And no income tax?

Mr. Shoemaker: The corporation pays no
income tax.

Senator Kinley: I don’t like it.

Mr. Humphrys: Mr. Chairman, in answer to
Senator Molson, I have before me a series of
figures which were developed when setting up
this company. In the last four years the un-
derwriting loss has been as follows: in 1963,

$43,000; in 1964, $96,000; in 1965, $13,000, and
in 1966, $47,000. But that is the loss on insur-
ance operations, and is adjusted by reason of
investment income. The net effect on surplus
in those four years was as follows: in 1963, an
increase in surplus of $6,000; in 1964, a de-
crease of $49,000; in 1965, an increase of
$20,000; and in 1966 a decrease of $5,000. So
the company is just about holding its surplus.

The Acting Chairman: Anything further?

Mr. McGibbon: Mr. Chairman, as counsel
on behalf of this company, may I say that the
head office of the company is in Walkerton; it
was founded in 1894 and has been continu-
ously in business since that time with a good
record. Insurance hazards covered are 90 per
cent rural and 10 per cent in villages and
towns. We have no insurance in the cities. We
are not ther for direct competition with the
large companies. We have a low cost opera-
tion with low premium rates, and we find
now that under modern practices these farm-
ers do not want fire insurance policy loans,
they want a packaged policy to protect them
against liability and all the other things that
arise in modern business. We are not able to
supply that. We are not able to get those
powers under the Ontario act. The Ontario
act, as you know, under which we were incor-
porated, was passed in 1887, and it has never
been updated for these farm mutual compa-
nies. This is the largest company of its kind
in Ontario. We have had risks to the extent of
about $261 million, covering rural 90 per cent
and 10 per cent on villages and towns. So that
in order to service our clients we really need
the powers that we are asking for here. As
you know, today everyone is insurance con-
scious, and although 50 years ago a fire in-
surance policy was all you needed, today you
must have liability insurance and all these
other kinds which people need to protect
themselves against claims. We are catering to
the farmers, and it is not our present inten-
tion to do otherwise. They come to us and
want this other type of insurance, but at the
present time we are not able to offer it to
them.

Senator Croll: I think you mentioned $1
million. How many policies are involved?

Mr. McGibbon: Policyholders in the com-
pany? I will ask Mr. Shoemaker to answer
that.

Mr. Shoemaker: 17,650.
Senator Croll: Is that the last figure?
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Mr. Shoemaker: Yes.
Senator Croll: Is it increasing?

Mr. Shoemaker: Yes, about 25 per cent in
the last four years.

Senator Molson: To be able to write all
these new classes of risk on premium notes, if
a call were necessary, would it be proposed
that a call on the premium notes be universal
for all classes of insurance?

Mr. McGibbon: It could not be universal. If
we went into automobile insurance, you
would not take a premium note; you would
take a cash premium, under those circum-
stances. A premium note is really only being
taken by these companies, as far as I know,
on the fire insurance, or where you have some
other lines such as liability in with the fire
insurance. I do not know what the practice is
in other lines.

Mr. Shoemaker: Senator Monson, there
have not been assessments in recent years. In
the circumstances, it is applied as a percent-
age of the note over all noteholders.

The Acting Chairman: Will this be true if
you have different classes of insurance?

Mr. Shoemaker: I would assume so, yes; it
would be a percentage over all.

Senator Molson: If you have many other
applications, provided you have a licence to
issue, would you take a note?

Mr. Shoemaker: It is unlikely.

Senator Kinley: You say you could not get
this in Ontario at the time but you would like
to get it here.

Mr. Shoemaker: We would like to get it
here.

Senator Kinley: In the case of automobile
insurance, if you give the insurance you will
take title to the car and you will own the car?

Mr. Shoemaker: If we issue an automobile
insurance we will be in the same position as
any other automobile insurance company.

Senator Kinley: Sure, but we pay taxes.

Mr. Shoemaker: The charter of our compa-
ny might change if we get into other lines. I
would think then it would become necessary,
but at the moment 90 per cent of our business
is farm business.

Senator Kinley: You are in a very special
business.

Mr. Shoemaker: I would say so.

Senator Kinley: What would be your re-
serves?

Mr. Shoemaker: Our reserves would be just
under $1 million.

Senator Kinley: How much corporation tax
do you pay?

Mr. McGibbon: These insurance companies
pay premium taxes. What would be your
premium tax?

Mr. Shoemaker: The company has not, in
the last five years. I believe the actual statute
making this exemption was passed some time
in the early forties and we have not paid
corporation tax since then.

Senator Kinley: In the 1940s? Yes, that
would be the Dunning statute of that time,
because I came over to the Senate in 1945.

Mr. McGibbon: This is a mutual company.
There are no shareholders and no stock.

Senator Kinley: How would this agree with
the experts on taxation, the Carter report? I
am afraid there would be a conflict on that. It
is in the hands of the Government, and they
tell us they will bring something down within
some months.

The Acting Chairman: Whatever is done
will apply to all companies, I assume.

Senator Walker: There will be a lot of
conflict when that report comes down.

The Acting Chairman: Are there any more
questions?

Senator Kinley: This has to go to the House
of Commons. It was introduced here?

Senator Walker: Yes.

Senator Kinley: They will look after it.
Some hon. Senators: Oh!

Senator Kinley: I am against it.

The Acting Chairman: You are against the
general act.

Senator Kinley: I am against people doing
business without paying taxation.

Senator Rattenbury: The question is aca-
demic if there is no profit.

Senator Kinley: Profit is an elusive thing.
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12 Standing Committee
The Acting Chairman: If there are no more Some hon. Senators: Agreed.
gﬁiﬁoﬁl;'clgﬂs g:?ou wish to discuss the bill  gopna40r Kinley: On division.
Senator Croll: Mr. Chairman, I move that othl'lll: gﬁfﬁg ;io%%ré(ggg (tag tﬁz gg?;:ig;riﬁi%r;
we report the bill without amendment. business.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
June 8th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Walker,
P.C., moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Pearson, that the Bill
S-12, intituled: “An Act to incorporate Western Farmers Mutual Insur-
ance Company”’, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

. The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Walker, P.C., moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Pearson, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MACNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.

T AN



REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, June 14th, 1967

-~ 'The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to whlch was referred
the Bill S-12, intituled: “An Act to incorporate Western Farmers Mutual In-
surance Company’’, has in- .obedxence to the order of reference of June 8th, 1967,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedmgs on the said Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted.

T. D’Arcy Leonard,
Acting Chairman.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 17th, 1967.
(4)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 10.10. a.m.

In the absence of the Chairman, and on Motion of the Honourable Senator
Haig, the Honourable Senator Leonard was elected Acting Chairman.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Acting Chairman), Cook, Croll,
Fergusson, Gouin, Haig, Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, Molson, Pearson, Rattenbury and
Walker.—(13).

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in English
and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-12.

Bill S-12, An Act to incorporate Western Farmers Mutual Insurance
Company”, was read and considered.

The following witnesses were heard:

Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.
Western Farmers Mutual Insurance Company:
W. Sutherland, President.
B. J. Wilks, Manager.
W. J. McGibbon, Q.C., Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report the
said Bill without amendment.

At 10.30 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

Attest.

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 14, 1967

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-12, to
incorporate Western Farmers Mutual Insur-
ance Company, met this day at 10.10 am. to
give consideration to the bill.

Senator T. D’Arcy Leonard, Acting Chair-
man, in the Chair.

The Acting Chairman: We proceed now to
Bill S-12, to incorporate Western Farmers
Mutual Insurance Company.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Acting Chairman: In connection with
this bill, we have Mr. Humphrys, the Super-
intendent of Insurance and we also have Mr.
McGibbon as counsel for this company. There
is also here Mr. Sutherland, President of the
company, and Mr. Wilks, the manager. Does
the committee wish to hear from Mr.
Humphrys again?

Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman, this bill is almost
identical with that we have just discussed and
is for the same purpose. The existing provin-
cial company, Western Farmers Mutual In-
Surance Company, has its head office in
Woodstock and it is engaged now almost ex-
clusively in windstorm insurance. They too
feel pressures to provide a better range of
service to their policyholders and they are
seeking power to write fire insurance and
other classes of insurance.

The company is well established, being
about 60 years old. It is in a good financial

position, with assets of about $3.3 million and
a surplus of over $24 million. The latest
figures I have show about 34,000 policyhold-
ers.

In other respects, my comments on this bill
would parallel those I made on the previous
one, so I do not think there is anything fur-
ther I can usefully add. The officers of the
company are here to explain any special
points. Its main point is that this has been
started as and operates as a windstorm com-
pany, whereas the company we have just
dealt with was operated also as a fire insur-
ance company.

Senator Isnor: Has this company always
been operated and known as Western
Farmers?

Mr. Humphrys: My understanding is that
that is so.

Senator Isnor: In Ontario?
Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

Senator Molson: What is the premium in-
come?

Mr. Humphrys: About $600,000 last year.

The Acting Chairman: Would you like the
record of the underwriting?

Mr. McGibbon: Mr. Wilks, would you give
that figure?

Mr. Beverley James Wilks, Manager,
Western Farmers Mutual Insurance Compa-
ny: Last year we had an underwriting profit
of about $260,000. In 1964 we had an under-
writing loss of about $80,000. But in the 1960s
we made money, other than in 1964.

Senator Kinley: That is true of all the in-
surance companies in Canada. They are mak-
ing losses. They are all up against it. Insur-
ance business today is becoming an unprofita-
ble business.

Senator Croll: Mr. Wilks said there was a
surplus all through the 1960s—

13



14 Standing Committee

Senator Kinley: They had a deficit.

Senator Croll: A deficit in one year, but
this was a profit last year.

Mr. Wilks: Yes, an underwriting profit of
$260,000.

Senator Kinley: I will ask the Superin-
tendent whether the fire insurance business
and the automobile insurance in Canada is in
good shape? Are they making a profit?

Mr. Humphrys: Fire and casualty business
suffered a heavy loss for a number of years,
senator. Last year, 1966, the experience was a
little bit better than it had been in the previ-
ous four or five years. Generally, the industry
has been going through quite a trying time, as
far as its financial results are concerned.

_- Senator Kinley; Is the farmers’ risk a big
one? Is it hazardous? Are they careless peo-
ple? Do they have many fires, or are they a
safe class?

Mr, McGibbon: Farmers live in unprotected
areas and the risk is greater.

Senator Kinley: In some places.
Mr. McGibbon: It is mostly rural.

Senator Kinley: Oh, no, no. I have to pay to
the county for protection. I pay for fire pro-
tection to the municipal council, and I live in
the town. They have fire protection down in
“Nova Scotia now; they have it all over. But
this does not seem right. There ought to be
some other way to help people who are poor,
other than making provision that they do not
pay. The rural taxation in the country is
made so as to be favourable to some people
and unfavourable to others. Everybody should
be under the same rule of law. I do not like
it.

Senator Walker: This is a matter of general
principle that the senator is outlining. This is
an individual company, as I understand it,

and they are getting no advantages over any ~

other company in similar circumstances. Is
that right?

Senator Kinley: I am not sure about that.
They are a risk company. They have done
well.

The Acting Chairman: I think Senator
Walker is making the general point that this
company is in the same position as any risk
company or any co-operative insurance com-
pany under the general law.

" Senator Kinley: As a co-operative, but the
general insurance companies incorporated un-
der the corporatipn law have to pay taxes.

Senator Croll: This is not quite right.

Senator Kinley: You have to be dealing
with farmers in a co-operative way to make it
clear you have not to pay taxes.

The Acting Chairman: It depends on the
share capital.

Senator Kinley: You must do it.

Mr. Humphrys: The tax obligation of these
-companies is not dealt with in the insurance
legislation, so any comments I make on the
tax position are based on my understanding.
Actually, to change the tax position of these
companies, one would ‘have to amend the
Income Tax Act—and that is not an act
which we administer, 'so it is not within any
of our powers to alter the tax position.

Senator Kinley: There is a statute that
grants co-operative companies relief from in-
surance, and- it ‘goes further, it makes the
farmers’ organizations appoint the directors,
and the directors are not independent. They
are appointed by the farmers’ organizations.

The Acting Chairman: Any other ques-
tions? Shall T report the bill w1thout amend-
mem? i Hid

; Hon. Senatbrs:'Agreed.

The c'oinrpitte’e -adjourned.




Second Session—Twenty-seventh Parliament

1967

THE SENATE OF CANADA

PROCEEDINGS
OF THE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON

BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Honourable SALTER A. HAYDEN, Chairman

No. 5

Complete Proceedings on Bill S-15,
intituled: “An Act to incorporate Seaboard Finance Company of Canada”.

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28th, 1967

WITNESSES:

Department of Insurance: R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent; Seaboard
Finance Company of Canada: S. A. Berteaux: President, J. W.
Thomas, Parliamentary Agent.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN’'S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1967

27018—1



THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman

Aird

Aseltine

Baird

Beaubien (Bedford)

Beaubien (Provencher)

Benidickson
Blois
Bourget
Burchill
Choquette
Cook

Croll
Dessureault
Everett
Farris
Fergusson
Flynn

The Honourable Senators:

Gélinas

Gershaw

Gouin

Haig

Hayden

Irvine

Isnor

Kinley

Lang

Leonard

Macdonald (Cape Breton)
Macdonald (Brantford)
MacKenzie
Macnaughton
MecCutcheon

McDonald

Molson

O’Leary (Carleton)

Paterson

Pearson

Pouliot

Power

Rattenbury

Reid

Roebuck

Smith (Queens-
Shelburne)

Thorvaldson

Vaillancourt

Vien

Walker

White

Willis—(49)

Ex Officio members: Brooks and Connolly (Ottawa West).

(Quorum 9)




ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, June
13th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Prowse for the
Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator
Gouin, that the Bill S-15, intituled: “An Act to incorporate Seaboard Finance
Company of Canada”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Prowse moved, seconded by the Honourable Sena-
tor Gouin, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MACNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-15, intituled: “An Act to incorporate Seaboard Finance Company
~of Canada”, has in obedience to the order of reference of June 13th, 1967,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the said
Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted.

SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairman.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.
(5)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9:30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Blois, Burchill,
Cook, Croll, Everett, Fergusson, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, Leonard,
MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Rattenbury and Thor-
valdson.—20

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in English
and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-15.

Bill S-15, “An Act to incorporate Seaboard Finance Company of Canada”,
was read and considered.
The following witnesses were heard:

Department of Insurance:

R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.
Seaboard Finance Company of Canada:
S. A. Berteaux, President.

J. W. Thomas, Parliamentary Agent.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report
the said Bill without amendment.

At 10:05 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.
Attest.

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 28, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-15,
to incorporate Seaboard Finance Company of
Canada, met this day at 9.30 a.m. to give
consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: We have before us now,
Bill S-15, to incorporate Seaboard Finance
Company of Canada.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: In connection with this bill,
we have here Mr. J. W. Thomas, the parlia-
mentary agent, and Mr. S. A. Berteaux, presi-
dent of the company. Mr. Humphrys, would
you make a statement on this bill?

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendeni of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators, this bill would incorporate a small
loans company, and, if so incorporated, it
would be subject to the Small Loans Act.

Its purpose would be to make consumer
loans to the public and to the extent that
those loans are amounts of $1,500 or less, the
loans would be subject to the Small Loans
Act. The company, however, would be em-
powered to make loans of over $1,500.

The Chairman: There is nothing unusual
in that power?

Mr. Humphrys: No. There are many com-
pbanies incorporated of this type. There are
some 80 companies licensed as lenders under
this loans act. At the present time there are
only five federally incorporated companies.

15

Most of them are incorporated provincially
and obtain a licence under the Small Loans
Act.

The Chairman: Are they provincial by Let-
ters Patent or by legislation?

Mr. Humphrys: By Letters Patent. There
are five companies incorporated by Parlia-
ment and this would be the sixth, if incor-
poration is granted.

There is a company now called Seaboard
Finance, that is licensed now under the Small
Loans Act, and it does business in practically
all provinces of Canada, and has a very large
volume of business.

The purpose of this incorporation is to
change that corporate entity from a provinecial
standing to a federal standing. This company,
if incorporated, would take over the business
now being transacted by the provincial com-
pany; and the provincial company would
change its name and change its purposes to
that of a holding company for the purposes
of the Seaboard interests in Canada. They
have one or two other companies, a private
mortgage loan company and an investment
company.

The Chairman: Is there some particular
reason for federal incorporation at this time?

Mr. Humphrys: They desire federal incor-
poration to give recognition to the fact that
they do business all across the country; there-
fore, federal incorporation is appropriate in
the circumstances. They are interested also
in protecting their name, and I think they
believe that there will be some additional
prestige through their status as a federally
incorporated company.

Those are the principal motives, Mr.
Chairman. So far as the department is con-
cerned, we have no objection to this move.
The company, if incorporated, would be
subject to most provisions of the Loan Com-
panies Act, as well as the Small Loans Act, so
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16 Standing Committee

it would be subject to a rather more extensive
code of regulations than it is in its present
form.

Senator Pearson: Where did they get the
name “Seaboard Finance Company” and
where is the headquarters?

Mr. Humphrys: The principal company is
a United States company, a very large con-
sumer company, operating in that field and it
is called Seaboard.

Senator Pearson: So this is a subsidiary?

Mr. Humphrys: This is a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary. As to most of the borrowing this com-
pany does, it gets its money partly from the
parent company in the United States, partly
from banks in Canada, and partly from the
sale of short-term notes in investment com-
panies in Canada, to institutions.

Senator Croll: Once it has the approval of
Parliament, will it then wind up the pro-
vincial companies?

Mr. Humphrys: The existing Seaboard Fi-
nance, the Ontario company, will not be
wound up but will be continued as a holding
company, to hold the group together as to
certain interests in Canada. It is my under-
standing that the ownership of this federal
company will lie in the existing provincial
company. The provincial company will change
its name and change its purpose, and the
provincial company in turn is owned by Sea-
board in the United States.

Senator Croll: Did you say they will con-
tinue to do business under the provincial
charter?

Mr. Humphrys: Not the loan business. The
loan business will be in this company.

Senator Kinley: Is that an American com-
pany?

Mr. Humphrys: The provincial company is
incorporated in Ontario but it has always been
owned by the United States company.

Senator Croll: Do we not have some con-
fusion here where a company does one bit of
business under a provincial charter and then
does another kind of business under a domi-
nion charter?

The Chairman: There is a change of name.

Mr, Humphrys: The provincial company will
change its name and will not be engaging in

the same type of activity as this company. It
is my understanding that it will be converted
wholly to a holding company and will not be
making loans at all.

Senator Evereti: Will the holding company
own the shares of the federal company?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions?

Senator Leonard: Again, what kind of
assurance do we have, in incorporating this
company under this name, that the public
would be able to distinguish as between an
existing company of the same name under a
provincial licence and this federal company?
Is it on record that the provincial company is
definitely going to transfer its business to
the federally incorporated company?

Mr. Humphrys: It is definitely on our
records, Senator Leonard, and we will not
license this company under the Small Loans
Act until we can withdraw the licence for
the provincial company.

Senator Leonard: That satisfies me. There
is only one other question. Did you give us the
figures as to the volume of business and the
size of the company?

Mr. Humphrys: Seaboard Finance Company
has assets of $73 million, including small
loans—that is, loans subject to the Small
Loans Act—of $30 million, and other loans
amounting to $35 million.

Senator Thorvaldson: What is the capital?

Mr. Humphrys: The capital is $205,000
the surplus $5,500,000, the contributed earned
surplus $1,700,000.

Senator Thorvaldson: And the rest con-

tributed?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. The rest of the com-
pany’s funds have been obtained by borrow-
ing $27 million in short-term notes, $13
million from banks and $24 million from the
parent company. So, these borrowed funds,
together with the capital contributed in
earned surplus, make up the funds available
to put out in loans.

Senator Leonard: Do your figures give the
operating surplus?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, Senator Leonard. The
company had income for the year on small
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loans business of $4.9 million and on other
business of $1.8 million.

Senator Croll: $4.9 million on the $35-mil-
lion loan?

Mr. Humphrys: On the $30 million of small
loans.

Senator Croll: And on the other $35 million
it had?

Mr. Humphrys: $1.8 million.

Senator Croll: What was the form that the
other $30 million took?

Mr. Humphrys: It would be loans in excess
of $1,500 and some investments in subsidiary
companies. No acceptance business—is that
correct?

Mr. S. A. Berteaux, Vice President, Sea-
board Finance Company of Canada Limited:
There is a portfolio of around $5% million.

Senator Croll: Does it not strike you, as one
in charge of the Small Loans Act, that this is
a disproportionate profit? From the Small
Loans Act, comparing the loans of under
$1,500 to the $30 million on loans in excess of
$1,500, the profit is almost 4-to-1.

Mr. Humphrys: Senator Croll, I gave the
income. The expenses under these small loans
were $4.3 million and the expenses under the
other business were $1.7 million. So the gross
profit transferred to the company, to the
profit and loss account, was $559,000 on the
small loans business and $86,000 on the other
business.

Senator Croll: It does not help it any. Is
there any indication as to how much is paid
to head office, for instance, for advice,
research, and so on, money that goes to the
United States?

Mr. Humphrys: We have a distribution of
expenses, but there is no specific item that is
paid for management services. Any services
that the company receives from the head office
would be paid for on the basis of services
rendered, but the parent company is not
drawing profits off under the guise of manage-
ment fees or anything of that nature, so the
distribution of expenses is, to the best of our
knowledge and ability to check, a distribution
of expenses on the basis of service rendered
and a fair charge for services rendered to the
Canadian company.

Senator Croll: What does it amount to?

Mr. Humphrys: The total expenses charged
against the small loans account were $4.4
million.

Senator Croll: No, but we were speaking of
what went to the States for services rendered
and management fees.

Mr. Humphrys: I have no figures on that.

Mr. Berteaux: Last year it was something
in the neighbourhood of $200,000—maybe
$225,000 or $230,000.

Senator Croll: Approximately $200,000 for
management services rendered by the parent
company in the United States?

Mr. Berteaux: Yes.
Senator Croll: What did they consist of?

Mr. Beriteaux: I suppose the supervision.
They handle all our accounting. The individ-
ual branch reports on a daily basis to the
data processing system in Los Angeles. All
reports are processed by IBM equipment and
are sent out on a monthly basis. A certain
amount of advertising comes out of the adver-
tising department in Los Angeles. I suppose a
general, overall part of the business is really
under their control.

Mr. Humphrys: Perhaps I could correct an
answer I made. This company does not in
fact make loans to the public over $1,500.
The other activities, the other loans I re-
ferred to, are in the form of advances to
other companies in the group; but borrowing
is done for the Canadian operation through
this company, and part goes out in small
loans and part loans to the other companies
in the group for their other activities.

Senator Kinley: From the parent company
to the subsidiaries?

Mr. Humphrys: From the main company,
they are making loans to the other subsidi-
aries.

Senator Kinley: What dividend do they
send abroad?

Mr., Humphrys: The dividend paid to share-
holders?

Senator Kinley: That is, when the share-
holders were all in the company in the United
States.

Mr. Humphrys: There were no dividends
paid to shareholders during 1966.
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Senator Thorvaldson: In regard to this
question of management fees, has your depart-
ment any control or any say in the matter
as to management fees that are paid by
Canadian subsidiaries to foreign-owned com-
panies? Here there are considerable man-
agement fees paid to the holding company
in the United States. Does that come within
your purview at all, or does it come within
the purview of any department of Govern-
ment—say, the taxation branch, and so on?

Mr. Humphrys: We have no legislative con-
trol over that item.

The Chairman: The income tax people

would.

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, the income tax people
would be concerned, to be sure that any such
fees are justified by services rendered; other-
wise it would be a way of drawing profits off
without paying taxes. In our supervision of
these companies or in our inspection, if we
encountered anything that gave us any rea-
son to think the fees could not be justified
by services rendered, we would discuss the
matter with the company and, if necessary or
if we thought it desirable, we would draw
the attention of the income tax authorities to
the matter.

The Chairman: You have an indirect con-
trol, the issue of the licence annually is
discretionary.

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. I should make it clear
that in our supervision of these companies
our principal concern is to see to it that they
comply with the Small Loans Act, and do
not charge interest rates on their loans in
excess of the maximum under that act. They
are not for the most part companies that we
are concerned with from a solvency point of
view because they do not accept deposits from
the public, or really borrow money from small
investors in a widespread way. They do some
borrowing in the investment community, but
it is generally thought that the investing
institutions can look after their own interests.

Senator Burchill: This is a provincial com-
pany. You would not have any control over
this company, would you?

Mr. Humphrys: It is licensed under the
Small Loans Act, which is a federal act.

Senator Thorvaldson: Can you tell us if
there is a standard practice among these
Canadian companies to pay management fees
to the foreign owner?

Mr. Humphrys:
unusual.

No, I would say it is

Senator Thorvaldson: That is, in regard
to companies that your department knows of.

Mr., Humphrys: Yes.
Senator Thorvaldson: It is unusual?

Mr. Humphrys: It does happen, but it is
not a usual custom. If the parent company
is in the United States then sometimes the
Canadian subsidiary will make use of the
computers and the high speed, but very ex-
pensive, data processing equipment. It will
use the equipment in the head office of its
parent, and it will pay for that. This type of
thing goes on, and it is increasing to some
extent. However, we have not thought that it
represents any problem at the present time.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, how many
branches have they in this country?

Mr. Humphrys: Seaboard?
Senator Croll: Yes.
Mr. Berteaux: A hundred and thirty four.

Senator Croll: They have 134 branches in
this country? Is there any justification for
not having the accounting done in this coun-
try?

Mr. Berteaux: No, not really, other than as
Mr. Humphrys has pointed out, the expense
of these high speed computers et cetera can
be very great.

Senator Croll: But there are many com-
panies with far fewer branches and which do
less business that have their computer
arrangements in this country. If we close our
eyes to this sort of process how are we ever
to get computers established here.

The Chairman: Surely, that is a judgment
decision, which will be based upon the eco-
nomics of it.

Senator Croll: Yes, but I will be outspoken
about it.

Mr. Humphrys: I think this point is well
taken. In our view the Canadian company
should have its books of account here, and
have its accounting done here. We have found
in our administration that it is rather diffi-
cult for us to take that view with a Cana-
dian company, and tell it that it must go
down the street and use the services of a
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data processing company nad have its com-
puter work done there, and that it cannot
use the machines in its head office.

However, we have not objected to their
having their data processed through their
head office so long as we have access to the
full records, and the books of account are
kept in Canada.

Senator Thorvaldson: This was all very
well ten years ago when computers were very
rare, but will the same argument hold true
throughout history. These data processing
services are being developed in the United
States instead of in Canada. I think this is
a situation which deserves a general review,
having regard to the hundreds of Canadian
companies that are wholly-owned by foreign
parent companies.

Mr. Humphrys: I agree with your view,
Senator.

Senator Croll: What do we do about if,
Mr. Humphrys?

Mr. Humphrys: We are doing everything
Wwe can to make sure that the accounting work
is done here.

The Chairman: We can deal with it in
general legislation supplementing some of the
other things that were mentioned by Mr.
Humphrys.

Senator Croll: The way to deal with it is
through the income tax department. That
would be the place in which to deal with it.

Mr. Humphrys: It is a problem that is, of
course, very widespread, and it affects all
types of companies that are foreign owned.
The extent to which they rely on their par-
ent for technical advice, research advice,
management advice, and advertising material
should be looked at, because these are matters
that run through their whole accounting sys-
tem.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, I recall hav-
ing brought to my attention recently a num-
ber of Canadian companies, each of which
happened to have its accounting work done
by a Canadian firm. They were companies
that I was able to recognize as being Cana-
dian because they were doing a considerable
amount of business in Canada. None of them
brought forward the idea of having their
work done by data processing institutions in
the United States.

As Senator Thorvaldson has pointed out,
there was an excuse some time ago for having
this work done in the United States, but that
is not valid today.

Mr. Humphrys: Not so much, senator. They
were doing more of their accounting in Can-
ada before the computer systems came into
being.

There is quite a trend now in corporations
that have a wide-spread branch office system
to use central data processing and to send
data in from the branch office on a daily
basis through leased wires overnight, have
it tabulated and processed and back to the
branches ready for the morning. This goes on
to an increasing extent, and it creates many
problems in relation to the point Senator
Thorvaldson was raising, that the Canadian
subsidiary very often is treated as another
branch and gets swept up in this sort of
branch operation.

Unless there is some vigilance by someone,
therefore, it can result in a situation where
the records in the Canadian company are
practically non-existent.

We have tried very hard in all the com-
panies that we have anything to do with to
make sure that the original records and ac-
counts are at the head office in Canada so
that when we go to examine the statements
we can get the information there. We have
not objected to the processing of data through
a computer at the head office, so long as it
is limited to data processing and it is done
in the sense of a service type of activity. But
we would take a very strong view against
a company having all its original records done
that way.

Senator Croll: Who signs their statements?
Who is the auditor in Canada?

Mr. Humphrys: All their auditors are

Canadian firms.

Senator Leonard: May I ask two questions?
First, does that statement disclose the amount
of losses in a year’s operations, or, together
with the amount of actual loss, is the amount
reserved as against expected losses charged
against the year’s operation?

Mr. Humphrys: The statement shows an
increase in reserves for bad debts and contin-
gencies at $147,000. That would be the net
change.

Senator Leonard: Does it show the ex-
penses and amount actually charged for
losses, or is it included in the general ex-
penses?
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Mr. Humphrys: No, the provision for bad
debts amounted to $569,000. They recovered
during the year from that $147,000, and they
wrote off during the year $575,000. So that
the balance of the reserves at the end of the
year, then, amounted to $833,000. So there
was a net increase in the reserves for bad
debts of $147,000 during the year. So they
wrote off by way of losses $575,000.

Senator Leonard: The other question related
to the general character of these companies,
not necessarily in respect of this particular
company. A good many of these small loans
are, I understand, made available on a dis-
count basis. That is, the interest is charged
in advance and there is also a practice in some
companies to take that interest in profits
during the year in which the loan is made, re-
gardless of the loan itself being repayable
over a period of time. Is there any policy so
far as the department is concerned in dealing
with this item of pre-paid discounts on small
loans in so far as the company’s profit and
loss accounts are concerned?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. Under the Small Loans
Act the loans cannot be made on the so-called
add-on basis. That is prohibited. The com-
panies must make their charges month by
month as the payments come in. So the
problem does not arise.

Senator Leonard: That is fine.

Mr. Humphrys: If a company engages in
lending activities beyond the area of the
small loans, it might make loans on the basis
of an add-on charge.

Senator Thorvaldson: So they have that
power? A company such as Household Finance
is entitled to deduct its interest charges and
take them off the principal?

Mr. Humphrys: If the loan is not under the
Small Loans Act.

Senator Leonard: Then is that agreeable
to the department? Do they accept that as
profit during the year?

Mr. Humphrys: We would not regard as
proper the taking into income of the full add-
on charge when the loan is made.

Senator Molson: Could I ask about the $30
million of loans which are not under the
Small Loans Act? I think you said, Mr.
Humphrys, that those were the associated
companies in large part.

Standing Committee

The Chairman: There was $35 million to
associated et cetera; the $30 million was
small loans.

Senator Molson: At any rate, in what form
were these loans and who were those asso-
ciated companies?

Mr. Humphrys: Perhaps I could call on
the representatives of the company?

Mr. Berteaux: The $35 million of which
the senator was speaking would involve
primarily Seaboard Securities, which is a
second subsidiary in Canada. The securities
companies make all the loans over $1,500. In
other words, Seaboard Finance Company of
Canada makes only loans under the scope
of the Small Loans Act, which is $1,500.
Then, amounts over $1,500 are made by the
securities company.

Senator Leonard: What is the name of
the securities company?

Mr.
dian.

Berteaux: Seaboard Securities Cana-

Senator Leonard: Is that a federally incor-
porated company?

Mr. Berteaux: No. That is a provincially
licensed company, senator.

Senator Molson: Where is the ownership
of the securities company?

Mr. Beriteaux: Well, I would say it is a
subsidiary of Seaboard Finance Company per
se, and, of course, again it is owned by the
parent in the United States.

Senator Molson: Well, is it a subsidiary of
the Canadian company or is it a subsidiary
directly of the United States company?

Mr. Berteaux: I would say it is a subsidiary
of the Canadian company. Mr. Thomas might
have more information on that.

The Chairman: Is that correct, Mr. Thomas?

Mr. J. W. Thomas, Parliamentary Agent,
Seaboard Finance Company of Canada: Yes,
it is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Sea-
board Finance Company of Canada.

Senaior Evereti: Seaboard Finance Com-
pany of Canada is a wholly owned subsid-
iary of the American company?

Mr. Thomas: Technically, I would say it
is, yes.
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Senator Everett: Are there any Canadian
directors on Seaboard Finance?

Mr. Berteaux: All six directors here are
Canadian. Seaboard Finance shows there is
one Canadian listed at Los Angeles.

Senator Everett: Is there any intention on
the part of the American parent to offer
shares in the new company to Canadian
shareholders?

Mr. Berteaux: At the present I would say
not, but that is not really within my scope.

‘But I would say not for the present at least.

Mr. Humphrys: Nothing has come to our
attention to suggest any intention on the part
of the parent company to sell shares of the
Canadian company.

Senator Croll: As I understand it, if I
walked into the office and wanted a loan
under $1,500, the Seaboard Finance Company
would look after me.

Mr. Berteaux: Yes.
Senator Croll: If I wanted a loan for $2,000

_the Seaboard Securities Company would look

after me.

Mr. Berteaux: Yes. He changes his hat and
you find another set of papers.

Senator Croll: I walk over to another
counter.

Mr. Berteaux: No, you use the same

counter.

Senator Croll: Mr. Humphrys, you said
there were five companies incorporated under
the federal charter. What are their names,

‘please? I think I know them, but I have a

reason for asking anyway.

Mr. Humphrys: Beneficial Finance, Brock
Acceptance, Canadian Acceptance, Household
Finance, Laurentide Finance.

Senator Croll: How many of those are
American? I know Beneficial is.

Mr. Humphrys: Beneficial is, Canadian

Acceptance is, and Household Finance.

Senator Croll: That makes:three. Are they
doing the same thing that Seaboard is doing
with respect to data processing?

Mr. Humphrys: Not to the same extent.

Senator Croll: Well, Mr. Humphrys, that
is hardly a satisfactory answer. I know you

are doing the best you can in the circum-
stances but I don’t know what you mean by
“Not to the same extent.”

Mr. Humphrys: They do get some services
from their parent, but they are not involved—
at least Beneficial and Household, their
activities in Canada form a greater propor-
tion than do those of Seabord at the present
time.

Senator Thorvaldson: Mr. Chairman, I want
to ask Mr. Humphrys what is the full name
of the present Ontario corporation.

Mr. Humphrys: Seaboard Finance Company
of Canada Limited.

Senator Thorvaldson: May I ask how they
could get that name for an Ontario company?
That takes in a lot of ground.

Mr. Humphrys: It certainly strikes me that
they went rather far in granting that name.

Senator Thorvaldson: If I were to ask for
the incorporation of a company with such
comprehensive name in Manitoba or in Sas-
katchewan, would I get it?

Mr. Humphrys: I would hope not.

Senator Thorvaldson: That is why I raise
the point. How long ago was that company
incorporated in Ontario?

Mr. Berteaux: Sometime in 1955 or 1956—
something like that.

Senator Lamontagne: When Toronto was
a seaport.

Senator Leonard: When this company comes
under Mr. Humphrys’ jurisdiction and he
finds on the balance sheet $35 million of loans
to ‘subsidiary companies, how does he deal
with this in the course of his duties under the
act?

Mr. Humphrys: I think if this company is
incorporated the pattern will have to change
because as a federally-incorporated company
under the Loan Companies Act and the Small
Loans Act they could not be permitted to
invest their assets in subsidiary companies
to that extent, so they will have to take that
part of their activity and make it separate
from the federal company.

Senator Thorvaldson: When you say “to
that extent” just what do you mean? This
was the problem with Atlantic Finance. Will
such loans be authorized to any extent?
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Mr. Humphrys: No, the loans will not be
authorized to any extent. What I meant to say
was that that part of their activities will have
to be handled elsewhere.

The Chairman: The new company cannot
make loans to its subsidiaries.

Senator Croll: Of course they have $24
million coming in from the States from the
parent company, and they will use those
funds instead.

The Chairman: Can a small loan company
when incorporated carry on any business
other than as licensed under the Small Loans
Companies Act?

Mr., Humphrys: Yes, they can make loans.
The Chairman: Over $1,500?
Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

The Chairman: I suppose it will have to do
that to exist.

Senator Everett: As I understand it Cana-
dian branch companies borrow money from
American parent companies. Do they borrow
at the net cost of the money to the American
parent or is there a markup?

Mr. Humphrys: I think there is probably a
markup.

Mr. Berteaux: I would say there is a small
markup and it strikes me it is somewhere in
the neighbourhood of 7 per cent or something
of that nature. I know it is slightly higher.

Senator Everett: What would the gross
profit be to the American company on that
markup?

Mr. Berteaux: Because of the Johnson
guidelines in the United States, we have been
importing very little capital in the last year
or in the last two years. Primarily it has been
raised through the banks here or on the short-
term investment market.

Senator Everett: But you will agree that
this could be a form of management fee.

Mr. Berteaux: Again I would assume that
the income tax department would have a

Standing Committee

certain say in that. I would not be prepared
to say how much. It would depend on how
much we were being charged, and if that was
out of line they would have something to say
about it.

Senator Thorvaldson: I have grave doubts
if that is an accurate statement. I have grave
doubts if the income tax department would
be interested in a transaction of that nature.
I don’t see how it could be related to man-
agement fee.

The Chairman: On the question of interest,
the income tax people will always look to see
if, as between a parent and a subsidiary,
it is too high or too low.

Senator Everett: Surely if the level of in-
terest rates in the United States is 13 per cent
lower than in Canada, the income tax people
would not be interested because they would
be only interested in knowing that Canadians
are borrowing at commercial rates. One of
the advantages would be that we would be
borrowing in Canada at American rates.

Mr. Berteaux: We borrow primarily in
Canada with the banking of the parent com-
pany, so that as far as short-term financing
is concerned the money is raised here in
Canada.

Senator Thorvaldson: This is an example
of an extraordinarily lucrative business to the
American owners, and this was certainly the
case prior to the Johnson guidelines. Previ-
ously the principal and interest rates between
Canada and the United States were very
different. Consequently it is a pretty profitable
business for the American owners.

Mr. Humphrys: I may say that under the
small loans legislation in Canada the rates
permitted pursuant to that act are lower than
in any jurisdiction in the United States.

The Chairman: Any further questions?
Shall I report the bill without amendment?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The committee then proceeded to the next
order of business.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

| Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedmgs of the Senate, Wednesday,
‘ June 14th, 1967: ; {

i “Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Cameron

( moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator,Boucher, that the Bill S-11,
_intituled: “An Act respecting Principal L1fe Insurance Company of
' Canada”, be read the second time.

The questlon being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Cameron moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Boucher, that the Bill be referred to the Standing
Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MAcCNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.

]

27020—1%



REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-11, intituled: “An Act respecting Principal Life Insurance Company
of Canada”, has in obedience to the order of reference of June 14th, 1967,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same with the following amend-
ment:

1. Page 1, clause 1: Strike out line 17 and substitute therefor “purposes.
whatseever,”.

All which is respectfully submitted.

SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairmanr.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
‘WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.
(6)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 10.05 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Blois, Burchill,
Cook, Croll, Everett, Fergusson, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, Leo-
nard, MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Rattenbury and
Thorvaldson—(20).

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in
English and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on
Bill S-11.

Bill S-11, “An Act respecting Principal Life Insurance Company of Can-
ada”, was read and considered.

The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Insurance: R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.

Principal Life Insurance Company of Canada: E. J. Houston, Q.C., Par-
liamentary Agent; D. M. Cormie, Q.C., President.

On Motion duly put it was Resolved to amend the said Bill as follows:

1. Page 1, clause 1: Strike out line 17 and substitute therefor “purposes
whatsoever,”.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Macnaughton it was Resolved to
report the said Bill as amended.

At 10.30 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.
Attest.

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
EVIDENCE

Oitawa, Wednesday, June 28, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-11,
respecting Principal Life Insurance Company
of Canada, met this day at 9.30 a.m. to give
consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

- The Chairman: Honourable senators, as this
IS a bill originating in the Senate, I think we
should follow our usual practice of having it
Teported. May T have the usual motion for the
Teporting and printing of the proceedings?

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report rec-
ommending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: Concerning Bill S-11, the
Tepresentatives for the company here are Mr.
D. M. Cormie, Q.C., the president; Mr. L. A.
Patrick, provisional director; and Mr. E. J.
Houston, Q.C., parliamentary agent. Senator
Cameron was the sponsor of this bill in the

nate. I suggest we follow our usual practice
of hearing from Mr. Humphrys first.

Hon, Senators: Agreed.

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman and honourable
Senators, I have very little to say about this
bill. Its purpose is to extend the life of a bill
that was adopted by Parliament two years
ago to incorporate this company, and under

€ provisions of the Canadian and British
Insurance Companies Act, which is an act of
§8nera1 application to insurance companies, it
18 provided that if a company is incorporated
and does not become registered under the
Insurance Act to transact business within two
?’ears, then its act expires. This company was
Incorporated in 1965, effective June 30, but
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the company was not able to get organized in
the two years, for reasons that the represen-
tatives of the company perhaps can explain.
So, they are now presenting this bill, request-
ing that that previous act which was passed
in 1965 be extended so that the company will
have another opportunity to become organ-
ized. The bill provides that, if it does not
become registered under the Canadian and
British Insurance Companies Act within a
further two years, the act will expire.

As was explained on second reading, the
company will be owned by a holding compa-
ny that also owns two investment contract
companies and a trust company. The prin-
cipal function of this life insurance company
will be to act as a companion vehicle in the
company’s marketing of investment contracts
and mutual funds.

The only other comment I would like to
make, Mr. Chairman, is that in the bill as
presented there is a point I think should re-
ceive attention, because clause 1 provides that
the act

...shall be deemed not to have expired
and not to have ceased to be in force
after the thirtieth day of June, 1967, but
to have continued and to be in force for
all its purposes whatsoever until the thir-

tieth day of June, 1969,. ..

I would suggest for your consideration that
the words “until the thirtieth day of June,
1969” be deleted because the purpose is to
extend the life of the original act of incorpo-
ration within the limit that if the company
fails to get registered then by section 2 the
act would expire. I feel concerned about the
presence of those words in section 1, because
they would cause doubt about the position of
the company after 1969—

Mr. Hopkins: Even if they did not get a
certificate?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes.
Mr. Hopkins: Yes, I would agree with thai.
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The Chairman: Mr. Humphrys suggests we
strike out in line 16 the words following the
figures “1967”.

Mr. Humphrys: No, I am referring to the
words following the word ‘“whatsoever” in
line 17.

Mr. Hopkins: That is, we delete the words
“until the thirtieth day of June, 1969”7

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. I would suggest, Mr.
Chairman, that the representatives of the
company explain what happened to them that
has made it impossible for them to become
organized.

The Chairman: Before we do that I will ask
the members of the committee if there is
anything further that they wish to ask Mr.
Humphrys.

Senator Pearson: How many companies are
there owned by this holding company?

Mr. Humphrys: There are three Principal
companies—two investment contract compa-
nies, and a trust company. They have a num-
ber of other subsidiaries that are engaged in
service activities such as the real estate busi-
ness, the brokerage business, and the mort-
gage brokerage business. But, they are in the
process of closing out those subsidiaries so
that the organization of the company and its
group will be very much simplified, and I
think the operations will be reduced to the
pattern of a holding company and four sub-
sidiaries. The holding company will own two
investment contract companies, a mutual fund
management company, a trust company, and
this life insurance company.

Senator Pearson: Are the directors and the
management of the holding company and its
subsidiaries the same?

Mr. Humphrys: That is my understanding,
yes.

Mr. E. J. Houston, Q.C., Parliamentary
Agent: Mr. Chairman and honourable sena-
tors, I have distributed copies of the 1966
annual report of the Principal Group. Mr.
Cormie is the president of the company, and
his picture appears on the third page of this
annual report. He is a distinguished lawyer in
Alberta, and a director of a number of com-
panies. I think he is able to answer any ques-
tions that you may wish to put to him. I have
pleasure in introducing him to you now.

Mr. D. M. Cormie, Q.C., President, Prin-.

cipal Group Lid: Mr. Chairman and honoura-

Standing Committee

ble senators, I might just point out that the
basis under which the original charter was
granted has continued in force. I should like
to run over the development of the group
since the time of the granting of its original
charter in 1965 for the life insurance compa-
ny.

The Chairman: Does that development re-
late to the delay in completing the organiza-
tion of this company?

Mr. Cormie: Partially.

The Chairman: Well, to the extent that it
does, it is relevant.

Mr. Cormie: Well, we found in 1965, shortly
after this charter was granted, that it was
desirable to have a little tighter and neater
organizational pattern in the group, so it was
decided to organize on the same pattern as
the Investors Group in Winnipeg with
primarily a holding company that was at the
same time a principal management company,
with the certificate companies operating as
wholly-owned subsidiaries. -Previously, a
number of collateral companies—I heard the
senators raise the question—were wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the investment or cer-
tificate companies, and we found that there
was a tendency for there to be a conflict of
interest to arise where the subsidiary of one
certificate company which was engaged in the
mortgage brokerage business was doing busi-
ness with another certificate company. So, it
seemed desirable to eliminate the subsidiaries
of the certificate companies.

During the last 18 months the company has
been engaged in organizing in the form in
which you see it in the present annual report,
under Principal Group Ltd. as a holding com-
pany. The management of all the companies
is the same, and the officers are identical for
all practical purposes, except in cases where
for a statutory reason or a regulatory reason
there have to be outside directors, as in such
cases where you might have a mutual fund
company and a management company.

Apart from that we found, in the process of
organizing, that the competition that has
developed over the last 18 months, largely
through rising interest rates, had a tendency
to require additional liquidity in a number of
the certificate companies. Consequently, the
directors decided they would like to have an
independent appraisal of all the properties of
the various companies at the time they were
to be consolidated into the group. In the
process of these appraisals it was considered
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expedient to increase the reserves and the
write-downs of certain properties and mort-
gages by approximately $1 million. This is
based on the appraisals which were taken last
August, which related primarily to Associated
Investors of Canada Ltd., which was a com-
pany purchased by the group in late 1962
from. the former United States owners.

Consequently, the reorganization into a pat-
tern similar to that of the Investors Group in
Winnipeg, and the appraisal and the eventual
write-downs, and the reserves which the di-
rectors considered expedient, took the time
and the attention of the group, so that the
attention of the people who were going to
organize the Principal Life Insurance Com-
pany of Canada was not available until just
recently. Rather than try and rush the or-
ganization of the life insurance company and
the obtaining of its certificate to commence
business, we thought it would be preferable
to take a little more time and organize it at a
little more leisurely pace.

We have just introduced an I.B.M. 360 sys-
tem, and the programming on this for the life
insurance company is estimated by our ac-
counting department to take from six to eight
months. Consequently, we are here today re-
questing your consent to the extension of the
time within which to organize.

Are there any questions?

The Chairman: Well, there is the question
to which Mr. Humphrys referred.

Mr. Cormie: Yes, I think that that is most
important.

The Chairman: Mr. Humphrys proposed
this amendment, and now we have the appli-
cants saying they are agreeable to it. Is there
any discussion on it? Do I have a motion to
provide for such amendment by striking out
those particular words?

Senator Macnaughion: Mr.

Chairman.

I so move,

The Chairman: Is it agreed?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Are there any questions
that you wish to ask in respect of this bill?

Senator Leonard: Mr. Chairman, I should
like to ask whether Mr. Cormie foresees any
conflict of interest arising as between the
operations of the proposed life insurance
company and those of the other companies
in the group.
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Mr. Cormie: Well, we do not really have
any conflict of interest, Senator Leonard. At
the present time we are offering group credi-
tors’ risk insurance, but there is a complete
lack of flexibility in what the customer can in
effect do in the way of insurance. Inciden-
tally, we have written over $30 million in
group credit risk insurance with no commis-
sion. We have 87,000 accounts today with ap-
proximately $350 million of business in force
in the certificate companies and their mutual
funds.

Senator Molson: $350 million of what busi-
ness in force?

Mr. Cormie: This would be maturity value
of investment certificates. It would be a rea-
sonable equivalent to insurance in force if it
was something like a 20 year endowment.

Senator Evereti: Is that the only form of
insurance you propose to write?

Mr. Cormie: The only kind that is group
credit risk, adding savings insurance for a
mutual fund plan.

Senator Evereti: Do you propose to write
other forms of insurance?

Mr. Cormie: Yes. The intention is to write a
full range of insurance using and operating
the insurance company as an independent,
separate organization.

Senator Molson: What about the sales
force? Would the agency or sales organization
operate independently? Does that mean you
will have completely different people in the
life insurance field?

Mr. Cormie: This will be necessary because
at the present time there is no dual licensing.
We do operate two companies in the United
States in the certificate business. In Seattle in
our sales staff we do get new licences, and
our agents there sell mutual funds, certificates
and insurance under three separate licences;
but in Canada at the present time that is not
possible, which means that it is necessary to
have a completely separate sales force, but
they would be operated by the same central
sales agency for control purposes and finance.

Senator Evereti: Is the proposal then to
obtain actuarial consultants?

Mr. Cormie: Oh, yes.

Senator Leonard: Are any of the securities
or certificates issued by the other companies
in your group eligible for investment under
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the insurance act for your life insurance com-
pany?
Mr. Cormie: Well, if I understand your

question rightly, it would not be the intention
to have cross-investing.

The Chairman: No,
whether they are eligible.

the question was

Mr. Cormie: Yes, they are eligible, but it is
not the intention of the company to have the
life company invest in the securities of the
other company.

The Chairman: I wonder if Mr. Humphrys
would care to make any comment, Senator
Leonard.

Senator Leonard: Yes. I was wondering if
that intention is to be carried out in conjunc-
tion with the Superintendent of Insurance.

Mr. Humphrys: I would say that the invest-
ment contracts as such bear a contract under
which the purchaser pays a series of instal-
ments over five, ten, fifteen or twenty years
and the contract promises to return the pur-
chaser the face amount at the end of the
period. They are not the kind of investment
instruments that will be used for investment
of funds of a life insurance company, and I do
not think that we could find anything in the
life insurance act which would render them
eligible. The mutual fund insofar as it issues
shares, and they can be regarded as common
shares and have a dividend record, might be
technically eligible under the provisions of
the act; but as a matter of good practice the
department very strongly discourages any life
insurance company from investing its funds
in a circumstance that is not completely an
arm’s length one. We would be critical of a
company that invested funds in the affairs of
an associated or affiliated company.

Senator Leonard: This is the understanding
on the part of the applicant of the charter,
and it could be left in the hands of the De-
partment of Insurance to put it on record so
that the understanding will be known as con-
veyed here.

The Chairman: Mr. Humphrys, I should
like to know here whether you feel you have
enough authority in this direction by saying
that you would be critical of any such course,
or whether you would need any further au-
thority to enforce such a course of action.

Mr. Humphrys: Mr. Chairman, to date we
have felt that we have been able to avoid any

Standing Commitiee

serious problems in this area. I may say,
however, that my own feeling is that one of
the principal dangers that we now face in
these growing financial groups in Canada is
this question of investing in public funds, that
is, money that has been borrowed in situa-
tions that are not arms length, where people
making investment decisions cannot be sure
that they are making the best decision for
both companies concerned. That is a matter
which should be recognized more specifically
in the legislation dealing with companies of
that kind than is now the case.

The Chairman: You mean in a general ap-
plication rather than in a particular one?

Mr. Humphrys: That would be important.

The Chairman: Then that might rest with
you to bring some amendments forward.

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I have
in mind making recommendations to the min-
ister of the department.

Senator Burchill: Am I to understand from
this discussion that there would have to be
fresh capital for this company?

Mr. Humphrys: Oh, yes.

Mr. Cormie: And it would be invested in
the normal type of securities that an insur-
ance company would invest in.

The Chairman: Before we finish, may I
state that the amendment which has been
agreed to in committee consists in deleting
the words, “until the 30th day of June, 1969,”
which appear at line 17 of the bill.

Mr. Hopkins: In other words, they have to
have their certificate of registry for two years.
It reads better than before.

The Chairman: Shall I report the bill as
amended?

Senator Isnor: Mr. Chairman, perhaps what
I am going to say has no direct bearing on the
bill itself, but I am wondering about the mu-
tual funds statement. I notice there are $2
million in various securities—common stocks,
and that of a total of $7 million, $5 million is
invested in common stocks. Is that the usual
percentage that you use?

Mr. Cormie: Well, no; I would say this
varies according to the recommendation of
the investment advisers, the name of whom at
present is Davis Palmer Company, New York,
and this will vary according to the judgment
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of the investment advisers. There is a tenden-
¢y recently to move more heavily into United
States stocks.

Senator Isnor: Yes, in stocks in a mutual
fund.

Mr. Cormie: Yes.

Senator Isnor: In other words, you have 80
per cent investment in common stocks?

Mr. Cormier: Yes, that is correct.
Senator Isnor: That struck me as very high.

Mr. Cormie: This will vary. It has moved
up. I believe six months ago it was close to 62
ber cent in common stocks. Now it has moved
up recently to the time of this statement, and
you will notice in November a big change in
the proportion in common stocks between
November 1966 and February 1967, so that
Wwould indicate I believe what we are saying

that the movement into common stocks has
only occurred recently.

Senator Isnor: You have no set rule in
regard to percentage?

Mr. Cormie: There are certain limitations
set out in the prospectus, yes. There are cer-
tain limitations, but these are within the limi-
tations set out.

Senator Isnor: What js their usual percent-
age?

Mr. Cormie: They usually keep somewhere
between 60 and 80 per cent.

Senator Isnor: Thank you.

The Chairman: Shall I report the bill as
amended?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Committee then proceeded to the next
order of business.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, June
13th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Molson
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Bourque, that the Bill S-14,
intituled: “An Act respecting British Northwestern Insurance Company”,
be read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Molson moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Bourque, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on
Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MacNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.



REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-14, intituled: “An Act respecting British Northwestern Insurance
Company”, has in obedience to the order of reference of June 13th, 1967,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing of
800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the said Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted.

SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairman.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 28th, 1967.
(7)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Blois, Burchill,
Cook, Croll, Everett, Fergusson, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, Leonard,
MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Rattenbury and Thor-
valdson.—(20)

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Leonard it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in Eng-
lish and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-14.

Bill S-14, “An Act respecting British Northwestern Insurance Company”,
was read and considered.

The following witnesses were heard:

Department of Insurance: R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.

British Northwestern Insurance Company: James K. Hugessen, Parlia-
mentary Agent.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Croll it was Resolved to report the
said Bill without amendment.

At 10.45 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
Attest.

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Wednesday, June 28, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce to which was referred Bill S-14,
respecting British Northwestern Insurance
Company, met this day at 9.30 am. to give
consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: May I have the usual mo-
tion for the reporting and printing of the
Proceedings?

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: Bill S-14 is an act respect-
ing the British Northwestern Insurance
Company. We have as witnesses, Mr. J. F.
Caird, president; Mr. R. D. Allan, secretary-
treasurer, and Mr. James K. Hugessen, parlia-
mentary agent.

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent of
Insurance: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators, this bill is a simple one. It has two
burposes. One is to change the name of the
existing company, the British Northwestern
Insurance Company; and the other is to pro-
vide for an increase in capital.

The British Northwestern Insurance
Company is a federal company, having been
federally incorporated in 1917, but it started
earlier as a provincial company. It is owned
by the Eagle Star Insurance Company, a
brominent British company with worldwide
interests and a very large volume of business.

The Eagle Star also operates in Canada on
a branch basis. Tt has this subsidiary and
another subsidiary in active operation in
Canada.

Its intention is to concentrate its Canadian
business in this company, the British North-

western Company, and to withdraw the
activities of the branch of the parent com-
pany, so that its whole activity in Canada
will be through this particular subsidiary.

It wants a change in name, to link the
company more closely with its group as a
whole, to convey the identity and the owner-
ship.

In connection with the plan to increase the
activity of this company and to concentrate
the Canadian activities, the company will
need more capital. Consequently, the request
is that the authorized capital be substantially
increased. This is, in our opinion, appropriate
in the circumstances.

The company, and the Eagle Star group in
Canada, is active in the fire and casualty
business, not in the life business. Most of the
activity is in fire, but they do a substantial
volume of automobile insurance and mis-
cellaneous insurance.

Senator Evereti: May I ask the Superin-
tendent the last date for which he has a
financial statement of the company.

Mr. Humphrys: December 31, 1966.

Senator Everett: Would it show an under-
writing figure of profit and loss?

Mr. Humphrys: The company had an un-
derwriting gain in 1966 of $90,000. Its premi-
um income was $3 million in 1966.

Senator Evereti:
come?

And its investment in-

Mr. Humphrys: Its investment income was
$94,000.

Senator Everett: Thank you.

Senator Leonard: Mr. Humphrys, what
happens to the British Eagle Star in Canada?

Mr. Humphrys: Its insurance will be either
allowed to run out and be re-written as it
comes up for renewal, in this company, or
there will be a portfolio transfer where this
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company will take over the policies which
have been written by the Eagle Star.

Senator Leonard: The Canadian people will
not be offered an opportunity to insure in
either a British company or a Canadian com-
pany by the name of Eagle Star?

Mr. Humphrys: No. My understanding is
that the activities of this group in Canada
will be channelled through this company
alone.

Senator Burchill:
offices?

Where are the head

Standing Commiitee

Mr. Humphrys: In Toronto.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? Mr. Hugessen, have you anything to
add?

Mr. James K. Hugessen, Parliamentary
Agent: No, Mr. Chairman, I have nothing to
add.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, are
you ready for the question? Shall I report the
bill without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Committee adjourned.
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The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman

Aird

Aseltine

Baird

Beaubien (Bedford)

Beaubien (Provencher)

Benidickson
Blois
Bourget
Burchill
Choquette
Cook

Croll
Dessureault
Everett
Farris
Fergusson
Flynn

The Honourable Senators:

Gélinas
Gershaw

Gouin
Haig

Hayden

Irvine
Isnor
Kinley
Lang .

Leonard
Macdonald (Cape Breton) Vaillancourt

Macdonald (Brantford)

MacKenzie
Macnaughton
McCutcheon
McDonald

Molson

O’Leary (Carleton)

Paterson

Pearson

Pouliot

Power

Rattenbury

Roebuck

Smith (Queens-
Shelburne)

Thorvaldson

Vien
Walker
White
Willis—(48)

Ex Officio members: Flynn and Connolly (Ottawa West).

(Quorum 9)



ORDER OF REFERENCE
Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
November 1st, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator McDonald
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Beaubien (Provencher), that
the Bill S-21, intituled: “An Act to amend the Food and Drugs Act”, be read
the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable

Senator Farris, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on Bank-
ing and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MacNeill,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
‘WEDNESDAY, November 8th, 1967.
(9)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9:50 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Beaubien (Bedford), Benidickson, Blois, Burchill, Croll, Fergusson, Gershaw,
Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, MacKenzie, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Smith (Queens-
Shelburne), Thorvaldson and Walker. (20)

Present but not of the Committee: Honourable Senator Sullivan.

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel
and R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

On motion of the Honourable Senator McDonald it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in
English and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill
S-21.

Bill S-21, “An Act to amend the Food and Drugs Act”, was read and
considered.

The following witnesses were heard:

Department of National Health and Welfare:
Dr. A. C. Hardman, Director, Scientific Advisory Services.
J. D. McCarthy, Legal Adviser.

Royal Canadian Mounted Police:
Inspector J. A. Macauley, Criminal Investigation Branch.

The Honourable Senator Sullivan read into the record a statement with
respect to the users and uses of “LSD”.

The Honourable Senator Molson tabled for consideration by the Committee
a proposed amendment to clause 2, with respect to proposed new section 41.

The Chairman moved that a sub-committee composed of the Honourable
Senators Croll, Hayden (Chairman), Molson, Thorvaldson and Walker be
constituted to consider the proposed amendment, which motion was agreed to.

Consideration of Bill S-21 was then adjourned.
At 10.45 a.m. the Committe then proceeded to the next order of business.

Attest:
Frank A. Jackson,

Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 8, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-21,
to amend the Food and Drugs Act, met this
gay at 9.50 a.m. to give consideration to the

ill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, this
has been variously designated as the LSD
bill. Is there a desire in the committee that
we report and print the proceedings?

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill,

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: On Bill S-21 we have cer-
tain representatives here. We have Dr. A. C.
Hardman, who was before us last year when
we had this bill for consideration. He is Di-
rector, Scientific Advisory Services, Depart-
ment of National Health and Welfare. With
him is Mr. J. D. McCarthy, the department’s
legal adviser. Then we have Inspector J. A.
Macauley of the Criminal Investigation
Branch, R.C.M.P., and also Staff Sergeant
Yurkiw.

I should like to make this suggestion to the
committee. We went into this bill quite
exhaustively last year. If you recall, we
made an amendment and then the bill did
not proceed further. My suggestion is that
before we look at the provisions of the bill
we might hear Dr. Hardman, and possibly
Inspector Macauley, and learn what the
situation is up to this moment. Some honour-
able senators may have statements to make
at that time, and then we can look at the
provisions of the bill. Does that meet the
wishes of the committee?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
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The Chairman: Dr. Hardman, would you
give us a resumé of the facts down to this
time leading to bringing in these proposed
amendments?

Dr. A. C. Hardman, Direcior, Scientific Ad-
visory Services, Depariment of National
Health and Welfare: Ladies and gentlemen,
on April 26 I did speak to this committee and
quickly reviewed and gave a reasonable back-
ground to the problems of LSD. Ever since
my testimony at that time there has been
further evidence given out in the scientific
literature, and I noted that the Hon. Dr.
Sullivan referred to this in the Senate quite
recently. A group of doctors at Buffalo found
evidence that L.SD in rather small quantities
was causing damage to the chromosomes in
white blood cells. The chromosomes are that
part of a cell which carry the genetic infor-
mation. Studies carried out in Oregon dis-
closed evidence that this type of damage was
transmitted to the children of pregnant
women who had taken LSD during their
early pregnancy. The significance of this
damage is not known at this stage.

However, we do have studies of other
types in which a similar type of damage
occurs. In one of these there would appear to
be some evidence that the type of breakage
of this chromosome is similar to that occur-
ring in certain types of leukemia, so that we
are having now evidence of damage to cells
in humans.

There have been tetragenic studies carried
out with animals to determine the effect of
LSD on the offspring of rats and mice. These
studies, reported in the Journal of Science,
disclose that LSD is tetragenic; in other
words, that in a litter there are some that are
deformed and the size of the Ilitter is
decreased. Furthermore, there is a phenome-
non known as resorption, which means that
when a faulty rat or mouse fetus is damaged,
it will be absorbed by the body or resorbed
by the body. So we have now some increas-
ing scientific evidence of the hazards of this.
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We have one other piece of information
regarding the therapeutic effects of LSD.
This was promulgated with Dr. E. Baker’s
book published by the University of Toronto.
He reiterated in it that, in their experience,
they have found that lysergic acid diethyl-
amide in the treatment of alcoholics and neu-
rotics is not too effective, it is not a miracle
drug in this area.

Honourable senators, I think this is a very
quick summary of what is in the scientific
and professional literature since I reported to
you last.

Senator Pearson: Is this permanent dis-
turbance to the cell, the genes? Supposing a
teenager -took it today, would it result in per-
manent damage throughout his life?

Dr. Hardman: We do not know, sir. The
studies in Buffalo indicated that damage
existed, in one case, for at least one year
after the person had stopped taking LSD.
The studies reported in Oregon were that
they had this damage in infants of from six
to eight months. We do not know what the
long-term issue is. We do not know whether
this type of damage will result further in
deformities or make these people infertile.
We just do not know what it will do.

Senator Thorvaldson: This drug seems to
be much more dangerous than narcotics such
as heroin, is that right? Would you compare
them as to their being a menace or danger?

Dr. Hardman: I think that, if one takes the
risk-benefit ratio, the majority of narcotics
have a role in medicine—in other words,
there is a role. There is a social and a physi-
cal danger to the individual who uses narcot-
ics illegally or illicitly. With LSD there
would appear to be now, from the evidence
appearing, a social, a phychological and a
physical danger in the use of LSD, and this
does not appear to be compensated by any
real medical use for it. All drugs are danger-
ous. It is difficult to equate the danger. One
has to say: “If I use a drug, it is dangerous,
but how much benefit might a patient expect
to receive from it?” Our evidence with LSD
is that it is not a major breakthrough in
medicine.

The Chairman: Doctor, would you com-
pare, for instance, the immediate effects or
results to a user of LSD as compared to a
user of marijuana or heroin?

Dr. Hardman: Yes, sir. With all of those
used illicitly, initially the danger is one of a

Standing Commitiee

temporary escape from the problems the
individual has at the time. Then he comes
back and the problems are still there. In each
of these cases the difficulty comes with
repeated usage, where the person becomes
psychologically dependent on the drug. In the
case of narcotics he also becomes physically
dependent on the drug. With the use of
LSD or marijuana, however, he does not
become physically dependent. By “physically
dependent” I mean that he requires increas-
ing dosage and when he stops using the drug
then he has physical symptoms of
withdrawal.

The additional problem with marijuana
and LSD—more so with LSD than with
marijuana—is the risk of psychological
breakdown, psychotic behaviour resulting
from the use in an unstable individual. And
with all of these drugs there is a social prob-
lem of the person under the influence of the
drug injuring himself or someone in his
environment.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): I take it
from your evidence that there is a great
danger in the use of LSD even under con-
trolled conditions?

Dr. Hardman: Yes, sir. This evidence
appears to be developing. We have had
reports from the Ontario hospital system, and
from Edmonton, that psychiatrists are sus-
pending the investigation of LSD in their
practice until the genetic picture is further
clarified. At least two clinical investigators
have been concerned by the reports in the
laboratories.

Dr. Sullivan: Dr. Hardman referred to this
latest publication which has come from the
University of Toronto press. You asked a
specific question, Mr. Chairman, in regard to
those who might be susceptible to this drug.
On page 11 of this book, “Lysergic Acid
Diethylamide (I.SD) in the Treatment of Al-
coholism” by Smart, Storm, Baker and Sol-
ursh, there appears this statement: i

“...there are few complications when
the drug is given to ‘normal’ subjects in
the course of experimentation and most
complications appear during therapeutic
or non-medical use. The actual number
of such complications is unknown at
present—"

And this is my point—

“—but most of them appeared in pre-
psychotic persons or in those with a
family history of psychosis.”



Banking and Commerce 33

I intend later, with the permission of the
Qhairman, to put on the record the type of
Individual that is susceptible to the taking of
this drug.

~ The Chairman: Could a healthy, stable,
individual who uses LSD quit at any time
Wwithout any ill effect?

Dr. Hardman: Yes, sir.

Senator Burchill: Is it used in the medical
Profession? Is it prescribed?

Dr. Hardman: No, sir. The status of LSD in
Canada is that it is permitted for limited
?Hnical investigation by psychiatrists, in
1{lstitutions approved by the Minister of Na-
tional Health and Welfare.

Senator Thorvaldson: You have had
€Xperience now for quite a few months, since
this bill was previously before the Senate
and before this committee. Would you indi-
cate what experiences, if any, you have had
In regard to the growth or increase in the use
of this, or any things that have happened in
the trafficking of the drug since that time?

Dr. Hardman: Might I defer that question
to Inspector Macauley?

The Chairman: Inspector Macauley is here
and he will develop that aspect.

Senator Molson: It has been reported in
the newspapers that a practice has been
eveloping of introducing a habit-forming
drug into marijuana in some cases in order
to get the innocent marijuana smoker gradu-
ally addicted. I would like to ask the doctor
if there is any indication that any such thing
has been done with LSD?

Dr. Hardman: Not to my knowledge, sir.
1€ administration of LSD is usually in a
liquid form. Perhaps Inspector Macauley will
Speak of this later, but the report was of the
Use of heroin in marijuana, because one of
the forms of using heroin commonly in the
Orient is to smoke it, and I have mno direct
knOWledge that this has taken place. Perhaps
the inspector has. I have no reports of cross-
Contamination with narcotics into LSD.

Senator Molson: I would like to ask one
Other question. In some of the articles that
have been written there is quite frequent
Mention of the fact that the LSD that is so
often obtained surreptitiously by young peo-
ble is not pure. Have we any ideas of the
Possibilities of damage to the individual from

the impurities that may be in this type of
LSD that they obtain.

Dr. Hardman: No, sir. We have no control
studies of this. In the preparation of LSD
illicitly, from the reports that have come to
us from the United States, the actual active
ingredient is about 10 per cent of the materi-
al present. The contaminants that are present
have not been characterized completely and
there have been no toxological studies car-
ried out on it to my knowledge.

The procuring of this type of material for
scientific investigation is difficult, because it
will vary from one illicit batch to the next.
You just do not get enough to carry out
controlled studies.

Senator Molsoen: You would suspect, then,
that from batch to batch the contaminants or
the other elements would be different.

Dr. Hardman: This is quite possible, sir. I
can only quote the opinion of a doctor in
Saskatchewan, Dr. Hoffer, who had been in
closer contact with actual illicit users than
myself. He felt that perhaps some of the
adverse psychological reactions he encoun-
tered might be attributed to the contami-
nants. I am only quoting his opinion, sir.

The Chairman: Do the contaminants occur
when you are seeking to get this drug LSD,
or are they added by way of diluting?

Dr. Hardman: No. Generally, sir, they are
part of the chemical process.

The Chairman: Oh, I see.

Dr. Hardman: They are contaminants
resulting from the chemical process that pro-
duces the LSD but which are not removed.
In other words, the drug is not purified
subsequently.

The Chairman: I see. Have you any other
questions to ask Dr. Hardman? Thank you,
doctor. Shall we hear Inspecter Macauley
now? Inspector, would you bring us up to
date on your experiences since we had the
pleasure of hearing you last April?

Inspector J. A. Macauley, Criminal Inves-
tigation Branch, Royal Canadian Mounied Po-
lice: Thank you, sir. Ladies and gentlemen,
from the enforcement point of view there has
been very little change in the situation so far
as LSD is concerned since our last meeting
here in April of this year. We are still
encountering LSD in the street in connection
with other investigations. We have found a
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number of persons in possession of LSD.
Also, in our undercover investigations to do
with other narcotics, our undercover men
have been able to make purchases of LSD
from the illicit sources.

Senator Thorvaldson: You say they have
been unable?

Mr. Macauley: They have been able to.

Senator Pearson: Is there any particular
age of people peddling this stuff?

Mr. Macauley: Yes, in the early twenties,
sir.

Senator Pearson: In the early twenties, I
see.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): You say
your undercover agents have been able to
make purchases. Are they from the people
who are normally associated with the ped-
dling of other drugs, narcotics?

Mr. Macauley: That is correct, sir. Our
undercover investigators are primarily con-
cerned with other narcotics, the hard narcot-
ics and marijuana, and through these con-
tacts they find LSD has entered the stream.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): It is much
the same people.

Mr. Macauley: That is correct, sir.

Senator Thorvaldson: I am still at a loss,
Inspector Macauley, as to why—and I raised
this subject the last time wou were before
us—this legislation is not handled under the
Narcotics Act rather than under the Food
and Drugs Act. I think a reason was given,
but would you restate that, or have you
found since that there are different reasons
perhaps for now bringing this under the Nar-
cotics Act?

Mr. Macauley: So far as our department is
concerned, sir, I cannot answer that question.

The Chairman: You are not in adminis-

tration.

Mr. Macauley: We are in the enforcement
end of it, sir.

Senator Thorvaldson: You are in the
enforcement end under the Food and Drugs
Act.

Mr. Macauley: Under the Food and Drugs
Act and the Narcotics Act.

Senator Thorvaldson: And the Narcotics

Act?
The Chairman: Oh, yes.
Mr. Macauley: Yes, sir, that is correct.

Senator Fergusson: May I ask in what
form the LSD is purchased by your under-
cover agents?

Mr. Macauley: It is mostly in sugar cubes
—there is a drop of liquid placed on a sugar
cube—but it can be in capsule form as a
powder.

Senator Fergusson: How do you determine
it is there? By analysis?

Mr. Macauley: Our investigators, over a
period of time, have come to recognize situa-
tions. If a person has these sugar cubes
wrapped in a certain way or in a certain
storage place in a residence or, if commonly
walking along the street, he has them
wrapped in silver paper in his pocket, then
these are all telltale marks to our
investigators.

Senator Thorvaldson: From your experi-
ence in your work during the last few
months, what would you say that your
inspectors do when they come into contact
with these situations? Have they any power
to arrest a person or seize him under any
present legislation, or are you waiting for
this bill to be passed?

Mr. Macauley: In cases where there is an
offer for sale and members have been able to
purchase, prosecution is entered; where there
is straight possession, we have no authority.

Senator Thorvaldson: But under what Act
do you have authority now in the case of the
sale or trafficking?

Mr, Macauley: The Food and Drugs Act.
Senator Thorvaldson: I see.

Senator Gershaw: Inspector Macauley,
where do the young people who use this drug
obtain it? What is their source? Where does
it come from?

Mr. Macauley: That is a difficult question
to answer, sir. We have never been able to
get to the source here in Canada.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, there is a
current article in the Saturday Evening Post
on the Mafia in England that is quite inter-
esting. In the course of that article it men-
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tions that the Mafia are moving into the
manufacture and distribution of LSD. I
would like to ask the inspector if he thinks
that has any credence so far as the experi-
ence in the force is concerned.

Mr. Macauley: There is no indication of it
at the present time, sir, but, if there is a
brofit involved, I see no reason why they
Would not move in.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions you want to ask the inspector. Inspec-
tor, would you say from your experience,
since you were before us last, that the
volume of users is increasing?

Mr. Macauley: I would say it is fairly
constant, sir.

The Chairman: By the addition of new
bPeople or repeaters?

- Mr, Macauley: There are new people being
nvolved in this all the time.

The Chairman: This is something that you
¢an move in and out of, is it not? It is not
habit forming in the same way as heroin, for
Instance?

Mr. Macauley: That is my understanding.
There is a difference between LSD and
heroin,

Senator Thorvaldson: For what period of
Years has LLSD been a known menace?

Mr. Macauley: It first came to our attention
to any extent about 1963 or early 1964. That
IS just a guess.

Senator Baird:
Source or supply?

And you do not know the

Mr., Macauley: As I say, sir, we have not
reached the source of supply here in Canada.

Senator Thorvaldson: You have not discov-
ered any place where it is manufactured in
Canada illegally?

Mr. Macauley: Not in Canada, no.

The Chairman: Are
Questions?

there any other

Senator Isnor: In what sections of Canada
have you found violations of this Act?

Mr. Macauley: Right across Canada: in
Vancouver, on the Prairies, in Toronto and in
Montreal. It takes in, I would say, from
Montreal right to Victoria.

Senator Fergusson: Is it found in the At-
lantic provinces at all?

Mr. Macauley: Very, very little, if any. I
cannot think of any offhand.

Senator Gershaw: How long does the effect
last after a person has taken LDS? How long
does it stay in the system or how long does it
last?

Mr. Macauley: This is another question
which I cannot answer.

The Chairman: Perhaps Dr. Hardman
could answer that. How long would you say
that you find evidence of the use of this in
the system after it has been taken, Dr,
Hardman?

Dr. Hardman: One of the difficulties is that
you can only detect it chemically in the sys-
tem within less than 30 minutes after its
administration. However, the effects may go
on. They begin in one to two hours. They
usually last up to 12 hours. They may go on
for a period of time and then recur at a later
date. But you cannot detect it as you could
alcohol by any physical or chemical method

in the body for 30 minutes after
administration.
Senator Beaubien (Bedford): Inspector,

have you read Bill S-21?

Mr. Macauley: No, I haven’t. I don’t have a
copy.

Senator Beaubien (Bedford): Would it not
be important for Inspector Macauley to read
this bill, Mr. Chairman? Would that not be a
help?

The Chairman: He indicated that at the
present time they can arrest a person who is
offering for sale, but they cannot arrest any
person and charge him for being in posses-
sion. This bill makes possession an offence.

Senator Beaubien (Bedford): It seems to
me very important that the bill should be
read by the people who will be trying to
enforce this. Should they not be consulted
and asked to tell us what they think about
it?

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): I presume
the Department of Justice had a good deal to
do with the drafting of this bill, and while I
understand that Inspector Macauley might
not have been consulted I would be very
surprised if there were not other persons
engaged in law enforcement who were con-
sulted on this.
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The Chairman: I just told the Inspector
that this is the same bill as we had before us
last time.

Mr. Macauley: I did not have a copy this
morning, but I did have a copy at the last
appearance here in April of this year.

Senator Beaubien (Bedford): Your depart-
ment is satisfied that this is what you want?

Mr. Macauley: That is correct, sir.

The Chairman: Senator Sullivan, you had
a statement you wanted to make.

Senator Sullivan: Mr. Chairman, honoura-
ble senators, I have spoken on this bill on
two different occasions, and as a result of my
last talk a number of senators have said to
me, “Dr. Sullivan, is there any particular
type of individual that is susceptible to the
taking of this drug?” Now, I may say that in
two addresses—and I spoke strietly from a
medical point of view—I did not include that.
I have been vitally interested in this problem
because many of these cases have been seen
in connection with auditory hallucinations;
that is, disturbances in the ear and ringing in
the ears, and so forth. I discussed this over
the weekend with my colleague, Dr. Henry
Berry, Research Fellow in Neuro-Psychiatry,
St. Michael’s Hospital, Toronto. We came up
with a statement which, with the permission
of the chairman, I should like to put on the
record. It is as follows:

There is no adequate scientific study
of the possible factors, psychological, cul-
tural, ete., that may be responsible for
the increasing use of LSD.

One cannot single out a certain per-
sonality type that will lead to LSD
experimentation.

Speaking more generally, with these
reservations in mind, the following state-
ments could be made:

1. The users are usually within the
adolescent and early adult age group.

2. They are different family back-
grounds but often the conventional-

ly satisfactory middle class back-
ground and family life, is noted.
3. The wuse appears part of the

experimentation of youth, often related
to a yearning for novelty, excitement,
a heightened artistic, religious, or
other mystical experience. The person
of poetic, literary, dramatic or other
creative aspirations may take the drug
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in an attempt to improve his creative

abilities.

4. The wide discussion and public inter-
est generated by journalists, televi-
sion and film media appear to have
played a role. Huxley in the “Doors of
Perception”, stated O’Leary and others
have in some way given this drug a
respectability for the person of artistic
and religious feeling.

5. The relative ease with which the
drug can be obtained, albeit illegal-
ly, has also contributed to its use,

There is no indication that psychiatrie
treatment or counselling is of any value
in preventing the use of this drug or in
causing the practice to be discontinued
by those who use it more or less regular-
ly. Psychiatric treatment, however, usu-
ally of an institutional type, is required
in those cases where panic states or
frank mental illness results from the use
of the drug.

I think we could say that is a summation
of the medical and scientific knowledge of
today in respect to the type of individual that
is most likely to take this drug, and as I have
stated before this is a medical problem, in
my humble opinion, and not a legal one.

The Chairman: Since there is a reference
in the course of the inspector’s evidence to
the present law and so that there may be a
statement as to what it is at the present time,
section 14A of the Food and Drugs Act pro-
vides that no person shall sell any drug pre-
scribed in Schedule H. One of the drugs
prescribed in Schedule H is LSD. There is
the authority and the limit of authority which
the law enforcement officers have at the
present time. This bill does create the offence
of possession which does not exist under the
present law, and we find that in the proposed
section 40 of the bill before us.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): Is not
the legislation strengthened by making it an
offence to traffic within the full meaning of
the word “traffic”’? I understand that under
present legislation the R.C.M.P. have to deal
with selling and not with trafficking.

The Chairman: Then you get into the dis-
tinction as to whether “trafficking” is a
broader word or a more restrictive word than
“selling”. Could you have selling that is not
trafficking?




Banking and Commerce

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): Well,
trafficking could include transporting, which
selling might not.

The Chairman: I think trafficking is the
broader word, and is one that is well known
in our drug laws. The only difference here is
that if you are charged for a violation under
section 40, subsection 2, which makes posses-
sion an offence, then there is a trial to deter-
mine whether you are in possession or not,
and if you are found to be in possession then
the onus is on you to establish that you are
not in possession for the purpose of
trafficking.

This is strengthening the law; there is no
doubt about it. It is flying in the face of some
concepts we have about a person being inno-
cent until he is proven guilty, but we are told
that the end here would appear to justify the
means.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): In view of
your final statement, Mr. Chairman, may I
ask this question? Is the wording here not
the same as it is with regard to the posses-
sion of dynamite or explosives?

The Chairman: Frankly, without looking it
up, I could not tell you. It would be in the
Criminal Code.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): It is my
understanding that it is the same wording as
the section in the Criminal Code dealing with
‘explosives.

The Chairman: Do not misunderstand me.
I was just making a statement as to what the
effect of the bill was. I was not expressing a
view against this provision of the bill.

Senator Burchill: Mr. Chairman, we went
all through this bill in April, did we not?

The Chairman: That is right.

Senator Burchill: Are there any changes in
this bill compared to the one we considered
in April?

The Chairman: The only change, I believe,
is that we added during the committee stage
a provision with respect to promotion.

Senator Burchill: Is that contained in this
bill?

The Chairman: No.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): There is a
change in section 44, Mr. Chairman.
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The Chairman: I think it is only a techni-
cal change to do with the certificate of the
analyst.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): Yes.

The Chairman: But, by and large, if you
consider what we did in committee last time
and forget that addition, the bill is, to all
intents and purposes, the same as the one we
had before us last time. Would the committee
care to have any discussion on this other
aspect? Senator Molson, have you anything
you want to put forward in relation to the
amendment made last time which is not
incorporated in this bill?

Senator Molson: I somehow found myself
the “godfather” of that amendment last time,
I am not quite sure how, but the fact does
remain that this bill provides penalties for
and the means of prosecution of those who
traffic and those who use the drug or are in
possession of it. But, as I suggested last
spring in committee, in my personal opinion
and, I think, that of some other senators, the
individual who is far more anti-social and
far more harmful is the one who promotes
the use by the young of this or any other
harmful drug. We seem to let that individual
completely off. We tried to put this amend-
ment in about promotion, and we had this
extreme attitude from some of the press that
we were trying to muzzle the press or the
news media, which, of course, was never the
intention of this committee nor myself. In
fact, I think the Senate and its commit-
tees have shown the greatest desire to pre-
serve all the freedoms of the individual and
of the press, but I think that we should give
very careful further consideration to whether
we cannot control these people who stand
up and freely advocate the use of LSD,
amongst other things, and put them in a
position in which they cannot do this without
committing an offence.

Quite frankly, I was surprised at the reac-
tion to our proposed amendment last time,
because I think it is generally considered
anti-social to advocate murder or rape or any
other offence of that sort, and yet this is
freely discussed at all times in the press and
on the radio and television. Quite honestly, I
cannot see any reason why in aiming at the
individual who promotes we should, in any
way, limit the freedom of expression on the
general subject. It seems to me it would be
no different from preventing someone going
around and inciting a riot, which, as I under-
stand it, is an offence.



So I think we ought to consider an
amendment to the bill, being careful not to,
in any sense, limit the freedom of expression,
the freedom of the press or news media, but
making it an offence to recommend or to
incite others to traffic or use improperly LSD.

The Chairman: The difficulty, senator, I
think arose over the meaning of the word
“promote”. It may be the use of the word
“promote” was wrong in the circumstances. I
note that today in your explanation you speak
about “encouraging the use” or “advocating
the use”. This is the sense in which “inciting
to riot” would become an offence.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, to try to
bring it to a head and have it put on the
table, I have a draft of a proposed amend-
ment to section 41, in clause 2. I say here that
I do not think the wording is perfect, but it
will bring it before us for discussion. I would
move:

That section 41, of clause 2 be amend-
ed by adding thereto the following
subsections:

(4) No person shall act or profess to
act as the leader or as one of the
leaders of any cult or other group of
persons advocating trafficking or im-
proper use of a restricted drug;

(5) Every person who violates sub-
section (4) is guilty of an offence and
is liable, upon summary conviction,. ..

—and here I think it is out of my field. I
think the penalty should probably be the
same as that for possession, which to my
mind is a lesser offence. In fact, it seems to
me that, if anything, the penalties for posses-
sion are rather harsh, and I think promotion
is a little more serious an offence. I would
rather see the person advocating it receive a
severer penalty than some youngster who is
caught for the first time.

The Chairman: One thing that strikes me
right away is the use of the word “leader”
—whether it should not be broader and
should say, “the leader, or one of the leaders,
or a member of...”

Senator Molson: This is open to discussion,
Mr. Chairman. I have no strong views on it. I
just feel we should try to get at these people
who gather the young around them, who
make this thing fashionable and would lead
your grandchildren or my children or grand-
children, or whatever it may be, to the use of
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this drug where normally they would not do
so.

The Chairman: Very often when you are
trying to accomplish a good purpose, sitting
right here in committee you have not the
time to settle on the language to achieve the
best result. You may end up by producing
something and enacting it that is less than
desirable because it has too many fringes
that can create problems. That might have
been the cause of the difficulties in the use of
the word ‘“promote” the last time the bill was
before us.

Senator McDonald (Moosomin):
widespread?

The Chairman: That is right. I was won-
dering if we could appoint a subcommittee to
study the language of this proposed amend-
ment and report back to this committee. The
subcommittee might work in conjunction
with Mr. McCarthy, the legal counsel for the
Department of National Health and Welfare,
and a representative from the Department of
Justice. We would not need to take very long
about it. We would certainly be ready for the
next meeting of this committee. Is that satis-
factory? It is important, I think, that this bill
leaves our hands as quickly as possible and
goes to the House of Commons, and becomes
the law of the land.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Then, subject to such
amendment as may be brought in by the
subcommittee, do we otherwise approve of
the form and content of the bill? I ask this so
that we do not have to come back and dis-
cuss it.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I think Senator Molson
should certainly be a member of the
subcommittee.

Senator Molson: The subcommittee should
be composed of our legal talent.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): There
should be somebody to keep the subcommit-
tee in line.

The Chairman: It should be composed of
four or five members of this committee,.

Senator MacKenzie: Mr. Chairman, on a
point of information, did the House of Com-
mons turn this bill down or did the bill die
on the Order Paper?

The Chairman: I think it died on the Order
Paper of the House of Commons. I do not
know whether it can be said that that was

It is too
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intended, but in any event it died at the end
of the session.

Senator MacKenzie: Was there evidence of
opposition to it in the House of Commons?

Mr. E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel, the Senate: It did not
reach the House of Commons. It was not
given third reading in the Senate, It died on
our Order Paper at the close of the session.

Senator Sullivan: May I interrupt for just
a moment, Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Sullivan: Senator Walker spoke to
you last spring about the legal aspects of this
as well.

The Chairman: Yes. I think the subcom-
mittee should be made up of Senator Walker,
Senator Thorvaldson. ..

Senator
Chairman.

Pearson: And yourself, Mr.

The Chairman: Very well—and Senator
Molson. We must have somebody outside the
law. I mean that in the nice sense of the
Phrase.

Senator Molson: I will not comment.

The Chairman: Senator Croll has taken
some interest in this, so perhaps he should be
a member of the subcommittee. If it is
agreed, there will be that subcommittee of
five members of this committee, which will
8o to work on it right away.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Senator Molson: Would it be wise to ask
our witnesses whether they have any feelings
on the matter?

The Chairman: Yes, let us have the view
of Mr. McCarthy, the legal adviser to the
department.

Mr. J. D. McCarthy, legal adviser, depart-
ment of National Health and Welfare: Mr.
Chairman, I take it Senator Molson is refer-
ring to your suggested amendment—or, is it
the former idea?

Senator Molson: The former one.

The Chairman: First of all, let us take the
former one.

Mr, McCarthy: Well, on the former amend-
ment which, it has been said, has disap-
Peared—of course, I am not in a position to
say why it has disappeared, but I can say
that during the months since this was before
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this committee the last time there has been a
great deal of discussion and consideration
given to the possibility of adding to this
legislation a provision such as the senator
has suggested. The difficulties from the
standpoint of drafting, and the basic consti-
tutional standpoint, seemed so tremendous as
to be impossible to overcome. We got into all
sorts of areas; not just the question of the
freedom of the press, which is really a minor
difficulty. We had to consider what we meant
by “promotion”.

When I was here before I intimated that it
would probably be necessary to introduce a
definition of “promotion” into this bill, and
this has become, in our view, almost impossi-
ble for the reason that even the scientific
treatment of the subject, for instance, seemed
to exhort us to stay clear of this thing entire-
ly. The publicity effect might be a promotion
in one sense. This is why the general idea of
trying to legislate in connection with “promo-
tion” per se would be pretty difficult.

The Chairman: I am thinking out loud but
what that means is that the word “promo-
tion” is the wrong word.

Mr. McCarthy: Perhaps.

The Chairman: But, there are many other
words in the English language. Perhaps we
can find one or two others.

Mr. McCarthy: Then, of course, with
respect to the new suggestion which will be
considered by the subcommittee that is being
formed, I can only say that after examination
it is possible that this too may be found to be
not completely appropriate. We appreciate
fully Senator Molson’s views—at least, I
do—and I am trying to see how they can be
implemented for the purpose you suggest.

Senator Molson: Would you not agree that
the individual who engages in promotion
should be more of a worry to us in the
country than the individual who gets caught
up in the odd LSD trip?

Mr. McCarthy: Certainly, the person who
promotes it is the sort of person we would
hope to be able to control, but the same thing
applies to some other offences. There are, of
course, provisions against aiding and abet-
ting, and that sort of thing.

The point I am trying to make is that in
this instance only, and in connection with
this particular drug, we are attempting to
define a new offence. It may be possible to do
so, and so get over this fringe area of persons
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who are really pushing this thing, and who
are not merely traffickers.

Senator Molson: Is not inciting to commit a
crime an offence?

Mr. McCarthy: Yes, it is, and probably we
do not need some specific legislation for this
particular offence.

The Chairman: And conspiracy to violate
any criminal law is an offence, so you have
those elements now.

Senator Molson: We have those elements,
except that I think one would be led to
believe that the use of those particular ele-
ments in respect of this Act is not so easy.
The laying of such a charge is not a common
occurrence.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): Do I
take it then, Mr. Chairman, that the witness
believes, along with Senator Molson and a
great many of us, that we want a search
made in order to find a way of preventing a
whole group of Tim Learys growing up in
this country? If that is so, are you not telling
us, having had all of the summer to think
over the problem, that you cannot come up
with a legal way of dealing with future Tim
Learys?

The Chairman: No, I do not think he went
that far.

Mr. McCarthy: May be I am wrong.
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The Chairman: I think he went so far as to
say that the word “promote” was not a word
that we can use because of the extensive
meanings that are given to it. I do not think
there is such a shortage of words in the
English language that we cannot find an
appropriate one, once we are clear as to
what we want to do. I suggest that we have
a good ftry.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): Mr.
Chairman, I would think that the mere fact
that there is no mention in this bill of any-
thing that attempts to do what Senator Mol-
son and I and others would like to have done
indicates that they cannot find a word...

The Chairman: They are leaving it up to
us, and we will try to find one.

Senator Kinley: Mr. Chairman, could idle
talk be considered promotion?

The Chairman: I think we are agreed that
“promotion” is not the word we are looking
for. There must be another word that
describes what we want to do, and we will
find it. Is it agreed that we adjourn further
consideration of this bill?

Senator McDonald (Moosomin): I so move,
Mr. Chairman.

The committee then proceeded to the next
order of business.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
November 2nd, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Connolly, P.C., seconded by
the Honourable Senator Deschatelets, P.C., for second reading of the
Bill S-18, intituled: “An Act to amend the Publication of Statutes Act”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Connolly, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Bourget, P.C., that the Bill be referred to the Stand-
ing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MACNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 8th, 1967.
(10)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 10.45 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Beaubien (Bedford), Benidickson, Blois, Burchill, Croll, Fergusson, Gershaw,
Irvine, Isnor, Kinley, MacKenzie, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Smith (Queens-
Shelburne), Thorvaldson and Walker.—(20)

Present: but not of the Committee: Honourable Senator Sullivan.

In attendance: E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel
and R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and, Chief
Clerk of Committees.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Baird it was Resolved to report,
recommending that authority be granted for the printing of 800 copies in Eng-
lish and 300 copies in French of the proceedings of the Committee on Bill S-18.

Bill S-18, “An Act to amend the Publication of Statutes Act”, was read
and considered.

The following witness was heard:
Department of Justice: J. W. Ryan, Director, Legislation Section.

The questions having gone beyond the Bill into matters of policy, Mr.
Ryan was excused and it was agreed that further consideration of the said Bill
be adjourned until the Minister of Justice was available for questioning.

At 11.10 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

Attest:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 8, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-18,
to amend the Publication of Statutes Act, met
this day at 10.45 a.m. to give consideration to
the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, as
Bill S-18 originates in the Senate I think we
should have a verbatim report. May I have
the usual motion?

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill. ;

The Chairman: We have Mr. J. W. Ryan of
the Department of Justice here. Mr. Ryan,
would you explain briefly the scope and pur-
pose of this bill.

Mr. J. W. BRyan, Director, Legislation Sec-
tion, Department of Justices Mr. Chairman
and honourable senators, the short purpose
of this bill is set out in the explanatory note.
By way of extension of that I should explain
that the provision to which we wish the
amendment made is section 11. Section 10 is
an incidental or ancillary amendment to sec-
tion 11.

Section 11 was in its origin in 1867, by
chapter 1, the Interpretation Act, a direction
to printers, and the language was printers’
language. In the original section they used
picas and points, and even ems. Subsequent-
ly, in 1925 the provision was changed and
gave terms translated into inches, as we now
have it in our statutes.

The Statute Revision Commission is study-
ing the statutes, and under the act, chapter
48, 1964-1965, they may prescribe a form that
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they consider desirable for the statutes. In
reviewing the possibility of the Statute Revi-
sion Commission coming out with a form of
statutes which differs from the annual stat-
utes, it was thought desirable that the direc-
tion under section 11 be made more flexible
so that if it were necessary the Governor in
Council could prescribe a form which would
permit the annual statutes to correspond with
whatever form the commission came out
with. That is the simple purpose of the
amendment.

The Chairman: Senator Walker, you are
interested in this. Have you anything you
want to ask the witness or that you would
like to say at this time?

Senator Walker: I should like to ask a few
questions. As I understand it, we now have
the Revised Statutes of Canada in either
French or English, whichever you prefer. Is
that correct?

Mr. Ryan: They are in both forms, in sepa-
rate volumes.

Senator Walker: I understand that under
this Act we will not be able to get the stat-
utes in English only. Is that so?

Mr. Ryan: Not by the effect of the amend-
ment. By whatever direction or decision is
made pursuant to that amendment
subsequently.

Senator Walker: Subsection (1) of section
11 says:

Subject to this section, the statutes
shall be printed in the English and
French languages in such form, on such
paper and in such type...as the Gov-
ernor in Council may prescribe by
regulation.

The Chairman: Senator, if you look at sub-
section (3) you will see the answer supporting
what you have said.
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Senator Walker:
says:

Exactly. Subsection (3)

The statutes of each session shall be
bound, if practicable and convenient, in
one volume.

Would that not be in French and English in
one volume?

Mr. Ryan: As I read that, if the statutes
came out in English and French, as they will,
and they were not combined in any form in
the annual statutes, then I suggest it would
not be practicable and convenient to put
them in one volume; the volume would be
much too large. We do not read it as restrict-
ing it to bilingual—if I could use that expres-
sion—annual statutes.

Senator Walker: Nevertheless, whatever is
printed will have on one page English and on
one page French.

Mr. Ryan: Not necessarily. This would be
to anticipate.

The Chairman: Senator Walker, if you
look at, for instance, the Quebec Statutes at
the present time you will find a line down
the centre of the page, on the left-hand side
of which you have the French version and on
the right-hand side the English, on the same
page.

Senator Walker: Is that what you propose
to do here?

The Chairman:
wondering.

That is what I am

Mr, Ryan: I cannot, of course, anticipate
the final report of the commission, but at the
moment the commission is considering the
Quebec method, if I may use that expression.
May I explain that so far as the
commission—

Senator Walker: Before you do that, could
you tell us of what commission you are
speaking?

Mr. Ryan: The Statute Revision Commis-
sion. It examines bilingual areas where they
issue statutes, in Europe and in Africa. The
Irish, Swiss and South African are all
officially bilingual or trilingual. The South
African method is to have one language on
one page and the other language on the other
page. This we call the facing version. The
Swiss use what we call the Canada version
at the moment, which is separate volumes for
their three languages. The Irish use the
South African method, the facing pages.

The method the commission appeared to
favour at the moment is the Quebec one.
They are not being chauvinistic. It is conven-
ient; it does not extend the volume beyond a
quarter, whereas the South African method
doubles the number of volumes. It gives you
a very extensive library for revision. It
appears at the moment that the Quebec
method may be the one adopted by the Stat-
ute Revision Commission. If it is, it may be
desirable to use the same method for the
annual statutes, but the Publication of Stat-
utes Act at the moment inhibits that decision
and the amendment is being sought for that
purpose.

Senator Walker: That is why you want the
amendment?

Mr. Ryan: That is right.

Senator Walker: If on the same page you
have French on one side and English on the
other, would that not take up double the
space of having one volume in French and
another volume in English?

The Chairman: There might be a 50 per
cent increase.

Mr. Ryan: May I answer that?
The Chairman: Yes, certainly.

Mr. Ryan: Our information—and, of
course, we take this from Quebec and from
our printer’s estimates—is that the increase
by this method would be one quarter, or 25
per cent.

Senator Walker: How could that possibly
be. That is your information, but I have seen
the statutes and there are six volumes now,
which take up a lot of space in an ordinary
lawyer’s office, in English.

Mr. Ryan: There are actually 12 volumes,
sir.

Senator Walker: I was saying in English.

Mr. Ryan: Six volumes in English and six
in French.

Senator Walker: I am speaking of the Eng-
lish at the moment. If there are six volumes
in English and the two of them are combined
so that we cannot buy our statutes either in
English or in French, we must buy them
combined, how can you boil down 12
volumes—

Mr. Ryan: Well, senator—
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Senator Walker: Do not jump the gun. It is
very kind of you, I know, to try to help, but
how can you boil it down to 74 volumes by
printing in French and English in the same
volumes? How can you do that?

Mr. Ryan: If we use the conventional type
size in the first instance, which is 10 point,
agreed upon by the Uniformity Conference a
nhumber of years ago—we now use 11 point
In our statutes—we have a saving on type
print size. If we use a technique developed in
.the provinces, of putting schedules and forms
In a small-sized type—we have a considera-
ble number of pages and schedules in our
statutes—and then enlarge our page slightly
and our volume slightly, it is estimated for us
that the increase will be 25 per cent,
approximately.

Senator Walker: That is because you
changed the type of your printing. I am
Suggesting to you that, if you leave the print-
Ing the way it is at the present time, with the
Same type and the same layout, it will be
twelve instead of six. That is, if you leave it
the same as it is at present.

. Mr. Ryan: We could not use it the same as
it is at the present time, because it spreads
too wide over the page. We have to narrow
the width of the print. '

Senator Walker: Quite so, but supposing
that you did leave it the same—it would be
twice as wide? Or supposing you did print
the English separate and French separate, on
this new type of printing you are suggesting,
Yyou could greatly reduce the volume in Eng-
lish and greatly reduce the volume in
French, if you reduced the size of the print?

Mr. Ryan: You could. Even if you leave
the Canada method in use, you could reduce
the size of the volume by using a different
S_ize print for the schedules and reducing the
size—

. Senator Walker: In other words, by reduc-
ing the size of the print you could reduce the
Size of the volume, but if you print English
and French together you are almost doubling
the size of the printing?

Mr. Ryan: Not if we use the two-column
Width. This has been worked out for us.

Senator Walker: That is because of the
New method of printing. We all agree you are
gOing to reduce the size of the printing. Still,
1S not the French wording the same as the
English, in the space it occupies?

Mr. Ryan: Actually, it is a little longer in
the French. You have to “cheat” pages—
which is a printer’s term—to make the Eng-
lish and French match.

Senator Walker: That is my understanding.
Therefore, there are twice as many words to
put in a volume, whatever size it is, than if
you had the English version alone and the
French version alone. Is that not common
sense?

Mr. Ryan: This is what I had originally
thought, that we would be into difficulties as
to the number of volumes.

Senator Walker: We are not talking about
that, but about the number of words printed.

Mr. Ryan: The number of printed words
will be the same.

Senator Walker: All right, exactly. If you
boil it down, you can boil it down in English
and in French?

Mr. Ryan: You can reduce the size of the
type in English and in French and compress
things.

Senator Walker: Then why would you
want to print the Revised Statutes of Canada
in such a way that one has not any alterna-
tive and one has to buy it in both French
and English?

The Chairman: I am wondering if we are
getting close to a question of policy.

Senator Walker: I wanted to know.

The Chairman: I wanted to stay away
from that, because we should not ask this of
the witness. If he is instructed that the stat-
ute is to be drawn in such a form, that they
considered all these various ways of dealing
with it, then he is told to put the legislation
in the form to do that. He might answer all
the questions we may ask except that one as
to why you consider that one way of doing it.
I think that is a question of policy and we
will have to get the Minister on that, surely.

Senator Walker: Then we want the Minis-
ter. There are over 6,300 lawyers in Ontario
and all of them were educated at Osgcode
Hall in these statutes, and I doubt whether
there are 100 lawyers in Ontario who are
French Canadian. In all my experience at the
Bar over thirty-six years, in the Supreme
Court of Ontario and in the Supreme Court
of Canada, I have never had occasion to look
at the French version of the statutes. I am
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not an international lawyer or an interpro-
vincial lawyer. I am wondering why we
should increase this and be forced to buy
twice as much printing in the Revised Stat-
utes as we have done in the past. This is the
question I would like answered. What is the
advantage of it? How many lawyers across
Canada, other than in Quebec, have need of
the French version? In Manitoba there are a
few hundred. There are none in Saskatche-
wan, Alberta or British Columbia that I
know of. There are some in New Brunswick,
and of course there are many in Quebec.
This being so, where is the advantage of
this? How does it help us as lawyers?

The Chairman: Senator, could I summarize
this? If we apply all the savings that have
been indicated—the savings through smaller
print, a little larger page, and then the print-
ing of the schedules in some fashion where
they take up less room—and if you retain the
French and English volumes separately, you
would accomplish very substantial savings.

Senator Walker: That is it.

The Chairman: I doubt if the savings by
printing on the divided page, French and
English, would add anything more to it. If
you are looking at it from the point of view
of savings, you can still keep the French and
English versions separately, and incur these
economies, if that is what you are looking
for.

Senator Walker: That
what I am looking for.

is right. That is

The Chairman: So that, as against doing
that, the decision is to follow the divided
page, and it is difficult to follow at the
moment.

Senator Walker: Exactly. The main point
is, are you going to apply it to our Revised
Statutes of Canada, which are too cumber-
some even now, instead of the way we now
provide for both French and English?

Mr. Ryan: I would answer that, because of
the report of the commission—

Senator Walker:
decide that?

The Chairman: If we approve this bill in
the form in which it is, that decision, which
has not been made up to the present, might
be made by the Governor in Council by
regulation. It is beyond our reach then.

We have no chance to

Senator Walker: That is a matter of great
interest, in my opinion. This affects the Bar
of Ontario who have their desks and shelves
filled, as you know, Mr. Chairman, with all
sorts of volumes of one kind and another.
Then, to have this thing thrown on them,
without any alternative—

The Chairman: There is a very simple
addition of a few words that would accom-
plish what you are seeking.

Senator Walker: Let us have it.

The Chairman: If you added the words “in
separate volumes”. That is to say, that the
statutes shall be printed in the English and
French languages in separate volumes, in
such form and such paper and such type, ete.

Senator Thorvaldson: Yes.
Senator Walker: I would move that.

The Chairman: What I would like to do—
this is not a political controversy that we are
starting.

Senator Walker: This is legal, purely legal.
As far as the French are concerned, everyone
who knows me knows my interest in them.
We now have a French Canadian leader. But
lawyers are surrounded by all sorts of
volumes, and in my thirty-six years at the
Bar we have never had to look at the French
version. I have been at the Supreme Court of
Ontario a great deal, as you know, and at the
Supreme Court of Canada; and if I never
had occasion to look at the French-Canadian
version, why should I and 10,000 lawyers
across Canada who do not speak and do not
understand French and never have occasion
to look at the volume, why should we have it
imposed on us, as a necessity, having these in
one volume with one column French and the
other column English. In Quebec, fine! And
in New Brunswick, fine! And if we ever have
occasion that it should happen in Ontario,
fine; but of 6,300 lawyers there are fewer
than 100 French Canadians, and all of them
are very fluent in English. We have in our
library now the French version, which we
can get at a moment’s notice. I would like to
see an amendment, and if there is some good
reason that I do not know of now, you can
change it back to what it is at the present
time.

The Chairman: I will tell you what I
would suggest for your consideration. Before
we lock this in with the additional words I
mentioned, and then send the bill on, and
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bossibly provoke some controversy,
should have the Minister here.

we

Senator Walker: Very good.

The Chairman: I think that is the way to
deal with it.

Senator Walker: I may be in the dark. I
may be unreasonable in asking the question,
if the present witness does not know the
Teason for this, or has no knowledge of poli-
¢y, and I presume he has not.

Mr. Ryan: Senator, one reason that comes
to mind is the fact that, unless one has the
two versions, one does not have the complete
statutes; and many law offices in Canada do
not have the complete statutes of Canada. As
You know, both language versions are
authentic and you may use one or the other
In court to find a meaning of the statutes and
this has been done as recently as October 5
in the Supreme Court of Canada.

This would put the legal profession to the
€Xpense of acquiring two separate sets, one
Which they may never use, in order to have a
Complete set of the statutes. In lieu of doing
that, of course, they only have an incomplete
Set of statutes in most offices. I can cite you
three cases. ‘

Senator Walker: You say you have one
Case where they compared the two of them—

Mr. Ryan: Just as recent as—

Senator Walker: Just a moment. Do you
mind allowing me to make my point. Occa-
Slonally, the comparison of the two comes up.
I\‘TOW, in every library there is a French ver-
Slon and an English version and it takes only
five minutes to send out the steward to get a
Copy. Now, we are talking about the 6,300
lawyers in Ontario and the 10,000 lawyers in
Canada who do not have to compare the two,
but who, if they want to, can go to a library
and get what they want in five minutes. Do
?tgu follow me? Now, what is the reason for
18?2

The Chairman: I have suggested that we
hear the Minister. Is that agreeable with the
Committee?

Senator Walker: Fine.

_The Chairman: Then we can adjourn con-
Sideration, with the request that the Minister
attend. This is no reflection on this witness.

Senator Walker: Not a bit.
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The Chairman: I just feel that we have got
into an area where this witness should not be
asked to answer.

The Witness: May I add one thing for the
clarification of the committee? This bill
relates only to the annual statutes. The
Statutory Provisions Act itself does not
inhibit the commission. This only goes to the
annual statutes.

Senator Fergusson: Then all the discussion
about the six and 12 is not really applicable?

Mr. Ryan: It is anticipating what may be
done.

The Chairman: We would be setting quite
a precedent.

Senator Walker: My friend says that, but
that is not what the Leader of the Govern-
ment said. He spoke of the Revised Statutes
of Canada. Will this require, then, a further
revision to make the Revised Statutes of
Canada, in French and English, one volume?

Mr. Ryan: I beg your pardon, senator?

Senator Walker: You say that this particu-
lar Act is applicable only to the annual
statutes.

Mr. Ryan: That is correct.

Senator Walker: But is not applicable to
the Revised Statutes of Canada.

Mr. Ryan: That is correct.

Senator Walker: Will you have to come up
with another Act to amend that, or an
amendment to this Act?

Mr. Ryan: No, sir. The commission has not
gone to print yet. If there is a reason for
them to reassess the Parliament’s point of
view, as derived through this bill, they will
probably look at what they are at the
moment proposing.

Senator Walker: You are not suggesting
that they print the annual statutes, French
on one part of the page and English on the
other, and then print the Revised Statutes of
Canada as they are?

The Chairman: No, he has not said that.

Senator Walker: As they are at the present
time?

The Chairman: No, he has not said that.
But in the priority of things, the item that
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you are stopped at at the moment is the
printing of the annual statutes. You know,
and I have a strong feeling, too, that if you
establish a precedent of the divided page in
the annual statutes you are going to carry it
through into the others.

Senator Walker: I have just one more
question. Mr. Ryan, would you be good
enough to tell us whether this policy has
already been decided? You speak as if it has
already been decided.

Mr. Ryan: The Statutory Revision Com-
mission at the moment has indicated that
they would put the revision out in the two

columns. This information, I believe, has
been indicated to the Senate by Senator Con-
nolly, if I am right.

Senator Walker: Yes, the Ileader. Yes,
exactly. So that if we pass this bill it is a fait
accompli, is it?

The Chairman: That is what you are going
to get.

Senator Walker: Exactly.

The Chairman: Well, the committee
adjourns to invite the Minister of Justice, Mr.
Trudeau, to attend.

The committee adjourned.
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THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
November 2nd, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Connolly, P.C., seconded by
the Honourable Senator Deschatelets, P.C., for second reading of the
Bill S-18, intituled: “An Act to amend the Publication of Statutes Act”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Connolly, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Bourget, P.C., that the Bill be referred to the Stand-
ing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MACNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.

10—3
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.
(11)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9:30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Benidickson, Burchill, Croll, Everett, Gélinas, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor,
Leonard, MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McCutcheon, McDonald, Molson, Pearson,
Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson, Vaillancourt and Walker. (23).

In attendance: E. R. Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel; R.

J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief Clerk of Com-
mittees.

Bill S-18, “An Act to amend the Publication of Statutes Act”, was further
considered.

The following witness was heard:
Department of Justice: The Honourable P. E. Trudeau, Minister.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report
the said Bill without amendment.

At 10:10 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.
Attest:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.

10—S5



REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-18, intituled: “An Act to amend the Publication of Statutes Act”,
has in obedience to the order of reference of November 2nd, 1967, examined
the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

All which is respectfully submitted.

SALTER A. HAYDEN,
Chairman.

10—6



THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 22, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-18,
to amend the Publication of Statutes Act, met
this day at 9.30 a.m. to give further consider-
ation to the bill.

Senator Salter A, Hayden in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we
have a number of bills before us this morn-
Ing. We have set Bill S-18, which was heard
In part a week ago, as the first on the list
today, so that we might hear the Minister,
the Honourable P. E. Trudeau. He is here
Now. I think you understand, Mr. Trudeau,
the reason why we held this bill up for
further consideration.

Honourable Pierre E, Trudeau, Minister of
Justice: I do, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Senator Walker, you raised
the question on the last occasion we met. Is
there anything you want to ask on that
Point?

Senator Walker: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Minister, first we want to welcome you as a
dlstinguished French Canadian lawyer and to
Say that the Opposition members in the Sen-
ate have just unanimously chosen a French
Canadian as our leader. Furthermore, our
fieDUty leader is also a French Canadian, as
IS the deputy leader of the Government in
the Senate.

Having said that, and with your knowing
that you have our goodwill, would you be
80od enough to tell us the reason for this
change that is being considered? I come from
Ontario, where I have been a former Presi-
dent of the Law Society. There are 6,000
lawyers in Ontario and fewer than 100 are
French Canadians. We wonder why it is that
the statutes are going to be printed, a half-
Page in French and a half-page in English,

instead of being printed as in the past, when
we were able to get a copy of the statutes
either in French or in English as we wished.
If at any time we were in doubt, we could go
to the county library and look up the
approximate section in French or in English.
Do you follow me?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: I do, senator.

Senator Walker: It has been raised with
me by literally hundreds of people. Right
across Canada, of course, the situation is
even more extreme than it is in Ontario. I
know that in Quebec and New Brunswick
there are a great many French Canadians;
but in British Columbia, Alberta, and
Saskatchewan and Manitoba, yes, they have
a few; Nova Scotia has a few; Prince Edward
Island has ncne. Do you follow me?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: I do.

Senator Walker: Of 20,000 lawyers, per-
haps there are as many as 4,000 French
Canadian lawyers. The question that I am
asking is, much as we love the French
Canadians, and much as we love the lan-
guage, why must we now have to buy the
Statutes of Canada, which are very volumi-
nous, not just in English or in French but in
one set including the two languages. Do you
follow me?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: Yes, senator. I suppose
the short answer is that bilingualism costs a
little bit, and that is the reason why we must
pay for it. The more thorough answer would,
I suppose, go into the constitutional and legal
aspects of the problem and then perhaps into
the political and symbolic.

I think it is quite clear that the bill we are
adopting now gives the Governor in Council
the authority whereby the statutes can be
published in this way. The bill itself is no
direction by Parliament to do this. But your
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assumptions are quite fair and, if I have any
say in it, the statutes will appear in the form
that you say, senator.

When I talk of the constitutional and legal
reasons, I suppose they go back to section 133
of the B.N.A. Act, that commands that the
laws of Canada shall be in both languages.
Because of the legal doctrine that arises out
of that, both languages have equal force
before the courts and in pleadings and in
legal procedures. The consequences that arise
out of that doctrine are to the effect that a
lawyer in Vancouver or Halifax, or any place
where the laws of Canada have force, is
entitled to use that version of the law which
is  most compatible < with  his case—and
indeed he is not only entitled but I would
suggest that it is the duty of the lawyer to
make sure that that version of the law pre-
vails which is the one most compatible with
justice as he sees if.

This, I suppose, in a sense is irrelevant to
the fact that not every lawyer will be using
the two languages, but, although the figures
given by the senator are, I assume, approxi-
mately right, I have met many, many English
lawyers, and other people indeed, who say
that they do not speak French but that they
can read it. I assume that many English-
speaking lawyers, while they may not use
the French language frequently, will be able
to read it. They have told me so many times.

In a very real sense, lawyers have not
got a complete set of the laws of Canada if
they do not have the two versions in their
library. I think the way we intend to proceed
is in reality the most efficient and most
economical way of making sure that every
lawyer has the complete set of the laws of
Canada and that every client consulting a
lawyer and every judge before whom plead-
ings are made will have the complete set of
the laws of Canada.

I do not have to remind you that this is not
legal fiction; this is the judgment of the Su-
preme Court and indeed of other courts that
have used one or the other language. Indeed,
they have used it even in applying the
B.N.A. Act itself to reach the proper inter-
pretation of the word “works,” in Section 92,
paragraph 10. They have used both lan-
guages and quite rightly so, because we all
know that it is very helpful sometimes in
trying to interpret a legal text. In trying to
find the exact meaning that the legislator
must have intended, it is very helpful to
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have comparing versions. I think this is an
experience that every Quebec lawyer has
had.

The Chairman: Many others as well.

Hon, Mr. Trudeau: And I suggest many
others, too, in other parts of the country. I
have heard about lawyers in Vancouver say-
ing precisely what I was saying a moment
ago, that sometimes it is useful to have the
French text in order to make a point even
more clear when arguing on some particular
statute. ;

Those, then, are the broad constitutional
and legal aspects of the matter. Now, there is
obviously another aspect of it. I could qualify
it as symbolic or political or politic, but it is
the belief of the present Government that the
recurrent waves of Quebec nationalism
which have caused dissention in this country
periodically, every generation or so, are
largely caused because of the way the Gov-
ernment of Canada has been run for 100
yvears. The way of Canadian politics has
largely resulted in the fact that French
Canadians feel themselves at home essential-
ly in Quebec, but that as soon as they leave
that province they feel that they are indeed
in their own country but not in a part of the
country where they can fulfill themselves to
the utmost of their possibilities because they
are asked to operate and think and work in
another language.

I do not think any realistic French Canadi-
an believes that the remedy to that situation
is to force everyone to speak both languages,
which is indeed unthinkable and undesirable
because, I suppose, impracticable. But in the
symbols of government and indeed in the
application of the law I think that this coun-
try would do well to take a page from the
books of other countries where more than
one language is official.

There is no danger, and I think we all
realize that, of the French ever overrunning
the North American continent or Canada,
and I believe that it would be a little price to
pay to “spoil,” in a sense, the French-speak-
ing part of this country, the French-speaking
citizens of this country who are a rightful
minority under our law and who have equal
rights at least under Section 133 so far as
concerns the laws of Canada and pleadings
in the courts of Canada and the languages
used in Parliament and its Acts. If this were
attempted, and I suggest that it is the policy
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of the present Government to try to make it
a reality, if it were attempted to at least put
the two languages on an equal footing in the
law, in all important areas there would be
equal rights of the two languages in a legal
Sense in these areas, and this is a very
Important aspect of our policies.

I want to make myself clear on this, Mr.
Chairman. It is not an attempt to introduce
sociological or economical equality between
two language groups. I think anyone who is
realistic will realize, as I said a moment ago,
that French-speaking Canadians will never
be as numerous as English-speaking Canadi-
ans or as the English-speaking peoples on
this North American continent, and it would
be futile to try to legislate that into reality.
But that they should have equal rights in the
law is something else, and something to
Wwhich we are attending, and this is the most
obvious way of doing it.

The Chairman: Mr. Minister, we already
{nade a provision of this kind in 1965
in relation to the printing of the Revised
Statutes, so that, if we do not make the
Printing of the Annual Statutes and the Re-
vised Statutes conform, we are going to
Increase very substantially our printing costs.

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: This is right, Mr.
Chairman. The Commission for the Revision
of Statutes has authority to recommend the
form of the statutes which it feels best, and
We have reason to believe that it will recom-
mend this double column form of statutes,
and I have reason to believe that the present
Government will accept that recommendation.

Senator Walker: May I ask this question:
under Section 133, of which we are very
Proud and which gives equal rights to,
among other things, the official languages,
and puts the French language on an equal
footing with the English, is there any dis-
Crimination against the French language by
reason of the fact that the English text is
Pprinted in English and the French text is
Printed in French and in separate volumes?
Having in mind that of the 20,000 lawyers in
Canada probably 16,000 would have refer-
ence to the English text only, is there any-
thing there that demonstrates an unequal
footing?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: I am tempted to answer
that by referring to a situation which is not
at all parallel but from which I suppose the
Same doctrines or the same legal phraseology
Can be used. I am thinking of the “separate

but equal” doctrine in the United States, and
while it may be a faulty parallel in some
senses, in others it is very real. Here I am
referring of course to the interpretation of
the equal rights for the Negro citizens of the
United States which applied for nearly 100
years, until the decision of the Supreme
Court in Brown versus the Board of Educa-
tion in 1954, which I think was a turning
point in the legal and political history of the
United States, and constituted a turn from
the separate but equal doctrine to the doc-
trine of complete integration. This meant that
you were not giving equality to Negroes if
you gave them separate schools; you were
giving them equality if they were completely
integrated into your system of education. I
hate that comparison because of some of the
implications involved but I am not sure that
some of the thinking that underlies it should
not enlighten us on the discontent which has
troubled this country periodically and which
is troubling it to a very serious extent now.
If you take the position that both languages
can be made equal by being made separate,
and we are talking, of course, now in a very
limited sense about the physical publica-
tion—but if you take this approach to the
problems of this country, chances are you
will indeed make the French and English
separate and equal, but then that is what
separatism means. “We will separate from
the rest of Canada and we will be equal to
the rest of Canada and we will have our
laws in French and you can have your laws
in English. This solution is the only one to
the discontent that this country has known,
because we have seen over 100 years of
Confederation that we can never be com-
pletely integrated into Canada, that we can
never really say that the Canadian Govern-
ment is really our Government, the Govern-
ment of both language groups. We can never
say that the Canadian Government is any-
thing else but the expression of the collective
will of English-speaking Canadians.”

Look at all the symbols attached to the
central Government—you know the griev-
ances and there is no point in my repeating
them. But this, I suggest, is the ultimate
consequence of the approach which Canada
has used for 100 years in this very little
matter of publication of statutes. This is a
symbol of the politics of this country, and I
think that any country should essentially be
tested by the way its legal system meets the
challenges of the times, and I think a great
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nation is one which has a great legal doctrine,
and in that sense of course our nation may
not be great.

Senator Walker: We are, I hope, treating
this as a legal problem and not as a political
problem. Your suggestion is that by printing
one page half in French and half in English
you are helping to find a solution to a prob-
lem of unity rather than having the French
is one volume and the English in another and
so cutting down the volume and cost of
printing to whoever is buying it by one-half.

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: I am not sure that the
cutting of the price would amount to a
reduction by one-half. I was given to under-
stand that the increase in volume by using
this bilingual version would be in the region
of 25 per cent, and I understand that this is
done by reducing the size of the printing. It
is also apparent to me that if you have two
volumes, or, indeed, facing pages, you have
four margins instead of three...

Senator Walker: Whatever
arrange it it is still twice as much.

Senator Benidickson: There is also the
question of the size of the volume; it is
doubled whether you have it in your library
or whether you have to take it into court.

way you

Senator Walker: I appreciate this fine
point you are making and on the high level
which most of us missed. I have been con-
stantly at the Bar for 36 years and was
Parliamentary Assistant to the Minister of
Justice and I have been in the Supreme
Court of Canada twelve times, and I have
never in my life had occasion to look at the
French language version of the statutes. I am
not an international lawyer nor am I a con-
stitutional lawyer, but I think I have been
involved in practically every other kind of
case.

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: Every statute can be
argued from the text in both languages. That
is the point I was making earlier, and I am
sure that if you had had the French text in
front of you in various cases it might have
been a convenient way for you to make some
additional points.

Senator Walker: Well, there was a French
text there and of course there is one in every
legal library and every county library across
the country.
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Hon. Mr. Trudeau: We know how that
works out in fact. You may have a French
version somewhere down in the courthouse
library but you may not have it in your office
and if you are working on a case and you
have both versions in your office I think you
will have an edge over your opponent.

I cannot, Mr. Chairman, contradict the
honourable senator too much on the other
point. It is obviously a little less convenient,
perhaps considerably less convenient, for
some people to have the two-text edition
because of the heavier weight of the volume
or the slightly increased space taken up by
the volume, but I can only repeat what I said
at the outset that bilingualism costs a little
bit. It costs a little something to have si-
multaneous translation and it costs a little bit,
indeed, to print the laws in both languages,
and it will cost more and more, I guarantee
you, as time goes on, because the B.N.A. Act
says that both languages can be used in the
courts of Canada. There are many examples
of which you and I know where a French-
speaking lawyer or litigant finds it very diffi-
cult to put his case forward in front of some
of the judges of our federal courts. I think
that judges themselves are aware of this, and
I suppose we will have to find a remedy for
it sooner or later, and that too will cost a
little. It costs a little to have bilingualism on
letterheads of the Government and on public
buildings, and so on. But I suggest that this
is one concrete way in which the citizens of
Canada in the provinces which are farthest
removed from Quebec will be made to realize
that this is indeed a bilingual country, and
they will be a little less shocked when
French-speaking communities in that par-
ticular remote province ask that their lin-
guistic rights be respected.

We heard a premier of one of the prov-
inces not so long ago assure us that French
would never be put on an equal footing in
his particular province. But I suggest that he
is mistaken from the word “go,” because
French is on an equal footing in his particu-
lar province—it is before the federal courts
in that province, and it is in the two versions
of the laws of the federal Government in
that province—and if our policy is realized in
the matter of publication of statutes he will
have the French language on an equal basis
with the English language in his particular
province, and on the shelves of the lawyers
of his particular province, and it might be a
contribution to the education of some of
these people.
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Senator Walker: Mr. Minister, I would be
the last person ever to do anything to make
French anything but on an equal footing. My
Suggestion is that if it is the French text,
then it is in one volume, and if the English
text, then it is in another. That is the conclu-
sion I have come to, and if I thought it
derogated at all from the rights of French-
?anadians I would be the first one to oppose
it. Do you follow me?

Hon., Mr. Trudeau: I follow you, senator.

Senator Macnaughion: On the political
basis, I agree entirely with the remarks as
€Xpressed by the minister this morning. On
the practical basis, as a practising attorney in
Montreal, it is almost mandatory to have
your French version alongside your English
version, and you can clutter up your whole
desk with the English and French versions. It
Would be of practical use to us to have the
two versions side by side.

The Chairman: In the same volume?

Senator Macnaughton: Yes, in the same
Volume. I happened, by coincidence, to have
the tax convention supplement between
Canada and the United States in front of me,
and I would assume, inasmuch as this is side
by side, that all treaties and, in fact, the
announcements from External Affairs and
other departments are side by side. So, on a
bractical basis it is a very useful measure.

The Chairman: Are
Questions?

there any other

Senator Everett: Mr. Minister, in a conflict
between the languages, could you tell me
Which is the dominant in interpretation, or is
there a dominant language?

. Hon. Mr. Trudeau: The courts have fol-
lowed a rule which I can only paraphrase,
that they will use whatever language appears
to them to correspond best to the intention of
Parliament: they will use sometimes the
French, and sometimes the English; neither
version has priority over the other. And the
courts use one or the other in order to estab-
lish the closest approximation they can to
What Parliament really intended. By looking
at the two versions, as often happens, we
Understand well what one word means by
Seeing what it says in translation.

Senator Evereit: So you would say then,
Mr. Minister, that by printing the versions
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side by side you improve the degree of inter-
pretation that is available to the lawyers and
to the courts?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: That is exactly my
point, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: You improve the
expedition.

Senator MacKenzie: In international situa-
tions, like the United Nations, where two,
three, four or more official languages are
used, do you know what is done in such
cases?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: Yes, I think I can
answer that, Mr. Chairman. In cases where
you have more than two official languages, as
is the case in the United Nations and as is
the case in at least one country, Switzerland,
where they have, as we all know, four official
languages, three of them being working lan-
guages of the state, they do not attempt to
have the three languages on the same docu-
ment, which would make three or, in some
cases, four or five parallel columns on the
same page. They have “separate but equal”
documents there, but it is clearly a matter of
convenience because in other countries where
they use two languages—and I think this
point was made to you at your last commit-
tee meeting by Mr. Ryan of my department
——countries like South Africa, Belgium, Ire-
land, they have both languages in the same
volume, sometimes on facing pages, some-
times on parallel columns of the same page.
So, in so far as we can be enlightened by the
practice of other countries, I would say that
Canada is not as progressive as all other
bilingual countries.

Senator MacKenzie: On this point, it is
conceivable in the world we live in that
Chinese may become a relatively important
language in British Columbia. I give that as
an illustration of the situation in other prov-
inces, but it is peculiar there because of the
vast population of China across the Pacific,
and it is conceivable that we might find our-
selves in the kind of position the United
Nations is in of what you might term a
multiplicity of languages.

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: That is a perfectly
valid point, Mr. Chairman, and I would not
hesitate to suggest that if tomorrow or in 10
years’ time or in “X” number of years there
were 10 million Chinese Canadians, we
would be pretty hard pressed not to make
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Chinese one of our official languages. This
can apply to Ukrainian or German or any
other national language. When there is
grouped within a state a very considerable,
substantial minority which speaks its lan-
guage and intends keeping on speaking it, I
suggest that state has to reassess its position
as to what languages will be official.

Senator MacKenzie: I agree completely.

Hon., Mr. Trudeau: But if and when we
reach this stage, senator, I am quite sure that
we will have to reassess the situation. And as
we probably will not be able to print French,
English, Chinese and Ukrainian on the same
page, we will then get back to the separate
but equal texts; but whether we have it
within one state or by separating the country
into three or four sovereign states is some-
thing upon which I cannot speculate.

Senator Leonard: Might I ask the minister
and Senator Macnaughton, in view of the
fact they are both members of the Bar of
Quebec, whether or not the views they have
expressed here as to the desirability of this
form of publication for members of the Bar,
particularly in Montreal, the City of Quebec
and Quebec province generally, represent the
views generally of the Bar of the City of
Montreal, the Bar of the City of Quebec, or
whether there may have been similar
requests for this type of publication? Is that
a fair question to ask, whether you do repre-
sent generally the views of the Bar?

Hon, Mr. Trudeau: I think Senator Mac-
naughton’s point—and I agree with it 100 per
cent—is that the laws of Quebec do appear in
this form now, and it is obvicusly an expres-
sion of the desire of the legislators, the law-
yers and the judges of that province.

Senator Leonard: It is a general feeling?

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: Well, I do not know.
Senator Macnaughton has more experience
with lawyers than I do, and with the courts,
but I would presume from the fact this is the
way the laws are printed in the Quebec stat-
utes, that this would be the general feeling.
However, I bow to the senator’s greater
acquaintance with the law.

Senator Macnaughton: I have not can-
vassed the Bar on that particular point, but‘I
would be amazed if the opinions expressed
by the two of us this morning were not
acceptable to the Bar generally.

Senator Leonard: That is the point I Would
like to make. )

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: There is a final point I
would add which has not arisen out of any of
the questions, but about which we might
think. We are working more and more with
the idea of the computerizing of the law,
both the case law and the statute law, and in
some circles in the United States they have'
made great progress with this. J

In our department Mr. Ryan is looking at
it with intent, and I must say I have been
doing some reading on it too. We are entering
into an age where computers will be not only
useful but indispensable to the workings of
the law. If we want to have a more efficient
legal system, and if we want to make more
efficient the work of the lawyers in the
courts, we will more and more have to get
our laws, and, I suppose, our judgments, on
tapes in order that by feeding the informa-
tion into a machine we will have, in a 'few
seconds, the result of research which would
take a lawyer or a judge many days to
accomplish by going through the cases.

By having the laws on the same page in
the same version the taping of them will be
made much simpler, and we shall be able to
do away with a great mass of cross
references.

Senator Croll: Mr. Minister, do you think
the extra money that will be spent on print-
ing will be saved by the computers in domg
away with judges and lawyers?

The Chairman: I was thinking it mlght do
away with the Court of Appeal.

Hon. Mr. Trudeau: It might eventually do
away with ministers of justice.

The Chairman: Are you ready for the
question? Shall I report the bill without
amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Whereupon the committee concluded 1ts
consideration of the bill. Y
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
November 1st, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Mec-
Donald moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Beaubien (Proven-
cher), that the Bill S-21, intituled: “An Act to amend the Food and
Drugs Act”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Farris, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MacNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.
(12)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 10:10 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Benidickson, Burchill, Croll, Everett, Gélinas, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor,
Leonard, MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McCutcheon, McDonald, Molson, Pearson,
Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson, Vaillancourt and Walker—(23).

In attendance: E. R. Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel; R.

J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief Clerk of Com-
mittees.

Bill S-21, “An Act to amend the Food and Drugs Act”, was further con-
sidered.

The sub-committee, appointed to report on Senator Molson’s amendment
respecting the promotion of “LSD”, distributed for the consideration of the
committee a draft of a proposed new section 47, to be inserted on page 4
immediately after line 21. Text of the amendment can be found in the evi-
dence following.

The following witnesses were heard:

Department of National Health and Welfare:

Dr. A. C. Hardman, Director, Bureau of Scientific Advisory Services.

M. G. Allmark, Assistant Director General (Drugs), Food and Drug
Directorate.
Others:

Dr. Myron M. Arons, Chairman, Department of Psychology, Prince of
Wales College, Charlottetown, P.E.L

Dr. Stanley Krippner, Senior Research Associate, Department of Psy-
chiatry, Maimonides Medical Centre, New York, N.Y.

Dr. John H. Perry-Hooker, Medfield State Hospital, Harding, Massa-
chusetts.

Mr. K. Izumi, Architect, Regina, Saskatchewan.
Senator Thorvaldson suggested that Dr. Hoffer of Saskatchewan be in-

vited to appear before the committee. The suggestion was taken under con-
sideration.

Consideration of the said Bill was deferred to the next meeting of the
Committee.
At 12:35 p.m. the committee proceeded to the next order of business.
Attest.
Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 22, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-21,
to amend the Food and Drugs Act, met this
day at 10.10 a.m., to give further considera-
tion to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, at the
last sitting of the committee, it will be
recalled, we considered various sections of
this amending bill, and then a subcommittee
Was set up to consider appropriate language
In which to phrase an amendment in line
With the thinking of Senator Molson and
others. Copies of this proposed amendment
are being distributed now.

(Text of draft amendment)

“47. (1) No one shall teach or advocate
by word or deed or any other means of
publication or communication whatsoev-
er the use of a restricted drug, whether
by possession, possession for trafficking
or trafficking, where such word, deed,
publication, or communication is reason-
ably and ordinarily calculated or likely
to lead, encourage or induce anyone so
to use a restricted drug; but this prohi-
bition shall not apply to the publication
of a report or to fair comment on any
such word, deed, publication, or com-
munication.

(2) Every person who violates subsec-
tion (1) is guilty of an offense and is
liable

(a) upon summary conviction for a
first offense, to a fine of one thousand
dollars or to imprisonment for six months
or to both fine and imprisonment, and
for a subsequent offense, to a fine of two
thousand dollars or to imprisonment for
one year or to both fine and imprison-
ment; or

(b) upon conviction on indictment, to a
fine of five thousand dollars or to impris-
onment for three years or to both fine
and imprisonment.”

I might tell you that while this is the result
of the work of the subcommittee, it is not
that of the whole subcommittee. I was able to
consult Senator Walker and also Senator
Molson. I was not able to consult Senator
Thorvaldson. While I spoke to Senator Croll,
I have not obtained any particular view from
him up to this moment.

So, the subcommittee is putting before this
committee a suggested amendment to deal
with this question of those who may in some
form advocate or encourage the possession
for trafficking of the drug which is commonly
described as LSD.

In the meantime we have received requests
from a number of people who wish to be
heard on the substantial question of the
quality of the LSD—its goodness as opposed
to its badness. We have present today four
representatives who wish to present views,
and file some material. The first on the list
that I have is Dr. Myron M. Arons, chairman
of the Department of Psychology, Prince of
Wales College, Charlottetown, Prince Edward
Island.

Our usual practice has been to hear per-
sons who desire to make representations in
connection with bills that are before us. Am I
right in assuming that that is the view of the
committee in relation to this bill?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I would think that whatev-
er is said, and whatever representations are
made, should fit into the context of the fact
that this is Canadian legislation and is based
on considerations and existing situations in
Canada.

Dr. Arons, would you like to come for-
ward? In the first instance, I take it, Dr.
Arons, that you will make a presentation
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within the limits and the subject matter of
the bill, and then if the members of the
committee have any questions you will deal
with them. Will you please proceed?

Dr. Myron M. Arons, Chairman, Depari-
ment of Psychology, Prince of Wales College,
Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island: Thank
you very much, sir. Before proceeding to give
a summary of the brief which the members
of the committee find before them, I should
like to mention that I have come here to
speak to this honourable committee because I
feel there is a great urgency involved in
almost all legislation at present dealing with
LSD. Apparently this concern is shared by
quite a number of people, and I have only
recently learned that many of these persons,
had they known that the bill was being put
through in Canada, would have come here
personally at their own expense.

Because of the same concerns, three very
distinguished gentlemen volunteered to come
here with me today to present testimony con-
cerning this bill. After I have made my ini-
tial presentation I should like to introduce
them to you, and also give you a list of
others who have contacted me. I think you
will agree that this list contains the names of
some of the most distinguished and knowl-
edgeable people in the field of psychedelic
research in the United States, Canada and
England. This list was obtained in great has-
te—actually ten days ago. On November 10 I
sent out a questionnaire, and I received
responses to it, and I hope to be able to put
those responses in as testimony, if they will
be accepted. Later I shall ask permission to
do that.

Permit me first to begin by summarizing
the brief which you have before you. This is
a rather extensive brief and, therefore, I
have also had printed a summary in English
and in French, in the hope that that will be
helpful to the French-speaking members of
the committee.

Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee, my name is Myron M. Arons, and I
am presently chairman of the Department of
Psychology at Prince of Wales College, Char-
lottetown, Prince Edward Island.

I appreciate this opportunity to appear
before your committee to present this tes-
timony relevant to Bill S-21. It is my hope
that the evidence I am presenting will aid
the committee and the Senate in the creation
of a well conceived and realistic LSD bill. It
is my belief that Bill S-21 is not satisfactory

Standing Committee

legislation. Why? Because bills similar to
S-21 have been passed in the United States
recently. Often these bills have been passed
by states during a period of hysteria. Legisla-
tures have been pressured into them, and in
many cases little or no relevant scientific or
professional = testimony was heard before
passage.

Not only have these bills failed to diminish
the distribution of LSD by unauthorized per-
sons, such as students—high school and col-
lege students—but they have on the contrary
had the effect of radically curtailing supplies
to authorize persons, such as doctors and
researchers. The fact is that since the enact-
ment of legislation like Bill S-21, all indica-
tions are that the use of LSD among students
has increased while the number of research
projects on LSD has drastically declined.

I cite in my brief a survey which I took of
my own freshman class at Brandeis Universi-
ty in Boston. This survey was taken siX
months after Massachusetts had passed its
LSD legislation. It showed that a signifi-
cantly larger percentage of students admitted
taking LSD than had been the case in the
freshman class prior to the passage of this
legislation. This was last year, 1966.

The Chairman: This is not through yet, you
know.

Dr. Arons: I was speaking of the analogous
bill in Massachusetts. I am sorry I did not
make that clear.

Senator Walker: You say here “since the
enactement of legislation like Bill S-21.”

The Chairman: “Like,” yes.

Dr. Arons: Meanwhile, research has de-
clined to the point where there are only 12
remaining authorized human LSD projects in
the entire United States. What is more, LSD
legislation in the United States has served as
fertile ground for the growth of criminal
weeds. It is my understanding that a new
purple flat tablet nick-named “Mafia acid”
has already appeared in New York City.
Since I wrote this I find it has appeared in
New Orleans, San Francisco, Chicago, Detroit
and several other cities, and Dr. Kripper is
here to tell us about some of the analyses of
these tablets which have appeared.

Thus, not only has a criminal market
already started to build up in the United
States, but also the criminally produced drug
can be extremely dangerous. What is more,
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since L.SD has been made illegal—and I am
speaking here of the United States—persons
who do take the drug illegally and who are
adversely affected by it are now afraid to
seek professional help. A person who may be
adversely affected simply will not go to a
doctor or go to seek the help of any profes-
sional person.

Senator Molson: Why not?

Dr. Arons: He is afraid of being arrested.
He is afraid that if he goes to a doctor
somebody will discover he has taken LSD.

The Chairman: Except, doctor this bill
which we are considering does not make the
use of LLSD an offence, only possession and
Possession for trafficking.

Dr. Arons: Perhaps this specific point
would not be valuable in terms of your par-
ticular legislation.

Senator Mbolson: That would be supposition
on your part then?

Dr. Arons: About this?
Senator Molson: Yes.

Dr. Arons: I do not know whether Dr.
Krippner has any evidence concerning this.

Dr. Stanley XKrippner, Senior Research
Associate, Depariment of Psychiatry, Mai-
monides Medical Cenire, New York: In Massa-
chusetts the law provides that any doctor
who treats a patient for LSD disturbance has
to report to the state health authorities with-

in 72 hours the state and name of that
patient.
Senator Molson: The same legislation

applies in the case of venereal disease, does it
not?

Dr. Arons: Yes it does. There is a sad irony
connected with LSD legislation passed in the
United States. The only thing which has pre-
vented the criminal element from flooding
the market with LSD is that a large quantity
of this drug, in most cases of good quality, is
being produced by students, usually chemis-
try students. These students, probably well
meaning and zealous in their beliefs in the
favourable effects of LSD, are now, along
with those who distribute and others who use
it, eriminals according to the law.

These effects point out the gross inade-
quacy of present LSD legislation in the
United States. The legislation was not realistic
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because it was ill-conceived during periods of
hysteria and was not based on the objective
understanding of (1) the characteristics of the
drug, (2) the effects on the user, (3) the type
of person who uses the drug, (4) the realities
involved with enforcement for the particular
drug, and finally the indirect adverse effect
legislation would have on research.

In my brief I have touched on each of
these points. To recapitulate, L.SD is only one
of a large and rapidly expanding number of
closely related psychedelics. In some ways it
is less offensive than many of the others. For
example, it does not cause nausea as some of
the other psychedelics do, and for this reason
has become popular. In fact, in some circles
LSD is already considered passé.

I mention this to point out the great num-
ber of related psychedelics, almost an infinite
variety, that are on the market, so the legis-
lation for, particularly, LSD is futile in a
sense. All these drugs have relatively similar
effects.

The Chairman: It is a method elimination,
if you decide it should be eliminated,
although your eliminator may not work col-
lectively as rapidly as you would wish if you
wanted to clean out all the types of psyche-
delic drug on the market.

Dr. Arons: Actually it is not really the
psychedelies right now. Before this some of
us had not even realized the potential of
morning glory seeds, and it turns out that
morning glory seeds and banana peel have
been turned into giving a psychedelic reac-
tion, and it must be pretty hard to ban morn-
ing glory seeds or banana peel.

The Chairman: I was not suggesting it in
that fashion. I was suggesting that if you
create certain offences in connection with
possession and trafficking you may not move
quickly enough to bypass the number of
them that come along, but you may keep
pace.

Dr. Arons: Perhaps I might -continue,
because I believe I shall be touching on that
point as I go along.

Despite great newspaper publicity to the
contrary—and I think this is very important,
because I am discussing now the effects of
the drugs, and this is one of the things that
has been very much played up in the news-
papers, and in common parlance is what we
have been talking about. There have been
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discussions and these are the feelings and
ideas of people at the universites. I am
speaking scientifically now; I am speaking to
you as a scientist, as a man who has done
research in this area and gone to the material
and the studies that have been made.

Senaior Walker: Just on that point, your
qualifications. Are you a doctor of medicine?

Dr. Arons: No, a doctor of psychology.

Senator Walker: Exactly, so you do not
profess to know anything about medicine?

Dr. Arons: No. I am talking about research
in terms of scientific psycholog'cal studies
that have been done on LSD by other
scientists.

Senator MacKenzie: These are medical

researchers?

Dr. Arons: Many of them. Many are psy-
chologists, psychiatrists, research workers,
many people in many different areas.

Senator MacKenzie: This is evidence pro-
vided by the medical profession?

Dr. Arons: Yes, sir. I will purposely avoid
giving any medical testimony. We have Dr.
Perry-Hooker here who will speak for the
medical profession. Let me just speak as a
man who has looked through all this material
now and done research and scientific studies.

The Chairman: With a background of
professional training in this field?

Dr. Arons: Yes, at university, research cen-
tres, and so on.

Despite great newspaper publicity to the
contrary, there are as yet no known irrevers-
ible psychological or physiological effects
from the use of the drug. Some studies have
suggested the possibility of chromosome dam-
age under certain conditions. There are
exactly three studies in fact. I do not at all
want to minimize the importance of these or
laud LSD. However, more recent studies—
and you will find one of these recent studies
in the appendix of the brief—have found no
such damage. From the point of view of
criminal and anti-social behaviour related to
drug effects, at the minimum, alcohol is a far
greater menace in this respect.

Senator Everett: What do you mean by the
term “at the minimum”?

Standing Committee

Dr. Arons: I mean that if I wanted to be
very hard about it, I would say that alcohol
was an infinitely greater danger in this respect
in terms of criminal activity and in terms of
anti-social behaviour than LSD, both rela-
tively and in numerical terms.

In fact, a much more characteristic effect
of the drug is to lead the subject to a strong
belief in peace, love and religion.

Senator Croll: Is that bad, doctor?
Dr. Arons: I would ask you that, sir?
Senator Croll: I am asking the question.

Dr. Arons: I just mentioned here—and
then I cut it off—and it may be I should
repeat it. I have very strong feelings in this
particular area and I think I should not let
my own subjective feelings enter into it as a
scientist. But let me repeat it, because I have
a strong feeling about it.

Of course, during the current United States
conflict in Viet Nam these values can be
viewed by some as anti-social. The values I
am talking about are, of course, those of a
belief in peace, love and religion. In our
present state of conflict I am afraid they are
being viewed as anti-social, because they do
not go along with particular views in the
United States.

There are many acknowledged favourable
effects of the drug. It is for this reascn that
suppression becomes so very difficult. And
for this same reason, the drug is of great
interest to researchers in many fields. And, to
repeat, under supervised conditions the drug
is relatively harmless.

You will find in my brief testimony to that
effect.

The Chairman: If you stop there for a
moment—there is nothing in this legislation
that we are considering that would prevent
research and study on what the applications
and the beneficial effects might be, or the
deleterious effects. Research is not being
interfered with at all by this legislation.

Dr. Arons: Yes, sir, I am quite aware that
ostensibly research is not being tampered
with; but that in fact almost all senators
want to encourage research.

Senator Everett: The first sentence on page
3 states “and there are as yet no known
irreversible psychological or physiological
effects from use of the drug.”
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Dr. Arons: That is right.

Senator Everett: The last sentence of the
Same paragraph says: “And, to repeat, under
Supervised conditions the drug is relatively
harmless”. Is the last sentence a contradic-
tion of this?

Dr, Arons: Unfortunately, in my brief, in a
Summary, I have not been able to . . .

Senator Everett: I appreciate that.

Dr. Arons: I have mentioned in the brief
that there are dangers to the drug, but what
_I want to show is that these dangers are not
Irreversible, that is to say, there are dangers
In the sense that, under certain circum-
Stances, and it is relatively rare, but nonethe-
less a person can get what we might call a
feeling of bad judgment. He feels that he is
as light as an angel and won’t ever hurt
himself if he falls. If he really takes himself
seriously on that point, he is liable to fly out
of the window.

_ An hon. Senator: It is irreversible then, is
it not?

Dr. Arons: I suppose it is something the
Same as asking me if I wanted to fly while
drinking alcohol and I killed myself. That
Would be irreversible, too.

But I mention “irreversible” in the usual
Sense of this word, that for example we
know that methedrine—we are given to
understand, at least, that with methedrine a
certain damage is done. This is what I meant,
and I am afraid that when you asked me
then whether there is any danger or, for
€xample, whether we get some rather bizarre
reactions, I must say it takes normally two
days, in some unusual cases as much as a
couple of months, for those effects to be dis-
bersed, but they do not return, as far as we
know. I am simply stating our knowledge as
it is at the present time. It may turn out that,
five years from now, something may be
discovered.

Senator Everstt: May I ask a supplementary
Question? In reversing the effects, is it
Tequired in certain of these cases that the
Patient receive medical attention, or will the
effects reverse themselves in some fraction of
time?

Dr. Arons: I think that depends. I think
that in certain instances medical care can
actually maintain the effect. For example, in
the paper that I have written I cite an exam-

ple where, if the doctor has a panic attitude
and comes to the patient as if he were a
psychotic, this could actually perpetuate
these effects and does perpetuate them. If so
it is very important that the medical profes-
sion be very much enlightened about LSD.
The point is that all doctors do not really
know that much about LSD. So if you go to
the right doctor you probably would be able
to have these effects dispersed immediately.

The Chairman: All that you are saying
now would appear to be just that we are
dealing with a potentially dangerous drug.

Dr. Arons: The point I am really trying to
make is that we have gone over the litera-
ture on this matter. I must admit that I
myself have been pulled into all of this and
without going through the scientific studies,
reviews, newspaper articles and so forth, I
became panicky about this drug potential
and I did talk to my students about not
taking LSD, and so one, and so forth. But
when I sat down and started doing some
objective analysis, asking how many studies
actually showed that there has been an
adverse effect, how many people, for exam-
ple, actually committed suicide, I found, that
despite all the publicity—this may be very
surprising to you but there is evidence to
support this—that this does not turn out to
be a dangerous drug from our present point
of knowledge.

Senator Burchill: What I want to ask
about is the statement here that there are
many acknowledged favourable effects of
this drug. I want to know what the favoura-
ble effects are.

Dr. Arons: I am coming to that, sir. I will
come to these favourable effects and I have
written them up in detail in the brief. Let me
state what some of the unfavourable effects
are. Some of the effects that I say are quite
often found. If I may use the language and
the jargon of the people who take the drug,
these are in terms of what is usually called
“a bad trip”. You probably have heard of
this “bad trip”. It means that the person
under certain circumstances starts to see or
recognize scmething about himself. There is a
kind of a self-deception which he has discov-
ered, which can be very upsetting. It is
more the sort of thing that we perhaps find
in psycho-analysis. Persons who come to psy-
cho-analysis often come to the point where
they learn things about themselves which
upset them. This can be dangerous, quite
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obviously, but when it occurs in psycho-anal-
ysis it is in the presence of a medical man. If
this reaction should take place in somebody’s
house or somebodys’ basement or in a school
classroom, this obviously could be extremely
dangerous from the point of view of the
person. He is not likely to die from it. No-
body has ever died from it, as far as we
know. There have been no deformed chil-
dren, out of the hundreds of thousands of
people who have taken LSD, not one case
that has been shown of permanent irreversi-
ble effect.

I realize that 1 am saying something here
that seems rather shocking, but it requires
sometimes going right to the source and
finding out whether we have not been hear-
ing a great number of distortions about this.
I tried to do this, and I would be very happy
if somebody would present me with definite
data showing me that these effects have
incurred in any greater number than would
have occurred, for example, with alcohol.

Senator Walker: May I do that,

briefly?

very

Senator Thorvaldson: I would suggest that
the witness be allowed to read this brief,
because I think it could be more intelligent if
we heard the stories in it and then we can
proceed.

Dr. Arons: In general the drug is taken not
by criminal elements but usually by students,
intellectuals and persons seeking creative and
religious experience. The effects depend very
much on the personality of the taker and on
the evironment. Thus, some persons may
benefit greatly from the drug use while oth-
ers may be relatively unaffected, and still
others may be adversely affected. This is no
more surprising than if we go to a house
party and we all take the same amount of
alcohol. We are going to see some persons
react one way and others reacting another
way. We have seen this with others drugs. It
happens with LSD.

There is much evidence now to indicate
that LSD can have very beneficial effects on
certain types of people, to take but three
examples: schizophrenic children, alcoholics,
and potentially creative persons—there is a
much longer list in my brief—and sound
legislation must take these beneficial effects
for certain persons into account as well as
the adverse effects the drug may have on
other persons.
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On page 28 of my brief I list some of the
really serious difficulties involved in trying to
enforce LSD legislation. I shall not repeat
these in full but only mention three of them.
The first is the great ease with which it can
be produced. As I said, I just read the other
day where an eight-year old, using one of
those chemistry sets that you buy for Christ-
mas, produced LSD. I suppose the kid was
pretty bright, but nonetheless that indicates
just how easily LSD is produced. The second
is that the drug is colourless, odourless and
tasteless, and the third is that enough L.SD
can be soaked in a sheet of writing paper to
supply a user for a month. Legislation which
does not take these difficulties into account is
simply not realistic and can lead to the seri-
ous consequences I mention above.

Finally, though no legislator intentionally
sets out to discourage research the fact that
the legal supply of LSD in the United States
was withdrawn from the market, and given
over to one government agency, the National
Institute of Mental Health, has led to the
following practical consequences: First, only
the most conservative and thus often the
least useful of studies are authorized by this
agency. I have so much support from this
from all the men in the field that I think you
will find this irrefutable. Second, authoriza-
tion for research and medical use is given to
a very few applicants and only after long
periods of processing and the filling out of
impossible questionnaires—and I mean
impossible questionnaires. Third, grants are
almost unattainable. Four, the stigma
attached to working with an illegal drug
places the reputation of a researcher in seri-
ous jeopardy.

Professor Abraham H. Maslow, now Presi-
dent elect of the American Psychological
Association, totally abandoned all of his
research, all of his potential research in LSD
which had to do with his peak experience in
self actualization. Many of you are probably
very familiar with Dr. Maslow. He simply
could not risk having his work and reputa-
tion put into jeopardy.

Mainly for these reasons, research on LSD
which nearly everybody agrees is necessary,
and which represents one of the most pro-
mising areas of study in science today—and
this may be really one of the biggest break-
throughs in science in the twentieth cen-
tury—has practically come to a dead stand-
still in the United States.
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In my brief I mention that there are only
12 remaining studies. As it turns out now,
since I started to write this down, that num-
ber has been reduced to eight. Furthermore,
many doctors cannot prescribe the drug for
those persons whom they believe would
greatly benefit from it.

I conclude my brief by offering positive
recommendations for legislation in this area.
Taking all of the problems which I have
stated into account, I suggest, and many of
my colleagues are of a similar opinion, that
designated supervised regional LSD centres
be established throughout Canada. These
could be at universities and/or in hospital
clinics, This would permit a safe outlet for
those who want to use the drug and who
would benefit the most from it. At the same
time these would serve as research centres.
Centres similar to this have been set up in
Scandinavia and in England for other pur-
Poses. These centres and the supply of the
drug should be under the control of the
competent staffs, doctors and psychologists
and researchers. In the meantime, doctors
should be permitted to prescribe the drug,
with no duress, to patients whom they
believe will benefit from its use. It turns out
that this has not been the case in the United
States, even though there was no attempt at
all to discourage reasearch in the same way as
you are making no such attempt, neverthe-
less these are all the side effects.

At the very minimum I recommend that
the legislators seek as much objective tes-
timony as possible before enacting any legis-
lation. An international conference on LSD is
to be held in Chicago the beginning of 1968.
Would it not be a shame if Canada’s
representatives arrive at a conference to
explore the best ways of legislating for LSD
Wwhen just a few months before an inade-
quate and even dangerous LSD law had been
put on its statute books? Would it not be so
much wiser to await the conclusions of such
a conference and profit from such interna-
tional testimony?

Thank you for permitting me to to speak
before this honourable body.

Senator Croll: Mr. Chairman, may I ask
one question? Doctor, please tell us some-
thing about yourself, your background, edu-
cation, your expertise; in other words, what
qualifies you to come here?

Dr. Arons: Yes, sir. First let me say in all
humility that T am not the best person to be

here. I tried to state that in my brief. I came
here because of personal interest, in the
sense that research, my own research in the
United States at a university was again dis-
couraged. I was unable to receive material to
do this research. I came to Canada because I
had the feeling or the belief that in Canada
this sort of research would be permitted.

As to my background, I am an American
citizen. I was born in Detroit. I received a
bachelor of arts degree at Wayne State Uni-
versity in Detroit. I was a member of the
Psi-chi honour society. I went on to the
University of Paris where I did my studies in
philosophical psychology there. My studies
were done on the subject of creativity. My
thesis was written on that subject, and dur-
ing my research at that time, although it had
nothing to do with LSD since I did not know
of its existence, I became very fascinated
with certain accounts of very highly creative
persons who were talking about experiences
very similar to experiences reported concern-
ing persons taking LSD. It did not click, if
you will, until a little bit later when I began
to speak to some of these creative per-
sons—persons accepted as creative by virtue
of being poets, writers, artists and so on—
and then also speaking to some of these peo-
ple who were taking the drug. I then began
to realize that there was some great potential
in terms of creativity involved in this drug.
It was at that peint that I became extremely
interested, but I still was not involved in
research in any way; I was just simply curi-
ous. I read a lot on it in order to do this kind
of research. I returned then to Brandeis
University where I became very, very inter-
ested in the problems.

I began to talk to some of my students and
also to some of the professors over there,
many of whom, such as Dr. Maslow, had
been doing research but had cut it off, so I
decided at one time to start a project myself.
First of all, I used myself as a subject, and
this was before the use of LSD was illegal in
Massachusetts, before they had passed their
laws, and I took 300 micrograms of LSD
under certain conditions, and I kept very
careful notes and observations of this. Then,
over a period of a year and a half, on two
different occasions, I took another 300 micro-
grams, which is the average amount that one
takes.

I become highly convinced that research in
this area was extremely fruitful. However,
by the time that I got round to starting the
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actual research project, the supply had been
withdrawn. Some of my colleagues had
attempted to apply to the National Institute
of Mental Health for LLSD, but they were not
able to receive it and so I simply, along with
everybody else, abandoned the study.

I then talked to a gentleman at Prince of
Wales College, Professor Robert Carter, who
is the head of the humanities there. He men-
tioned his own particular interest in the
philosophical insights that were being report-
ed in LSD experience and what potential
there would be in studies in this area. He
interested me very much and suggested we
could do combined research on this project.
Based to a large extent on this project, I
dec'ded to accept the position at Prince of
Wales College. Actually it was last January
that I assumed the position and started my
work this semester.

Senator Isnor:
Canada in 1967?

Dr. Arons: Yes.

This was your entry to

Senator Ismor: And you were at Wayne
State University?

Dr. Arons: I went to Wayne State Univers-
ity. I started in 1949, but I was out for some
time in business and in other places. I
returned in 1957 and finished with a Bache-
lor of Arts degree in 1961. I finished that and
had gone to France by 1962. I returned from
France with a doctor’s degree in 1964.

Senator Walker: You asked for some up-
to-date results to disprove what you said. At
page 337 of Senate Hansard, our most distin-
guished medical senator, Dr. J. A. Sullivan,
read into the record this result published in
May of this year by Dr. Donald B. Lauria,
Associate Professor of Medicine at Cornell
University Medical College. That is a well
known university with a good medical col-
lege, is it not?

Dr. Arons: Yes.

Senator Walker: And this is part of what
he said:

Used promiscuously wunder uncon-
trolled circumstances, L.SD is extremely

dangerous. It is absolutely unpredictable.
Of the 114 cases hospitalized. ..

We are now getting down to specific cases. ..

...at Bellevue during a recent 18-month
period, 13 per cent entered the hospital

with overwhelming panic. There was
uncontrolled violence in 12 per cent.
Nearly 9 per cent had attempted either
homicide or suicide. Of the 114, almost
14 per cent had to be sent on to long-
term mental hospitalization, and half of
those had no previous history of under-
lying psychiatric disorder.

Now, you wouldn’t dispute that, would

you, doctor?

Dr. Arons: I would not dispute it. But I
would say there are many ways of interpret-
ing these things. Let me put it to you this
way. Just before I came here, two days ago,
a lady came into my office and told me that.
her husband, a student of mine, was in
Riverview Hospital in Charlottetown, Prince
Edward Island. He had been arrested and
taken there for the attempted murder of two:
girls on the street. He was wild and resisted
arrest. Now, I had known this student at the
academic level but not at the psychological
level, and he had seemed to me to be a very
fine student. I went over to the hospital and
there discovered through being told by the
psychiatrist that he had been under the influ-
ence of alcohol, that he had resisted arrest
and that complaints had been made that he
had tried to take two girls off the street and
kill them. Now this havpened under aleohol.
I am sure we are all familiar, or we should
be if we read the newspapers today, of the
effects when people get in a panic and have
reactions from alcohol.

Senator MacKenzie: Mr. Chairman, we are:
not at the moment considering the evil effects
of alcohol and I helieve many of us may
have our own opinions on this matter.

The Chairman: I said to the witness earlier
that the scope of our consideration is the bill
as it stands and what it contains. I think it
was agreed that it does not interfere or
inhibit research and controlled experiment.
The bill deals with extending the coverage of
this restricted drug and to create certain
offences of possession and possession for
trafficking. The question that we have to
decide is this: Is it a potentially dangerous
product to be permitted to be dealt in freely
and not to be under control?

Dr. Arons: My own observation here, and T
have the backing of a number of people
because I did not want to give my own
background exclusively on this matter—some
of them are among the most recognized
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authorities in the field of LSD research in
the United States, Canada and the United
Kingdom—

Senator Molson: Have you read this book
that Dr. Sullivan referred to the other day?
It is entitled, Lysergic Acid Diethylamide
(LSD) in the Treatment of Alcoholism. It is by
Reginald G. Smart, Thomas Storm, Earle F. W.
Baker, and Lionel Solursh. Have you read it?

Dr. Arons: No.

The Chairman: All I am trying to do as
chairman is to keep the discussion within the
relevant limits. The purpose of this bill is to
provide that LLSD shall be a restricted drug,
and to create certain offences in relation to
Dossession and possession for trafficking. It
does not interfere in any way with research.
Therefore it seems to me that evidence ad-
duced here should be addressed to the ques-
tion whether or not this is a potentially
dangerous product to be permitted to be used
indiscriminately by people or whether there
should be some control in its use.

Senator McDonald: Could I ask the witness
one question? I understand you said to the
committee that one of the reasons you came
to Canada, to Prince of Wales College in
Prince Edward Island, was that some of the
e€xperiments you had been doing in the Unit-
ed States were no longer possible and you
thought that in coming to Canada you could
carry on some of that work? Are you con-
ducting experiments and doing research into
LSD at Prince of Wales College now?

Dr. Arons: No. I have waited to find out
what the situation would be concerning this.
Many of my colleagues in Canada have writ-
ten ond volunteered the information that
Wwhat they had been doing has been aborted
and for that reason I have held up my own
studies.

. The Chairman: You want to see a change
n this legislation?

Dr. Arons: Yes. I am sure nobody wishes
to prevent or inhibit research, but I am
Spe~king from experience of the effect that
Similar legislation has had in the United
States. All I am saying now is that some sort
of guarantee for research should be put in.

The Chairman: But surely that would
apply only if research should be endangered,
and that brings us to the question of the
administration of the law and surely we
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don’t get into that until after the law is
enacted.

Dr. Arons: I was hoping we might learn
from some of the experiences of our neigh-
bours to the south.

Senator Gershaw: Mr. Chairman, if you
turn to page 7 in this brief you will see
where Dr. Smith has come to certain conclu-
sions. He said that under properly supervised
circumstances the drug is relatively safe.
However, if any drug of unknown purity and
unknown quality is taken in unsupervised
circumstances it can be extremely dangerous.
No one can tell what the results will be. The
effects may last for a day and they may last
for the rest of a lifetime. Unfortunately in
the United States the circumstances predomi-
nating were largely responsible for the
adverse reactions of LLSD. I would like to ask
the witness if he doesn’t agree that the same
thing applies in Canada, that these unknown
results from the use of an extremely danger-
ous drug, an impure drug, if taken by certain
people without supervision can be extremely
dangerous.

Dr. Arons: Yes, sir. I totally agree that this
is the real problem. Most of the adverse
effects come, it appears, either from impuri-
ties, if a drug is not pure, or if it is teken in
excess dosage or in circumstances where the
person could have an adverse psychological
effect when there is no guide. The point I
was trying to make here was that ironically
it seems to have turned out just the opposite.
The “Mafia acid” LSD tablet, which I under-
stand has been analyzed and found to have
strychnine in it and no LSD at all, is all
over the United States, because a legal and
pure supply is not available. I am very upset
by this and this is why I am prompted to
come here, because what is happening in the
United States is very dangerous.

Senator Gershaw: That is about all the bill
proposes to prevent.

The Chairman: There is a danger in get-
ting on a parallel line, and the two lines will
never meet, in following this argument of Dr.
Arons where we seem to be in agreement
with the fact that under unsupervised -cir-
cumstances the use of this product would be
extremely dangerous. When you are dealing
with this sort of thing and you provide cer-
tain prohibitions in legislation and you do
not interfere in any way with the research
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element, you are permitting an area for
research under supervision.

Senator Walker: Is not that the bill at the
present time?

The Chairman: Yes.

Dz. Arons: I think it boils down to this
particular question: Would the bill in any
way, directly or indirectly, inadvertently cre-
ate a situation such as we are trying to
describe here as existing in the United
States, where research has been stopped vir-
tually and where the ability to obtain an
impure drug has increased tremendously, and
where the children are using the drug under
unguided and unsupervised circumstances?
Cstencibly, there was no bill in the United
States which prohibited research. In  fact,
everybody was in agreement that research
should go on and that these things should be
taken in supervised conditions, but what I
am really concerned with is what has been
the effect of this legislation. In the United
States it has been placed, in the national
legislation, under the Institute of Medical
Health, and it has become impossible for
researchers to get the drug. Because of the
panic that took place professors did not want
to risk their reputations, and there were
other things. Would the bill you are present-
ing here have a similar effect, or can some
guarantee be put into the bill which would
prevent this?

The Chairman: The only guarantee is that
the bill does not legislate against research; it
does not legislate against the use of the drug,
other than in the areas where offences are
created—that is, possession, possession for

trafficking.
Dr. Arons: There are two well-known
researchers—Dr. Hoffer has been doing

research with alcoholics in Canada, and Dr.
Jensen—who have written to me, and I want
to present this testimony, that just in the last
year the drug in Canada has become impossi-
ble to get. I do not know what your previous
status was on this drug. Was it a controlled
drug before?

The Chairman: It was a drug, and the only
prohibition was the sale.

Dr. Arons: And even since this the Canadi-
an representatives who sent back the ques-
tionnaire told me their own research has
been hindered. They are long letters, and I

do not intend to read them, but I would be
glad to present them to the committee.

The Chairman: I appreciate everything
you are saying, and I know the committee
does, but we have a bill before us that deals
with certain aspects, and there is nothing in
the bill which would limit in any way
supervised research. Therefore, we must
assume there will be an intelligent adminis-
tration under the Food and Drug authorities,
and proper research will not be interfered
with, until it is demonstrated otherwise. I do
not know why they have had these d.fficul-
ties in the United States. It may well be their
administration is not geared to the problem,
or they are trying to shut off things too fast
and a lot of people get frightened. It is a fact
that the pendulum in the United States will
swing higher and lower faster than it will in
Canada. In Canada there is an area in
between; we never get as high on the high
side or as low on the low side. This is the
way you have to look at it, through our
glasses.

Senator Evereit: In appearing before this
committee is not the doctor changing the
emphasis that he put on the proposed legisla-
tion in his brief? Now he seems to talk about
the problems that this proposed legislation
will place on valid research.

I would like to refer him to page 28 of his
brief, recommendation No. 2, where he
states:

... no penalties should be imposed for
simple personal possession and use.
Legislation should be primarily aimed at
anti-social behaviour, as is presently the
case with aleohol.

If T read that recommendation correctly,
doctor, it would appear to me that you are
suggesting that there be no legislation at all
in the reference to LSD because that is legis-
lation that might refer to the purity of the
drug and its over-use, as in the case of
alcohol. Is that correct?

Dr. Arons: Yes, the fact is, and I have to
state this as frankly as possible, that no
legislation will be able to be enforced with
regard to LiSD, as far as the use of the drug
is concerned. So, given this fact, what do you
do? It seems to me that if you pretend to try
to enforce it, all you do is to sort of make a
fool out of the law. This is what is happening
in the United States, and I mentioned this
because it is unrealistic. You cannot stop it.
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It is like turning on a salt machine in the
ocean,

\ Senator Evereti: Is not what you are say-
Ing that the only legislation the Government
could possibly pass that would be realistic
would be in relation to the Food and Drugs
Act, as to the purity of the drug itself, and
there is no other legislation that could rea-
Sonably or effectively be passed by a
government?

Dr.

) Arons: I was suggesting indirectly that
if we

set up open channels for the use of the
drug, that would guarantee the purity of the
drug, so that the people who obtain these
Wwill find them pure, and you will also gua-
I'a'ntee research at the same time and there
Wwill be no criminal outlet being created.

Senator Everett: And you would also gua-
rantee unrestricted use?

Dr. Arons: I would not want to guarantee
Unrestricted use. In fact, the American feder-
al legislation has no penalty for personal use
as far as I know. I think there are many
states in the United States that have placed a
Penalty on personal use, and these have been
total failures. The American federal legisla-
tion has been much more reasonable.

The Chairman: It seems to me we are
Starting to go round in a circle with the
doctor, and we are coming back to the same
Point quite a number of times. We have more

Witnesses and possibly we should move
along,

Senator Molson: I want to ask a question
Or so, because in his evidence Dr. Arons
made some categorical statements. He said
there had been no irreversible effects shown
Yet, and he said the statement that chromo-
Somes were damaged had been proven to be
Wrong by a later study which he has as an
appendix marked 1-B.

Dr. Arons: May I correct that? In essence
We do not say it has been proven to be
shown wrong. We say that one study has
been presented, and then another study has
been presented which disputes the first study.

Senator Molson: Perhaps I used the wrong
Word, but the inference there—I have not
had time to read all of this appendix in
detail, but in glancing at it I see that at the
bottom there are the names of those present-
ing the paper, namely, William D. Loughman,
Thornton W. Sargent and David M. Israel-
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stam, and just above those names is this
paragraph:

Note added in proof: Since submission
of this paper a comparable study sup-
porting conclusions opposite to our own
has been reported.

Dr. Arons: Where are you, sir?

Senator Molson: This is at the bottom of
Appendix 1-B.

Senator Burchill: Is it on the first page?

Senator Molson: No, it is on the last page,
just above the signatures of the three gentle-
men from the Donner Laboratory. The para-
graph continues:

Also, a paper has been called to our
attention reporting a half time of LSD in
vivo in human plasma essentially identi-
cal to that which we calculated from the
mouse data.

So when you state categorically there has
been no proof that chromosomes have been
damaged, I would point out that there seems
to be some doubt in the minds of the gentle-
men who wrote this paper.

Dr. Arons: This is generally the way a
paper is finished. This whole area of chromo-
somes is left in the air. I did not mean to tell
you that this was a definitive study. What I
meant to say was that all publicity had been
given to the fact that there had been great
damage, and this study was set up to try to
verify that—to try to find out if, in fact,
there was such damage.

Senator Molson: They do not find such
damage, and then they find that a further
study suggests there is damage. So, we are
right back where we started. There are vari-
ous studies proving various things.

The Chairman: I would point out that
there are other witnesses present this morn-
ing. I understand that Dr. Krippner has
something to say for our consideration, with-
in the guidelines I have laid down. Would
you like to come up here, Dr. Krippner, and
give your qualifications?

Dr. Stanley Krippner, Senior Research
Associate, Depariment of Psychiairy, Maimo-
nides Medical Cenire, New York: Yes. Dr.
Arons has a full list of my qualifications, and
I should like to say that if the snow abates I
have a plane to catch a little later this
morning.
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I am Senior Research Associate in the De-
partment of Psychiatry at the Maimonides
Medical Centre in Brooklyn. This is my tenth
trip to Canada. I come up frequently to do
workshops for teachers in Montreal, Toronto,
Port Arthur, Fort William, Hamilton and
Guelph. My educational background is in
psychology, and I am working in a psychia-
tric unit at a hospital.

My own area of competence in the LSD
field is a number of surveys I have made on
the illicit usage among teenagers, college stu-
dents and artists, of LSD and associated com-
pounds. My first paper on LSD was printed
in 1962. I presented a paper to the American
Psychological Association on LSD in 1967,
and in 1968 four additional papers of mine
will be published in four separate books,
coming out in the United States. I think that
that is sufficient for the time being.

The Chairman: Now, on the point with
which we are concerned in respect of this bill
have you any presentation you would like to
make?

Dr. Krippner: Yes. I think we should stick
very closely to the point here, because I
certainly share the concern of the senators in
respect of restricting the use of LSD. Of
course, in my opinion, there is no doubt
about it. LSD is a potentially very dangerous
drug, and legislation is certainly needed. The
question, therefore, comes down to: what
type of legislation should there be?

One of my medical colleagues, Dr. Walter
C. Alvarez, one of the most distinguished
medical men in the United States, and
Emeritus Professor of Medicine at the Uni-
versity of Minnesota, has given me a letter
which he has allowed me to present to the
committee. I am in total agreement with the
contents of this letter and I should like to
read it to you:

“I am much opposed to the passage of

any laws to make illegal the sale or use
or possession of LSD for several reasons.

First, as we all know, the law to pro-
hibit the sale and use of aleohol was a
terrible failure, which made matters only
worse.

Second, the law to prohibit the sale
and possession and use of heroin has
been a pathetic failure.

Third, any effort to stop the sale and
possession and use of L.SD is almost cer-
tainly doomed to failure because LSD
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can so easily be made; because without
color or smell or taste it is extremely
difficult to recognize; and because the
dose is so extremely small that a man
could bring into our country thousands
of doses in a fountain pen.

Finally, the passing of a law against
LSD will serve only one purpose and
that will be to interest mildly psychotic
boys and girls to get some of the drug,
and to try it on themselves. Only if LSD
is ignored can we hope that the present-
day fad of using it will pass. Let us
remember that LSD is not an addictive
drug like heroin.

Also, any prohibitive law would be
unfortunate in that it would almost put
an end to research with the drug carried
out properly in scientific laboratories.

Sincerely,

Walter C. Alvarez, M.D., Emeritus
Professor of Medicine, University of
Minnesota, Professorial Lecturer, Uni-
versity of Illinois.”

Senator Isnor: He is speaking of American
laws?

Dr. Krippner: Yes, he is speaking of
American law, but he said I could use this,
and present it to this committee for whatever
benefit it may have.

I have one question I should like to ask the
senators in respect to the putting of L.SD on
the list of restricted drugs. I should like to
know which other drugs are on the list and
which are currently being used in medical
research.

The Chairman: Dr. Hardman, can you give
us that information?

Dr. A. C. Hardman, Director, Bureau of
Scientific Advisory Services: Under the pro-
posed legislation the only one mentioned in
the schedules is LSD. There are no other
hallucinogenic substances.

The Chairman: Schedule J, which is set up
by this bill, has only the one item in it at the
present time, but I gather the witness’s ques-
tion was in respect to what controlled
drugs—this is in respect of a restricted drug,
and his question was directed to the area of
controlled drugs. I think his question was
that general.

Dr. Hardman: The only other drugs are
those in the barbiturate and the ampheta-
mine groups.
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The Chairman: What about research in
connection with them?

Dr. Hardman: These are legally available
to any physician in Canada who can pre-
scribe them. The regulations under the con-
trolled drugs legislation, or part of the Food
and Drugs Act, provide for the prescribing of
those drugs by a physician. That is under the
controlled drugs legislation. The position with
respect to LLSD is that there has not been a
demonstrated medical use for it at the pres-
ent time, and consequently it is not general-
ly available to the medical profession to pre-
scribe. The regulations which provide for its
disposition to various research workers are
contained in Division 7 of the Blue Book, and
these enable the minister to authorize the
sale to a recognized institution for laboratory
research or for clinical research.

Dr. Krippner: Therefore, am I right in
understanding that LSD will be the only
drug that bears the title “Restricted Drug”.

Dr. Hardman: That is in the bill that is
before the Senate at the present time. I can-
not say what other drug will be placed on
the restricted drug schedule. This will be
related to the demonstrated abuse of other
drugs in Canada. If there is a demonstrated
abuse then there will be a recommendation to
!:he Governor in Council to place other drugs
In the schedule.

Dr. Krippner: That is fine. That is very
helpful.

Dr. Hardman: This is legislation which
Wwill enable the Governor in Council to take
action in respect of placing drugs on a
Testricted schedule.

_The Chairman: Just on that point I should
like to say that there is authority in the Food
and Drugs Act for the Governor in Council
to make regulations providing for exemptions
from the generality of the prohibitions that
You have in the statute, and particularly in
Subparagraph (j) of subsection (1) of section
24 the authority is that the Governor in
Council may provide by regulation for
exemption of any food or drug from all or
any of the provisions of the act, and pre-
Scribe the conditions of such exemption. So,
there is full authority to deal with it.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, has the
doctor any more evidence for us?

Dr. Krippner: I think it would be pertinent
to read into the record the former statement
27231—23
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of Dr. Lauria, who was cited a few minutes
ago in terms of the Bellevue cases with
which I am in full agreement. Dr. Lauria
says in a book LSD and Society published
this month by the Wesleyan TUniversity
Press:

I think we are in a real dilemma. In
1964 there were about 70 licensed inves-
tigators of LSD, in 1965 39, in 1966 31,
currently only 16.

Since the book has come out it has gone
down to a smaller number. Here we have
some evidence of one kind from Dr. Lauria
showing the decrease in research as the
laws went into effect in the United States,
laws that had absolutely mothing to do with
research. The only thing I am pleading for is
that in the legislation being considered—and
I understand LSD is the first drug to be
banned as a restricted drug—no patterns will
be set which will in any way damage
research. For example, can you think of the
difficulty a professional scientist might have
with his colleagues if he were to do research
with a drug that had been banned as a
restricted drug? Why not call it a research
drug? Why not do something else to make
research possible?

In terms of LLSD having no medical use, I
would disagree. I think the evidence is very
clear. Dr. Pahnke and Dr. Kast have said
that LSD is of proven value with terminal
cancer patients. This evidence is summarized
in this book as well as in medical journals.
Both Dr. Pahnke and Dr. Kast are physicians
who have done research on terminal cancer
patients, and have been able to relieve their
pain and ameliorate their condition during
the last days of life. I think there is no doubt
that there is a demonstrable medical value in
LSD.

The Chairman: We are not interfering with
that in any way. Do you think we may be,
based on what has gone on in the United
States?

Dr. Krippner: Yes.

The Chairman: We do not think so, but we
will find out.

Dr. Krippner: In addition, let me mention
just two other things. The first country
which outlawed LSD was South Africa, set-
ting the pace for what has been going on. On
the other hand, interestingly enough a great
deal of LSD research currently goes on
behind the Iron Curtain. No LSD research



goes on in Africa since the drug was

outlawed.

Currently an editorial in the International
Journal of Addiction comments that the
United States legislation on LSD may well
have brought into the United States a new
wave of McCarthyism and those of you who
remember the McCarthyism era of the early
fifties would, I am sure, dread this to take
place. To be specific, the editorial states:

Whether it was wise to dub these
drugs as ‘“dangerous” and call in the
police to protect us from them is no
longer open to question. The police have
been brought into the picture. What
remains to be seen is whether they will
act with restraint, whether the profes-
sions concerned with drugs will be bul-
lied, whether black markets and bootleg-
gers and new subcultures are forced into
being, and whether, in short, we allow
ourselves to be whipped into an “Anslin-
gerist hysteria” about this problem. If
that happens, orgies like McCarthyism
and the Palmer raids may look pretty
tame in retrospect.

< A case history was cited in which the
police broke into a party of college students,
and when they could not find any LSD on
the premises they found some codein tablets,
called them miracle drugs and arrested
everybody in sight. This is typical of what
has come about as a result of what I consider
ill-advised legislation. Furthermore, legisla-
tion is nothing to do...

" The Chairman: Before you go on, is it
illustrative of that, or is it not illustrative of
poor administration and excess of authority?

. Dr. Krippner: If the legislation had been
clearer the administration would not have
been allowed to go to extremes.

< The Chairman: Do you not find that at
times poor administration in other areas of
criminal offence, for instance in the search
for a murderer or a person who has stolen
money, that sort of thing?

Dr. Krippner: You certainly do. This is
why legislation has to be very clear. Another
thing which I think legislation must be clear
on is what happens to people if you arrest
them when they are in the middle of an LSD
experience. You may toss them over the edge
into a psychosis, which has happened in a
number of cases with which I am familiar.
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What provision will be made to provide psy-
cho-therapy for these people in their cells
while awaiting trial?

The Chairman: Is that the way you test
the beneficial effects of the value of legisla-
tion, that if a violator of the law is
apprehended it may be a bad time to
apprehend him because he is in a certain
physical or mental condition, and if the law
permits him to be apprehended in that condi-
tion it is bad legislation?

Dr. Krippner: It is bad legislation because
it does not set up a training program for the
police to ensure they know what precautions
to use during arrest so that they do not harm
somebody in this unfortunate condition.

The Chairman: There are differing view-
points on that, doctor, as you will agree.

Dr. Krippner: No, I do not think there are,
because so many police in New York City—

The Chairman: What I mean by that is
that I have a different view from the one you
are now expressing. If people violate the law
they should be apprehended.

Dr. Krippner: That is very true.

The Chairman: If they have to, within the
capacity of the persons who apprehend them
care is exercised, but there is a limit to what
you can expect, and there is a limit to what
the violator of the law can expect.

Dr. Krippner: I think it is a question of
compassion and humanity.

The Chairman:
I think.

There is a limit to that too,

Senator Isnor:
S-21?

Have you read this Bill

Dr. Krippner: Yes.

Senator Isnor: Have you any objection to
any clause in the bill, and if so, which
clause?

Dr. Krippner: This is the whole point.
Canada is embarking on a new type of legis-
lation and will be involved in this in the
future. Marshall McLuhan predicted what is
going on right now with that sort of chang-
ing experience. I think the legislation should
be clarified. I think time should be spent in
drafting a propitious piece of legislation.
This, of course, is one reason for the interna-
tional conference on LSD to be held in
Chicago in February, sponsored by the Il-
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linois Medical Society, so that they can bring
Physicians and lawmakers together to pro-
Pose a model LSD bill which will hopefully
eliminate some of these problems.

The Chairman: You acknowledge that this
is a potentially dangerous problem. Within
the scope of the knowledge we now have
certain legislation is being proposed, but
legislation is not a static thing. As the area of
knowledge increases, undoubtedly the area of
legislation will vary and change in its
application. You have only to look at the
annual statutes in the United States federally
and statewise to see amendments to bills
coming up because the area has extended, or
e€xperience has taught them some more
things. We are therefore not creating some-
thing now that is static; it will move on. It
will move on from this area, and we put no
prohibitions in the way of study and
research.

Dr. Krippner: I am very sympathetic with
yYour viewpoint, because this is indeed the
Spirit that I like to see. Our point is that in
the United States it just has not worked out
this way, perhaps because we have not had
legislators of your stature and wisdom. It
just has not worked out this way. The laws
have been static. In fact, there has been no
amelioration of the situation; things have got
worse, As far back as 1962 I said that if no
measures were taken immediately the crimi-
nal underworld would enter the picture, and
they have. We now have a much worse pic-
ture on our hands than we had before the
laws were passed.

The Chairman: Is there any other ques-
tion? Is there anything else you would like to
say on this point, doctor? I have to keep the
representations within the limits of the bill.

Dr. Krippner: That is very wise, and I
think I have to get back to this senator’s
question. You ask me if there is anything in
the bill I object to. This is not the point. The
point is that the bill is too vague and unde-
fined. I think that a further study, or perhaps
some definition pushed into the bill, would
Specifically allow for research, and also
Special provisions that might be hard to set
up once the law is in effect.

The Chairman: I referred you to a section
in our Food and Drugs Act under which
Tegulations can be enacted by the Governor
in Council providing for exemptions from the

effect of the law and providing for the condi-
tions of exemption, which would be for
instance the conditions under which there
should be research.

Dr. Krippner: The same thing was done in
the United States and the research has gone
downhill.

The Chairman: We will have to see what
happens.

Dr. Krippner: I hope you will benefit from
our sad experience.

The Chairman: We have never turned our
back on experience.

Dr. Krippner: That is all I have to offer.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? Thank you, Dr. Krippner.

Dr. Perry-Hooker, is there anything, within
the guidelines that I have provided, that you
would like to address yourself to on this? If
so, would you come forward and state your
qualifications.

Dr, John H. Perry-Hooker, Medfield State
Hospital, Harding, Massachusetis: Yes, I am
John Hollister Perry-Hooker, age 44. I have a
Bachelor’s degree in chemistry from the
University of Vermont, 1944. I am a Doctor
of Medicine, University of Vermont, 1947. My
interneship was at the training hospital for
Dartmouth College. I have had three years of
residency training in psychiatry at Norwich
State Hospital and Medfield State Hospital in
the United States.

I have had one year’s training at the Law-
Medicine Institute, Boston University, and
my attention was directed primarily to this
field, the use and traffic in illegal and unau-
thorized medications.

I have had training and experience at the
Bridgewater State Hospital for the criminally
insane, and the Norfolk and Walpole houses
of correction for men, and at the Framing-
ham House of Correction for Women. I have
been the consultant for the district court of
West Newton in Massachusetts. I am current-
ly a consultant for the probate court for the
district of Dedham. I am now licensed in
three states, Vermont, New Hampshire and
Massachusetts, and I am supposed to be
qualified as an expert in forensic psychiatry.
My current position is that of senior psychia-
trist in the department of mental health foi-
the State of Massachusetts. I am at the Med-
field State Hospital and I am in charge of



legal psychiatry and the day care and
after care programs. In addition to this, I
maintain a private practice on Beacon Hill
in Boston, which is an area in which our
intelligent delinquent population lives.

My purpose in being here is to direct your
attention to the type of person that this legis-
lation is aimed at. There is no practical way
that you can separate the dealers, the dis-
tributors and the users. There just simply is
no way. I have 83 patients in my current
treatment folder. Of those, 48 use LSD social-
ly or for medical reasons. Seven of them use
LSD very heavily. Now, of those, two are
graduate students; they have a bachelor’s
degree, they have a master’s degree, they are
working on their doctorate.

The age range of these people is 16 to 26,
with one person being 36. The average age is
20. Of those, 37 have completed high school,
29 are currently in college, 4 are graduates
and 3 are graduate students. All of these
boys—they are all young men, with two
exceptions—all of these people, I think, from
reading your proposed statute, would come
under its terms.

These people obtain LSD illegally, and
through unauthorized channels. They use
things that are not standardized. They take
turns in getting hold of this, knowing full
well that if one person does it that sooner or
later he will be caught but that if there are a
dozen people who take turns getting it and
bringing it into Boston, splitting it up, then
the risk is minimized. Of these 48 people—if
you would apply the penalty of this act, you
will deal with child of one of our highest
administrative officials in the State of Massa-
chusetts; you will deal with the son of a
legislator; you will deal with the son of a
prominent dentist, and you will deal with
two sons of prominent physicians. All these
kids are sons of prominent people. That is
one of my problems. I have in treatment two
‘boys who are sons of prominent attorneys.
Since my words will reach the United States,
I cannot identify one especially, but I will
say he is a high official in the state. Several
of these boys are sons of prominent industri-
.alists. Most of them are of the middle class or
upper class.

The practical experience in Massachusetts
has been that our right to practice medicine
‘has been interfered with. Our physicians are
naturally reticent. They avoid the limelight,
and they prefer to avoid any dealings with
the law.
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At Medfield State Hospital we have an
admission rate of over 500 people a year, and
in 1966 the primarily problem of 208 of these
people was alcohol. We have used LSD as a
pilot project in the treatment of these people,
under the sponsorship of Dr. Harry Freeman
who is in charge of clinical research. We had
to stop this. We have packed up our supplies
of medication and sent them back. So that
Medfield is no longer able to do research.

A practical consequence of legislation of
this type is that in Boston we are at the stage
of interference with the lives of students. In
the Beacon Hill area where I am, it is quite
common for the police to invade apartments
at night and conduct illegal searches and
seizures.

Now, technically and finally, these boys
can be acquitted, but the publicity, the no-
toriety, has a lasting effect on their futures—
and the majority of these people are college
students. There is an alienation of these boys
from the due process of law. They view the
moral standards of their elders with con-
tempt. There is only one standard that I can
apply to these people, and that is the stand-
ard of danger.

This is a dangerous drug. However, com-
paratively, compared to other medications
that physicians use ordinarily, in their ordi-
nary practice, it is not a dangerous drug. In
my personal professional experience, LSD is
beneficial in certain types of patients, but I
cannot legally prescribe it. I would not even
attempt to. I cannot keep ordinary clinical
records. I have to maintain double sets, one
for public inspection and one for my own
private information.

I would just mention that one of the rea-
sons that people do take LSD is that it does,
in my experience, make people less comba-
tive, less rowdy.

I have one young man in particular who
was in street fights and night fights and other
kinds of delinquent activities. After taking
unauthorized LSD, half a dozen times over a
period of a few months, his personality
changed and he is quite a peaceful and docile
young man.

At our state hospital, particularly with
patients that are what we call obsessive-com-
pulsives, we would like to be able to use this
drug, but under current standards we cannot
do this in Massachusetts. In summarizing, I
will say that there is simply no practical way
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that you can separate the dealer from the
user.

The Chairman: Any questions?

Senator Pearson: Where would the dealer
obtain the LSD?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: In Boston there are two
Principal sources. We have very fine chemis-
try faculties and almost every graduate stu-
dent in chemistry is able to manufacture this
Substance. Almost any graduate student in
the Cambridge area.

) Senator Pearson: That would be unauthor-
1zed, though?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: It is unauthorized, but
there is no practical way of stopping it. The
other main source is still in Boston what they
call “osley tablets” which are manufactured
illegally in a western state.

Senator Aseltine: Do the students manu-
facture their own LSD?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: Yes, any competent stu-
dent can.

Senator Aseltine: What training do they
need in order to be able to do that?

The Chairman: None.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: Almost none. I am a
8raduate student in chemistry myself, and
although I have not done any work in chem-
Istry at all for over 25 years I think I could
8et together the proper equipment and do it.

Senator Molson: You recommend, then
that nothing be done to prevent the indis-
Criminate non-medical use of LSD? Is this
your point, doctor?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: My point is that it
should be handled like any other ordinary
bowerful medicine that a physician uses.

The Chairman: Like morphine?

.Dr. Perry-Hooker: Like morphine, codein,
‘_ilgitalis, cortisone, belladonna, and so on. It

18 irrelevant, but currently the most single

disruptin-g drugs to these students are the
amphetamines. There is mo really practical
Way to control this problem. People who use
SD are, essentially, not dangerous. People
Who use amphetamines are very dangerous.

Senator Baird: And it is not habit-forming.

.. Dr. Perry-Hooker: LSD is not habit-form-

ing,

Senator McDonald: You say that people
who use it are not dangerous?

The Chairman: People who use LSD, he
said, are not dangerous. What do you mean
by that?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: There is a problem. You
have to establish a standard of danger, but
relatively speaking compared to many other
common substances it is not dangerous.

Senator McDonald:
dangerous or is
dangerous?

Are the people not
the use of LSD not

The Chairman: Dangerous to themselves or
to the public?

Senator McDonald:
question.

That is the second

Dr. Perry-Hooker: My experience with
LSD is that it produces a toxic psychosis, if
you take inordinate amounts of it, which
does produce, according to the personality
structure or the mental illness present, cer-
tain effects. If ordinary students take LSD
they lose their sense of time. They may have
visual phenomena. They usually are peaceful.
They have an exaggerated imagination, but it
is all soon over. It is over in eight or ten
hours. Occasionally, however, people will be
disturbed for several days. If someone who is
a schizophrenic or a paranoid schizophrenic
takes LSD, then you are in trouble, but even
so you are in less trouble than if he were to
take alcohol and in far less trouble than if he
were to take amphetamines.

Senator Thorvaldson: Speaking of danger-
ous drugs, how do you classify heroin, for
instance, as against L.SD as being a danger-
ous drug? I ask that just for the comparison.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: I have only one patient
who uses heroin to any extent. In his case
there certainly is little physical danger con-
nected with it. It is essentially a preservative.

Senator Thorvaldson: That is heroin?
Dr. Perry-Hooker: Heroin, yes.

Senator Evereit: Then, doctor, what you
are suggesting is that L.SD should be availa-
ble through a physician’s prescription. Is that
correct?

Dr. Perry-Hooker:
recommendation, yes.

That would be my



70

Senator Everett: If it can be made by any
graduate chemist, then what does the
restricting of it to a physician’s prescription
do for us?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: I think it sets a reason-
able standard that this current generation
growing up will accept.

Senator Everett: Presumably, when a
physician prescribes morphine of belladonna
or digitalis, he has a medical reason for doing
s0.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: That is correct.

Senator Everett: Not a research reason, as
a general rule.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: Well, medical reasons,
you say. Our research project was essentially
a medical project.

Senator Thorvaldson: I have just one other
question. I am assuming that in Massa-
chusetts you have narcotics control similar to
that which we have here in Canada under
our Narcotics Control Act. Would you suggest
that LSD might come within the provisions
of a narcotics control act and be controlled in
the same way as narcotics are? Would that
be more feasible or logical?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: It could be included in
such a situation, I would expect. However, it
is not habit-forming and it produces no
physical addiction, so it would probably end
up as a separate category.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? We have one more witness.

Senator Burchill: I just wanted to ask the
doctor one question on something I am just
not clear on. You say doctors have prescribed
LSD in the treatment of certain patients, and
you were just mentioning some of those.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: Yes.

Senator Burchill: They have been unable
to get a supply, however, so they have had to
stop treating such patients. Is that correct?

Dr. Perry-Hooker: That is correct, yes.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I
am not quite clear on the answer that the
doctor gave me a moment ago. I am not sure
whether he is in favour of the unrestricted
availability of LSD. I think what he said
sounded rather as though he were, but that
was offset by his answer to a later question
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referring to LSD being available under the
prescription by a registered physician. Now,
would you consider that legislation which did
not prohibit its use or sale to physicians by
prescription as satisfactory? I want to know
what your point is on this doctor.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: If I may point out our
essential problem, alcohol is used socially and
medically; marijuana is used socially and
there is some evidence that there is medical
benefit from some of its substances; coffee is
used socially and caffein is used medically.
So we have a substance here that can be, i
and will be used in two ways. The students
use it socially. I expect that now 60 per cent
of the graduate student body in the area of
Boston use this at least occasionally socially.
So we have a substance which is being used
socially by the generation which is growing
up. We also have a substance that has a
proper medical use. Now, speaking medically,
I do not think anyone should use any unau-
thorized drug or medication without a physi-
cian’s authority.

Senator Molson: Would that include LSD?

042 That would
LSD.

Perry-Hocker: include

Senator Molson: Then you are not in
favour of the unrestricted availability of
LSD; rather, you are in favour of its availa-
bility under a physician’s prescription.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: No, I am not in favour
of the unrestricted availability, but I must
accept the fact that it is so used and will be.

Senator Molson: Yes, but that is not the
point. I want to know your position on it.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: My position is, medical-
ly, that it should be available on prescription.

Senator Molson: Thank you.

Senator Everett: I wonder if I could ask
the doctor one guestion. If the prohibition
was that LSD could only be used on pre-
scription, would he agree that there should
be a penalty against the physician for pre-
scribing LSD for purposes other than
research or valid medical use.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: Yes. I think it should bé
a misdemeanour.

Senator Everett: Thank you.

The Chairman: The last witness is Mr. K
Izumi, from Regina, Saskatchewan.
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Mr. K. Izumi, Architect, Regina, Saskaich-
ewan: Mr. Chairman, I come here rather
unprepared, and I ask you whether the citing
of my experience is relevant to the particular
issue at hand? I think it is a matter of
opinion. However, I would like to have the
opportunity to present another side of this
subject, because there is one area of rele-
vance concerning the draft amendment
which has just been handed to me. I would
like to deal with the question of the amend-
ment, following the background leading to
this question.

The Chairman: Well, the draft amendment
has not been considered by the committee
yet.

Mr. Izumi: What I have to say might be
pertinent if such a draft is going to be
considered.

The Chairman: I cannot predict for you
what decision the committee will make in
relation to this proposed amendment.

Mr. Izumi: I would just like briefly to state
that T am neither a psychiatrist, a physician
nor a psychologist. I am an architect, and
based on that I wonder whether the members
of the committee would wish to hear what I
have to say.

The Chairman: It is not a question of hear-
ing what you have to say; it is a question of
hearing representations which are relevant to
the substance of this bill. The substance of
this bill deals with the prohibition as to
possession, and possession for trafficking and
for providing penalties. That means if it is
potentially dangerous drug, should there be
these prohibitions. That is the situation into
which this resolves itself.

Mr, Izumi: In that regard, I am concerned
with another aspect and that is the area of
research. I am concerned with the kind of
questions that have been raised with respect
to the use and the limitations for medical
Purposes, and so on.

The Chairman: Even if this bill becomes
law, there is nothing in our food and drug
law which would prevent the Governor in
Council from passing a regulation which
would exempt research and provide condi-
tions for research in connection with this
bParticular substance.

Mr, Izumi: I think what I have to say only
bertains to the research aspect of it and I
wonder if the honourable senators are of the

opinion that they would like to hear what I
have to say.

Senator Isnor: Give him the opportunity,
Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: All I have been speaking to
are the limitations within which you should
make your representations. We are not get-
ting into a debate on the virtues, etc., of this
particular product.

Mr. Izumi: My name is Kiyoshi Izumi and
I am a partner in the firm of Izumi, Arnott
and Sugiyama, Architects, Engineers and
Planners. My educational background is
Bachelor of Architecture from the University
of Manitoba, Master in Planning from MIT. I
have also attended the London School of
Economics, and the Architectural Association
School in London to study the social sciences,
economics, law, and so on. I am located now
in Regina, Saskatchewan. I am a member of
a variety of professional associations and my
current and some recent activities have been
as consultant and advisor to various bodies,
including the Advisory Health Group of the
National Building Code, the Associate Build-
ing Committee of the National Building Code,
the Architectural Advisory Committee of
Expo and the Scientific Advisory Committee
of The American Schizophrenia Foundation.

I was a member of the survey team on
mental health for the National Institute of
Mental Health in the United States. I assisted
in the drafting of the new design and con-
struction standards for the psychiatric hospi-
tal for our own Department of Health, and I
have acted as adviser to a number of hospital
projects both in the United States and Cana-
da. Currently I am advising on the psycho-
logical and architectural research in a varie-
ty of universities both in Canada and the
United States.

My relationship with LSD arises from the
problems I encountered in designing facilities
for the care and treatment of the mentally
ill. In 1957 I participated in the use of LSD
to get a better understanding of the nature of
the problems of the mentally ill. I was made
particularly aware of the perceptual difficulty
which is pertinent in architectural design.
Subsequently I have taken LSD under very
carefully controlled conditions, and as a
result of this kind of thing and its relevance
not only to the physically but particularly to
the psychologically handicapped people, I
have expanded my work and published
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papers and given papers and participated in
discussions with respect to the psychological-
ly handicapped.

Senator MacKenzie: What was the nature
of the control when you took LSD?

Mr. Izumi: The first experience with LSD
was uncontrolled in the sense that Francis
Huxley, Dr. D. Blewett, Dr. H. Osmond and
Dr. A. Hoffer were involved and it was
thought that I should participate in this
experience as they put it, to just enjoy the
experience. The subsequent experiences were
under controlled hospital conditions in the
Saskatchewan Hospital at Weyburn and the
University of Saskatchewan Hospital.

Senator MacKenzie: How long did the con-
trol carry on?

Mr. Izumi: Until I was completely free of
the effects of LSD. In each of these situations
it was structured that I participate, for
example, in the other patients’ day-to-day
routine, specifically in terms of the architec-
tural interest which I had. I would ride up
and down various types of elevators, walk up
and down various types of stairs, look out
certain windows, and go to the top of a
high-rise building and so on, and so learn to
understand some of the behavioural difficul-
ties arising from these perceptual problems
that arose.

Subsequent experience has shown that in
my particular case, and this is where it is a
very subjective thing and not at all an objec-
tive kind of study such as the other people
have presented, that I have been able to
understand the nature not only of the varie-
ties of the mental illnesses as we have
defined them, schizophrenia and so on, but
also the problems faced by the mentally
retarded, the mentally defective, the alcohol-
ic, the narcotic addict, the autistic child, the
emotionally disturbed and the aged. From
my discussions with my colleagues, the psy-
chiatrists, the psychologists, the anthropolo-
gists, and so on, and through the use of LSD
I have been able to establish a kind of empa-
thy with this variety of people suffering from
physical and psychological handicaps.

Senator MacKenzie: Is there a continuing
process as a result of this or have these
effects come completely to an end?

Mr. Izumi: Well, I have retained some of
these effects. One of the interesting phenome-
na is that I have been able to communicate
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better with the social scientists who are par-
ticularly involved in this. For example, Mr.
Schoenbaum in his book Planning Facilities
for the Crippled Child talks about cerebral
palsy, and as a result of these experiences
and as a result of reading I began to sense
and understand their perceptual problems.
He mentions, for example, that the nature of
privacy is very significant for these children,
and I appreciate what he is getting at; and I
am able to think in terms of the physical
environment which would minimize some of
the psycho-social problems they face.

Senator Pearson: Were you able to com-
municate easier with the mental patient?

Mr. Izumi: Yes. My interest in this is not
from the medical point of view, but from the
point of view of the use of this kind of drug
and others which would be the vehicle for
many of us who are presumably classified as
normal to begin to understand the nature of
the problems of others. I have looked at it
from the point of view of the physically and
psychologically handicapped people, and my
interest in the legislation is to see that it does
not curtail this kind of research.

In the United States there had been other
architects and creative artists and people
involved in the design of the physical envi-
ronment, as it were, starting to do some
research, and I understand it has been com-
pletely stopped, not because, as the others
have pointed out, there is any specific restric-
tion but because, in part, there is a planted
fear to do this because of some of the
adverse publicity.

The Chairman: Would your answer to the
question which was asked of the last witness
—as to the conditions under which he would
support the use of this product—be the same?
In effect, he said to have it available under
supervision or on prescription.

Mr. Izumi: Yes, I would agree it could be
highly dangerous—and when I say “danger-
ous,” it is a matter of opinion. I appreciate
this because, quite frankly, although a prod-
uct of western culture, a born Canadian
educated in Canada and Europe, and so on, I
have the Oriental background and my sense
of perspective in this respect, in many cases,
I find, is in opposition to contemporary west-
ern thought.

In this respect I would like to touch upon
the philosophy, as it were, of the kind of
legislation you are presenting, and I feel I
am young enough to represent or to sense the
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feelings of the group that Dr. Perry-Hooker
talked about, in terms of its rebellion
towards the so-called government of laws. I
Wwould point out to you that unless the law
Considers not purely the intelligence of the
individual but also his emotional and other
drives behind it, the law will not be
Successful.

In this respect, as a long-standing member
of the National Building Code, and as a
brofessional planner, I have had some
experience in drafting planning legislation,
design standards, construction codes and the
National Building Code, and I can assure you
that unless the regulation is very carefully
drafted and precise—and it must leave no
room for ad hoc subjective interpretation at
the administrative level—you might as well
n_ot have it at all, because all kinds of excep-
tions and all kinds of problems arise with
Wwhich it is very difficult to contend.

I would like to refer to this amendment
—though Mr. Chairman has suggested it is
not under consideration—clause 47(1). This is
the draft amendment. If such a clause is
Inserted I would wonder if the paper I have
Just completed for the Neuro-Psychiatric Re-
Search Department in New Jersey, LSD and
Architectural Design, would be prohibited?
This is to be published by Doubleday. I do not
advocate the use of L.SD, but it is an attempt
to write objectively of my own subjective
€xperiences with LSD and its assistance, in
this particular case, in the design of facilities
for the mentally ill.

The Chairman: You have given the answer
Yourself. You have interpreted as to whether
what you have written would come within
this section. You have concluded it would
not, and I think you have reached the right
conclusion.

Mz, Izumi: Except I feel, with the view of
the current situation, some people would say
I am advocating its use.

The Chairman: I do not care what some
DPeople would say. Would you say you are
advocating in the paper you have written the
use of a restricted drug whether by “posses-
sion, possession for trafficking or trafficking”?
Is that the purport of your paper?

Mr. Izumi: No.

The Chairman: If it is not, then it would
not touch you.
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Mr. Izumi: Except one can read the first
part of it ...

The Chairman: I would not go looking for
liability.

Mr. Izumi: No, I am not looking for lia-
bility. Others have, and I have enough in-
quiries and letters to indicate this can
happen.

The Chairman: Is there anything else you
want to say, Mr. Izumi?

Mr. Izumi: No, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Any questions? Thank you
very much.

We have now concluded the evidence on
this, unless there is something further you
might want to ask some of the officials from
the Food and Drug Division who gave their
evidence some days ago.

We have before us this suggested amend-
ment to incorporate the ideas that were put
forward by Senator Molson. In view of the
publicity that our consideration of this bill
provoked last year and some of the things
that have been said during this session, in
relation to this amendment, even when we
consider the effect of it, I was wondering if
we should not have an adjournment of its
consideration and invite the newspapers or
some of those in the reporting field to come
here and let us have their views in relation
to whether, in their opinion, they think there
is any restriction of the freedom of speech or
the freedom of the press in the scope of this
amendment. Frankly, I do not think there is,
but I think we should give them an oppor-
tunity of expressing their views.

Senator Aseltine: It looks pretty drastic to
me.

The Chairman: Being drastic and being
restrictive of the freedom of the press or
speech may be two entirely different things.

All this amendment provides for is a
prohibition that:

No person shall teach or advocate by
word or deed or any other means of
publication or communication whatsoev-
er the use of a restricted drug,

...in this case, LSD...
...whether by possession, possession for
trafficking or trafficking. ..
Senator Pearson: What do you mean by
“teach”?
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The Chairman: Supposing Professor Leary
or Doctor Leary, or whatever you call him,
who is quite a public figure in relation to this
particular substance in the United States,
came into Canada and made a speech which,
while it might not teach anything, might
advocate the use of this drug, for which he
might give many reasons, and if he advocat-
ed the use of the drug by way of possession,
possession for trafficking or trafficking, then
he would come within the prohibition of this
section.

Senator Thorvaldson: Mr. Chairman, it
seems to me that if this amendment were
passed into law it would mean that all of
these gentlemen who have testified before
this committee this morning would be subject
to arrest.

The Chairman: I do not think so.

Senator Thorvaldson: I should like to hear
comments on that.

The Chairman: I do not think so, because
both the last two witnesses said they agreed
that the use of this particular substance
should be under prohibition, or under some
form of control.

Senator Thorvaldson: But at the same time
the reason for saying that is that in the
opinion of at least some of them this sub-
stance should be continually under research.
There should be research done in the future
in regard to it, because that additional
research might show that this is a valuable
substance which, under proper control, would
be useful to humanity. That is what I gather
from what they have said this morning, but I
may be wrong.

The Chairman: You must go back to the
basics. First of all, in the Food and Drugs
Act there is authority to make regulations,
notwithstanding the generality of the prohi-
bition in relation to any particular substance,
and to prescribe the conditions under which
research, for instance, might be done.

Senator Thorvaldson: I am very fearful of
regulations. I think it is the duty of Par-
liament to say what it means in regard to
this legislation. I think it is our duty first
to find out more about this substance in the
light of the testimony we have heard this
morning.
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The Chairman: I am in the hands of the
committee. Senator Molson and the commit-
tee generally last session seized upon this
idea of attempting to have some restraint
placed upon people who preach and teach
and advocate and encourage the use of this
drug. It is now in the hands of the
committee.

Senator Burchill: Mr. Chairman, there is
nothing to prevent the use of a restricted
drug. There is nothing in our general legisla-
tion to prevent a physician from prescribing
it, is there?

Senator Molson: Yes.

The Chairman: Well, Dr. Hardman says
there is no available source of supply, and
dosages et cetera are not settled at this time.
If this bill becomes law the only offences that
are stipulated are those of selling LSD, of
having it in your possession, of having it in
your possession for trafficking, or of traffick-
ing in the drug. The question then is whether
within that area you could do research with-
out some regulation under the Food and
Drugs Act, or whether a doctor could pre-
scribe—well, it would present some prob-
lems that would have to be considered. A
doctor might still be able to prescribe, but 2
problem would arise in respect to the source
of supply. That source of supply, without
some help from regulations under the Food
and Drugs Act, might be in possession, and
being in possession might be something that
is prohibited by the bill that is before us.

Senator Pearson: That is in section 45(3) of
the bill.
The Chairman: Section 45(3)?

Senator Pearson: Yes. How can they pre-
scribe if there is no such thing as the drug?
Nobody is allowed to have possession of it...

The Chairman: Where is this?
Senator Pearson: Section 45(3).

The Chairman: We are not looking at the
same thing.

Senator Pearson: It is on page 4 of the bill.

The Chairman: Yes, at the top of the page.

Senator Pearson: Subsection (3) of section
45 reads:

In addition to the regulations provided
for by subsection (1), the Governor m
Council may make regulations authoriz-
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ing the possession or export of restricted
drugs and prescribing the circumstances
and conditions under which and the per-
sons by whom restricted drugs may be
had in possession or exported.

The Chairman: Yes, it is “prescribing the
circumstances and conditions”.

Senator Pearson: How can you have
research if possession is...
The Chairman: You can only have

Tesearch if you have the regulations you
Indicated which will permit research.

Senator Evereit: Mr. Chairman, perhaps I
am out of order, but I am wondering wheth-
er it would be possible to hear from the
officials as to whether or not a clause in this
bill stating that a physician can prescribe it
for medical or research purposes...

The Chairman: While we are on that
aspect of it I would suggest that this is a
legitimate area for us to explore, and I think
We should instruct those who are here sup-
borting the bill from the department to
€xamine into that aspect of it. Have you
anything you would like to say on that now,
Dr. Hardman?

Dr. Hardman: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think
S0. The drug is contained in Schedule H, and
there is an absolute prohibition. However, in
Division 7, at the top of page 126A, are the
regulations under which the drug is legally
Mmade available by the minister to institu-
tions. Those regulations are in existence now.

The Chairman: I am talking about this
barticular drug.

Dr. Hardman: Yes, LSD.

Senator Everett: That does not answer my
Question. He is talking about the granting of
these drugs to institutions. I am talking about
the right of a physician to prescribe the drug
for research purposes or medical purposes.

Dr. Hardman: No.
Senator Burchill: He cannot do it.

Senator McDonald: Will the regulations to
Which you refer have the same effect when
LSD is moved from Schedule H to Schedule J?

Dr. Hardman: I would like to refer that
Question to my legal colleague.
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M. G. Allmark, Assistant Director General,
Food and Drug Directorate: Yes, I would say
there would be no interference whatsoever
with the meaning of the use of LSD in this
particular instance.

The Chairman: So, even if this bill
becomes law in the form in which it is now,
or as it may be amended in the particular
way we are discussing, there is nothing in
the present state of the law or the regula-
tions which would prevent the continuance
of research in relation to LSD?

Mr. Allmark: None whatsoever.

The Chairman: And there is nothing which
would permit, now or thereafter, a physician
to prescribe LSD?

Mr. Allmark: That is right.

The Chairman: So that would be an
offence. Inferentially it might be an offence
for him to prescribe, but somebody has to be
able to find it first.

Senator Pearson: Yes, that is exactly my
point.

Senator Evereii: Would it be possible for
the committee to examine that possible
amendment?

The Chairman: Yes. I do not think it is
something that you want to make a snap
decision on. What we should do is have Dr.
Hardman and Dr. Crawford and the other
representatives here from the Food and Drug
Directorate to study this aspect of it, and
report to us at our next meeting. They might
also at the same time consider, and express a
view on, if they wish, what has been present-
ed by way of amendment today.

Senator Thorvaldson: I would also suggest
they give us their views in regard to the
problem of research. I am sure the committee
would want no obstacle placed in the way of
the supply of LSD to these research people.

The Chairman: No. Dr. Hardman and Dr.
Crawford have both said no that under the
regulations as they now exist the minister
makes available to institutions this drug for
research, and there is nothing in this bill
which would cut that off. So, that question is
dealt with.

Senator Pearson: Except for possession.

Dr. Perry-Hooker: I have just one com-
ment to make. When you have a publicly
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appointed and publicly paid body of men
which makes the decision whether the drug
is to be allowed to be used for research
purposes, is there anyone in Canada with
sufficient courage to do this in the face of the
notoriety and bad newspaper. ..

The Chairman: You may be surprised at
the answer you will receive. I know what
it is. Dr. Hardman?

Dr. Hardman: According to our records, in
the last year there have been some 20 insti-
tutions in Canada that have procured sup-
plies legally.

The Chairman: Yes. It is not often that you
get such a fast answer to a question.

Senator Molson: Might I ask Dr. Hardman
and his associates to consider the question:
Why should LSD not be available for pre-
scription in the same way as many of these
other dangerous drugs and narcotics are?

Dr. Hardman: The experience with this
particular drug indicates that it is not the
direct action by itself that is effective. The
studies which are being carried on are
studies of a total regime. It is a psychiatric
counselling. The drug enables the psychia-
trist to communicate with his patient, so that
measures of its effectiveness are more meas-
ures of effectiveness of the psychiatrist’s
work than they are of the actual drug action.
Our concern at the present time is that all
members of the medical profession generally
do not have the broad experience in this type
of work. The drug would not be of use to the
majority of members of the profession. It is of
use in research and in certain clinical studies
to people who have special training in its
use. You cannot compare it with digitalis,
which is a drug with a direct action in a
disease. This is a method employed by psy-
chiatrists as part of a total counselling
program.

The Chairman: It may be true that within
the area you have described there should be
some consideration given by way of regula-
tions so as to permit controlled use.

Dr. Hardman: The problem with our regu-
lations is that one of the schedules enables a
drug to be handled through drug stores and
through outpatient departments to be admin-
istered in the home. From the information we
have available about LSD at the present time
we feel that until we have more scientific
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information about its wvalue it should be
restricted to an institution. In other words,
these people must be under careful observa-
tion during the period in which the drug is
having an effect. There is no mechanism in
our regulations to restrict a commonly pre-
scribed drug only to hospital use. The net
effect of this particular regulation as it is
presently employed is that in those institu-
tions that have been given exemption to pur-
chase the drug a number of psychiatrists are
using the product on their patients in the
institution.

The Chairman: If it has that application
why should the psychiatrist be authorized to
make use of it only in treating a patient in
an institution, where it must have some
beneficial effect, and not be able to secure it
for the treatment of a patient outside an
institution?

Dr. Hardman: Comparing this with other
drugs, the pharmaceutical company which
put in the submission on this particular drug
has been trying to get clinical studies to
provide evidence since about 1952. The
research workers to whom they have dis-
tributed this drug have not supplied scientific
evidence to enable them to make a submis-
sion to make it freely available. In fact, the
company has withdrawn from the distribu-
tion of this drug; it does not want its name to
be associated with the use of this drug in the
United States, the United Kingdom or in
Canada, and we have had to make special
arrangements with this company and a pub-
lic agency in Canada to make this drug con-
tinuingly available to research workers in
Canada. The department has had to go out of
its way to make sure the drug was available
in Canada for research.

Certainly there is not as vast a body of
scientific information about the use of this
drug as we have on other drugs permitted in
the market. It just has not measured up as
well. We are not saying this evidence may
not be presented, but compared with the
efficacy of other drugs coming on the market
today it just does not measure up at this
time.

Senator Leonard: What do you mean by
“measure up”’? Measure up to what?

Dr. Hardman: Our drug regulations
require the manufacturer wishing to sell a
drug in Canada to provide evidence of the
efficacy of the drug and the conditions of use
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under which the drug may be administered,
and those hazards associated with its use.
This is a general drug regulation. The infor-
mation we have on LSD supplied by the
manufacturer, and from the literature gener-
ally, is not equal to that which has been
supplied on any other drug which has come
on the market recently.

Senator Leonard: I take it there is no such
thing as supplying this drug to physicians
and doctors who may be interested in per-
Sonally carrying on investigations or
research?

Dr. Hardman: Not at this stage of develop-
ment of the drug.

Senator Molson: At the present time I take
it it is released only to institutions?

Dr. Hardman: That is correct, because in
these institutions they have research commit-
tees which control the use of the drug within
the institutions.

Senator Molson: On the other hand, I take
it that narcotics are issued to physicians, but
not this drug?

Dr. Hardman: Heroin no, sir. Heroin is
banned in Canada, but other narcotics have a
demonstrated medical use.

Senator Molson: Is there a wide list of
Institutions permitted to use the drug?

Dr. Hardman: I would say it is not a wide
list. Most of these are associated with medi-
cal schools, and the research is of two types.
There is research in a laboratory which
works in different areas of the medical
Schools or para-medical schools, and also that
carried on in a psychiatric institution. It is
not wide, in that we have 12 medical schools
in Canada and a limited number of institu-
tions that are working in this area.

Senator Thorvaldson: Are all the medical
schools working in this area?

Dr. Hardman: No sir.
Senator Thorvaldson: But they could?
Dr. Hardman: They could.

Senator Thorvaldson: You have no limita-
tion on any hospital which wishes to go into
Tesearch provided it has a proper organiza-
tion, facilities, and so on?
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Dr. Hardman: Most of the major hospitals
are associated with universities. Such types
of hospital carry out research.

Senator Evereti: It seems to me that the
points raised by the doctor indicate that we
should have another meeting on this matter
and perhaps hear from representatives of the
medical profession as well, as to whether or
not there should be an amendment to the act.

The Chairman: I was going to suggest that
consideration of this bill should be deferred
until our next meeting, which will be next
Wednesday in the ordinary way. Is that
agreeable? Do not throw away the draft
amendments that we have given you, because
they will be discussed next time.

Senator Grosart: I wonder if I could make
a comment on the question raised earlier, as
to the desirability of having the press present
as witnesses or otherwise on the discussion of
this amendment. I make the comment
because I understand Senator Molson’s view-
point and sympathize with it. On the other
hand, I also understand the reason why in
certain circles, of those particularly interest-
ed in preserving the freedom of the press
and the freedom of speech, there is an
objection to it. If we say here that it is an
offence now to advocate that you break the
law—which is what this amendment says
—do we carry this into our other acts? It is
true that we say in one area it is an offence
to incite to riot, but we circumscribe this
pretty carefully.

The Chairman: Senator, would you stop
right there? In the Criminal Code there is
provision in relation to counselling to commit
any offence, and I would think advocating is
a form of counselling. Even without the
words defined in here, I would think that
under the Criminal Code, that if some person
counsels some person to use this restrictive
drug, whether by way of possession or
trafficking, that he may be charged with an
offence of counselling, under counselling
somebody to use this drug in this form, in
violation of this particular act.

We also have, under the aiding and abet-
ting sections in the Criminal Code, under
which some person who perhaps aids and
abets in the trafficking or in possession, can
be charged the same as a principal. So there
is a wide area now.

Senator Grosari: I agree with this, but if
this is so, if it is already covered by the
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Criminal Code, in respect to teaching or
advocating by word or deed the use of a
restrictive drug—in other words, this says it
will be an offence, with certain penalties, if
you counsel, if you teach or advocate, that
this law should be broken by somebody.
Now, if that is in the Criminal Code why put
it in here?

The Chairman: These words have been
selected because they do not come within the
description of aiding and abetting, and the
word “teaching” may not come within the
description of the word “counselling”.

Senator Grosari: This brings me back to
my point.

The Chairman: We are in semantics now,
and we have decided to put this bill over
until next Wednesday.

Senator Grosart: I am not a member of the
committee and may not be at the meeting
next week, but as I have been a member of
the press I understand and sympathize with
the objection of the press, which is, in my
view, a question of the freedom of speech.
There may be a proper curtailment. I am not
arguing that, but it is curtailment.

I hope the committee will consider it very
carefully in that light and take a hard look
at this suggested amendment before calling
in the press to have a look at it again and
subject the committee to the kind of criticism
that was made before.

The Chairman: If further consideration of
this bill is deferred until next Wednesday...

Senator Thorvaldson: Before you do that,
may I make one suggestion. I understand
that probably the most knowledgeable man
in regard to LSD is a certain Dr. Hoffer of
Saskatchewan, and if that is the case I won-
der whether we should not have him testify
before the committee. I do not know if he is,
but I have heard his name mentioned several
times and I think he was referred to at one
time as a physician who had done a great
deal of study on the subject of L.SD. If that
is so, could we not have him heard here?
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The Chairman: We will look into it. Furth-
er consideration of this bill is deferred until
next Wednesday.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, before we
adjourn I would like to refer for just a
moment to Senator Grosart’s comments about
the observations we had received from the
press and news media. He expressed sympa-
thy with my point of view, but I rather
object to this guilt by association suggestion
that came up here. I think the committee has
been working on the problem that is suggest-
ed by the amendment. It is true that the
initial suggestion was mine, but I would like
to say now that since we withdrew the origi-
nal amendment I am not aware of any objec-
tions being received from the news media,
and if Senator Grosart has been informed of
some objections I think he should tell the
committee. I have heard of none and I don’t
know whether you have.

The Chairman: I haven’t. I think the sena-
tor may have been working on the basis of
the old laws whereby the matters which
arose at the last session did not get into the
bill. The only thing I have seen in the news-
papers is an editorial which contained a criti-
cism of certain things which the sponsor of
the bill in the Senate said and which
referred to the press. My suggestion about
hearing the press was issued to give them an
opportunity to state their views here.

Senator Molson: The new amendment is
specifically directed, I think, to not curtailing
any freedom.

The Chairman: If that is the case they will
tell us, and Senator Grosart as a former
working member of the press will know that
himself.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Chairman, I admit
my remarks were gratuitous and were based
on my own experience that you will get the
same kind of objection.

The committee adjourned consideration of
the bill.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Monday,
November 6th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Cook
moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Isnor, that the Bill S-25,
intituled: “An Act respecting London and Midland General Insurance
Company”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Cook moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Isnor, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on
Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”
J. F. MacNEILL,

Clerk of the Senate.

12—3
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.
(13)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 12:35 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Benidickson, Burchill, Croll, Everett, Gélinas, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor,
Leonard, MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McCutcheon, McDonald, Molson, Pearson,
Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson, Vaillancourt and Walker. (23)

In attendance: E. R. Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel; R.
J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief Clerk of
Committees.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Burchill it was Resolved to report as
follows: Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the print-
ing of 800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on
Bill S-25.

Bill S-25, “An Act respecting London and Midland General Insurance
Company”, was read and considered.

The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.

London and Midland General Insurance Company:
David F. Alexandor, Parliamentary Agent.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report the
said Bill without amendment.

At 12:45 p.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.

Attest:
Frank A. Jackson,

Clerk of the Committee.
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to which was referred
the Bill S-25, intituled: “An Act respecting London and Midland General In-
surance Company’’, has in obedience to the order of reference of November
6th, 1967, examined the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the printing
of 800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings on the
said Bill.

All which is respectfully submitted. ‘
SALTER A. HAYDEN,

Chairman.

12—86



THE SENATE

STANDING COMMITTEE ON

BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 22, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-25,
respecting London and Midland General In-
Surance Co., met this day at 12.35 p.m. to
give consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: We have before us now
Bill S-25, which is a private bill. As it origi-
nated here, I think we should have the usual
motion to print our proceedings.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: We also have the Superin-
tendent of Insurance here, Mr. R. R. Humph-
rys, who will give an explanation in regard
to the bill.

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent, De-
Partment of Insurance: Mr. Chairman and
honourable senators, the purpose of this bill
I8 very simple. It is merely to change the
Name of the London and Midland General
nsurance Company to Avco General Insur-
ance Company, and, in French, L’Avco, Com-
Pagnie d’Assurance Générale. That is the sole
Purpose of the bill.

May I say that the existing company, the
London and Midland General Insurance
Company, is a federally incorporated compa-
ny, having been formed by special Act of
Parliament in 1948. It is registered with our
department. It is owned by the Avco group
of companies, the parent company being in
the United States. There is a holding com-
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pany in Canada that holds a group of compa-
nies engaged in the business of acceptance,
lending and insurance. All companies in the
group are using the name Avco as part of
their name, to identify the family of corpora-
tions. This is the purpose in seeking this
authority.

Senator Pearson: How many subsidiary
companies are affected in Canada?

Mr. Humphrys: This change will affect
only this one insurance company. They have
a number of other companies in the group
but they are not our concern.

Senator Pearson: They have the name?

Mr. Humphrys: Many of them have the
word Avco in the name.

The Chairman: Some representatives of the
company are here, namely, Mr. H. P. Pater-
no, President of Avco Delta Corporation
Canada Limited, and President of the Lon-
don and Midland General Insurance Compa-
ny; Mr. C. J. Connell, Group Vice-President,
Avco Delta Corporation of Canada Limited,
and Vice-President, London and Midland
General Insurance Company; and Mr. K. R.
Kirkpatrick, Vice-President and General
Manager, London and Midland General In-
surance Company; and Mr. David F. Alexan-
dor, Parliamentary Agent.

With the very brief and succinct explana-
tion which the Superintendent of Insurance
has given, and with the readiness I detect in
the committee to report the bill without
amendment, I wonder whether any of these
gentlemen have anything they would like to
add, in the circumstances.

Mr. David F. Alexandor, Parliamentary
Ageni: Mr. Chairman, all I would like to
say is that the primary reason for the re-
quest to this honourable Senate for the
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change of name is to make the name Avco
part of a corporate name of this insur-
ance company, in line with six other compa-
nies in the same group. There is one other
point. There is a company by the name Lon-
don and Midland Insurance Company, in
the United Kingdom, which went bankrupt
recently. There is no relationship between
the British company and this group, but it
caused considerable embarrassment to this
company, which had to contact 6,000 Canadi-
an representatives and many policyholders
as well.

I would also add that there are a number
of companies in Canada with the word “Lon-
don” included in the name. Those are basical-
ly the three major reasons for the change
requested.

Standing Committee

Senator Everett: I apologize for having a
question. I wonder if this insurance company
was incorporated originally in 1948 by the
Avco group or by someone else?

Mr. Humphrys: No, Mr. Chairman, it was
not.

Senator Everett: Can you tell me when
that was done?

Mr. Humphrys: Avco acquired control in
1962. We have had a search made.

The Chairman: Is it the wish of the com-
mittee that I should report the bill without
amendment?

Hon. Senators: Carried.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Monday.,
November 6th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the debate:
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Carter, seconded by the Honour-
able Senator Basha, for the second reading of Bill S-22, intituled: “An
Act to prohibit the sale and advertising of hazardous substances, to amend
the Food and Drugs Act and the Narcotic Control Act and to make a
consequential amendment to the Criminal Code”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Carter moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator McGrand, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee on
Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”
J. F. MacNEILL,

Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.
(14)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 12:45 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aseltine, Baird,
Benidickson, Burchill, Croll, Everett, Gélinas, Gershaw, Gouin, Irvine, Isnor,
Leonard, MacKenzie, Macnaughton, McCutcheon, McDonald, Molson, Pearson,
Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson, Vaillancourt and Walker. (23)

In attendance:

E. R. Hopkins, Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel.
R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Thorvaldson it was Resolved to
report as follows: Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for

the printing of 800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings
on Bill S-22.

Bill S-22, “An Act to prohibit the sale and advertising of hazardous sub-
stances, to amend the Food and Drugs Act and the Narcotic Control Act and

to make a consequential amendment to the Criminal Code”, was read and con-
sidered.

The following witnesses were heard: ,
Department of National Health and Welfare: Dr. J. N. Crawford, Deputy
Minister; R. E. Curran, General Counsel.

Others: Mr. Alan B. Archer, Trustee, Toronto Board of Education; J. Che-
valier, Secretary, Canadian Manufacturers of Chemical Specialties Association.

Consideration of the said Bill was deferred to the next meeting of the
Committee.

At 1:10 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 2:00 p.m. this day.
Attest:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 22, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-22,
an Act to prohibit the sale and advertising of
hazardous substances, to amend the Food and
Drugs Act and the Narcotic Control Act and
to make a consequential amendment to the
Criminal Code, met this day at 12.45 p.m. to
give consideration to the bills.

Senator Salter A. Hayden (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators we
have before us a bill to be known as the
Hazardous Substances Act. The departmental
representatives are here. Could I have the
usual motion for printing?

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made at the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The Chairman: Dr. Crawford, will you tell
us about this bill?

Dr. J. N. Crawford, Deputy Minister, De-
partment of National Health and Welfare:
Mr. Chairman and honourable senators, Bill
S-22 is popularly known as an omnibus bill,
as it does several things. The first is to for-
mulate a bill controlling hazardous sub-
stances. The need for such authority in the
hands of the department has been evident for
some time. Hazardous substances, which are
fluids, hazardous substances which are drugs,
are now readily controlled under the Food
and Drugs Act in the main; but when we are
faced as we are from time to time with the
sudden and unexpected appearance on the
market of substances which are neither foods
nor drugs but which nevertheless pose a haz-
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ard to health, we find ourselves helpless to
deal with such substances.

I think that you are already aware of some
examples of the sort of substance that has in
the past come into this category. For exam-
ple, some time ago there were some very
attractive necklaces introduced into this
country from the Caribbean area. They were
very attractive, but unfortunately they were
made from the seed of a plant, and this seed
was highly poisonous so that when eaten by
children the children suffered. This was defi-
nitely a hazard to health, but the substance
itself was neither a food nor a drug. We had
considerable difficulty getting this off the
market in time to prevent further tragedies.

Just last Christmas you will recall there
was an incident where little plastic containers
holding water were introduced into this
country from two sources, the United States
and Hong Kong. The purpose of these was to
place them in the refrigerator and freeze
them and then put them into drinks so that
they would act as coolants for the drinks.
The ones from the United States contained
perfectly good water; there was no hazard
there. But, unfortunately, the ones from
Hong Kong contained water which was con-
taminated with pathogenic organisms and if
as could easily happen the plastic container
cracked, then the drink in which the ice was
placed equally became contaminated and was
a hazard to health. We had great trouble
getting these products off the market,
although they were potentially a hazard to
health.

There are many similar examples of sub-
stances, neither foods nor drugs, which are
hazardous to health, and we are seeking au-
thority to deal with them in two ways. In the
first place, we want to be able to quickly and
without delay get truly hazardous substances
off the market. We propose a schedule in two
parts. The first part of the schedule will
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allow us to remove these substances from the
market. There are a number of other sub-
stances extremely useful when used for the
purpose which they are designed, and it
would be ridiculous to expect to take these
off the market, but we do want to have the
authority to control the method and circum-
stances of sale. We want to be able to insist
upon adequate warnings being placed upon
these substances and appropriate labelling.
So that in the second part of the schedule we
are seeking authority to control methods of
sale of another group of hazardous
substances.

At the moment we have listed a number in
each part of this schedule to serve as exam-
ples of the sort of thing we are talking about,
but this schedule is going to be subject to
change from time to time. We cannot tell you
at the moment just what we might want to
put on this form. We in the department real-
ize that we are probably going to suffer more
than anybody else from this sort of leg'sla-
tion, because no doubt we will be subject to
all kinds of pressures from sincere people
who have strong views about certain sub-
stances they think either should be removed
from the market or should be controlled with
respect to their sale, and we may not agree
that they should be so dealt with. We will
just have to brace ourselves, I suppose, to
withstand this sort of pressure, but it is an
occupational hazard which we will have to
put up with,

The Chairman: Although the bill does not
go so far as to cover occupational hazards.

Dr. Crawford: No. This is peculiar to us,
Mr. Chairman. I merely want to add that
since the bill had its first reading on October
31, we could, of course, properly discuss it with
our advisers in the provinces, the members of
the Dominion Council of Health who met as
recently as November 16 and 17. I do want to
report to you that those members, consisting
of the deputy ministers of health of all prov-
inces, were unanimous in their opinion that
such legislation was in fact desirable and
required.

I think that is all I have to say by the way
of introduction, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Is this sniffing of glue cov-
ered somewhere here?

Dr. Crawford: It will be in Part II, sir, one
of the control methods of distribution. I think

Standing Committee

you will see that in Part II, item No. 4. It is
one of the control items, But we do not
propose to take it off the market, because it
is a very useful substance for sticking things
together.

The Chairman: Short of taking it off the
market, how do you propose to control it?

Dr. Crawford: We will insist on labelling,
sir, that indicates that if it is used in a closed
space it is highly dangerous to health.

The Chairman: Are
questions?

Senator Baird: Will this affect any of the
well-known brands that are on the market?

Dr. Crawford: One example that I think
you may have in mind is in Part II, No. 3.
We are talking here about household
polishes. There is a product on the market
now which is an extremely good furniture
polish. As furniture polish it is excellent, but
as a beverage for small children it is highly
poisonous. Of course, it is not meant to be
used in this way so that we want to be in a
position to insist upon adequate warnings
and adequate information being supplied to
the users as to the dangers of this substance.

there any other

Senator Leonard: Are the glues defined
here the glues that are used for glue sniffing?

Dr. Crawford: Yes, sir. This is what we are
aiming at.

Senator Leonard: Perhaps the chairman
knows this, but tell me where the federal
Government gets its jurisdiction, constitu-
tionally, to legislate as to the flashpoint of
paints and to glues containing a certain
amount of such and such a substance? What
does this come under? I suppose you have
been advised by the Department of Justice or
by your own departmental solicitors that it is
constitutional.

The Chairman: The department itself has
an excellent counsel, Mr. R. E. Curran. Per-
haps, Mr. Curran could come forward.

R. E. Curran, General Counsel, Depari-
ment of National Health and Welfare: Mr.
Chairman, this bill will find its basis in the
criminal law. It has been recognized that the
protection of the public health, or offences
which are likely to be injurious to public
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health, are not crimes against the public law
but are eriminal law offences. The basis for
this legislation would therefore find its way
in under the criminal law as exercised by the
Parliament under its right to protect the

public,

The Chairman: Is that a satisfactory
answer, senator?

Senator Leonard: I was not arguing

against it. I just wanted to be sure that it
Wwas covered.

Senator Thorvaldson: I take it, Mr. Cur-
ran, that that is the basis of the whole Food
and Drug Act itself, is it?

Mr. Curran: It is exactly the same basis,
yes.

The Chairman: I should point out that
Senator Carter is here, and since he dealt
Wwith this bill in the first place, I would ask
him if there is anything he would like to add.

Senator Carter: No thank you, Mr. Chair-
man. I think the time is passing rather
Quickly and you have the departmental
officials to give you what information you
need.

The Chairman: Mr. Alan B. Archer, Trus-
tee, Board of Education, Toronto, is here now
to present his brief.

(Text of brief follows)
Mr. Chairman and Honourable Senators:
This brief is presented for your considera-
tion by Alan B. Archer, a concerned parent,
a school trustee for the City of Toronto, and
the Chairman of the Committee for Building
and Sites for the Metropolitan Toronto
School Board, a member of the liaison com-
mittee to study the effects of hallucinogenic
drugs upon school students, and an executive
member of META. While service in these
bositions has been a factor in my thinking on
this topic, I am presenting this brief as a
Private citizen and not as a representative of
the various boards of which I am a member.

In reference to Bill S22, there is an
increasing use in the entire Metropolitan
Toronto area of airplane glue with the sub-
stance toluene, which is a depressant to the
Central nervous system that causes a light-
headed, stupefying condition to the wuser
When the heavy fumes are inhaled, and
Tesults in permanent brain and liver damage.
I have seen in my own area of the city this
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substance sold in stores and have actually
sent a 12-year old boy into a store to pur-
chase what he called a “sniff kit”, a tube of
airplane glue and two bags. I have seen
children under the influence of toluene (aro-
matic hydrocarbon C;Hs). These children
appear to be in a stupor and answer ques-
tions very slowly and with difficulty, and
have a deathly white pallor to their skin. I
have seen these children sent home from
school because they were in a toxic stupor.
One principal in my immediate area has said
that he is aware that about 1% of his stu-
dents have acquired the habit and stated
there could be more students sniffing glue
than he was aware of.

The toxic fumes are produced by the vola-
tile solvents added to glue to make it dry
faster. These substances include acetone,
benzene, butyl acetate, carbon tetrachloride,
chloroform, ethylene dichloride, ethyl and iso-
propyl alcohols, hexane, toluene, and various
ketones and esters. Plastic cement, another
widely used product that contains wvolatile
solvents, will be considered here, along with
glue, as a medium for sniffing.

The fumes from glue and plastic cement
react on the nervous system rather like
alcohol. At first the glue sniffer (known as a
“flasher” or “pressor”) feels a mild intoxica-
tion that brings on exhilaration, euphoria,
and excitement. Soon afterward physical
reactions begin, such as loss of coordination,
difficulty in speech, double vision, and buzz-
ing in the ears. In about an hour the glue
sniffer enters a state of drowsiness, stupor, or
unconsciousness, during which the most
detrimental effects of glue sniffing occur.
When in this condition many persons do not
feel responsible for their acts. Thus they
become dangerous to their families, friends,
society, and themselves.

The habitual inhaler of glue fumes may
show other pathological effects. Jacob Sokol,
M.D., chief physician of the Los Angeles
Juvenile Hall, reports that sniffers develop
temporary damage to kidneys, liver, and
blood; suffer congestion of the mucous linings
in the nose, throat, and lungs; and show
signs of anemia, quickened heartbeat, and
shortened breath. When asked by the Cali-
fornia State Assembly’s public health com-
mittee whether he considered glue a poison,
Dr. Sokol answered, “Yes, it’s toxic to the
liver and kidneys.” Other investigators have
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reported that the toxic effects of glue sniffing
can cause paralysis and bone-marrow
depression.

Honourable Senators, the students I refer
to are in the 8-14 year-old age group. These
children are in many instances the products
of environmental conditions. I would be
derelict in my duty as an elected representa-
tive if I did not point out, Honourable Sena-
tors, that this body should set up a Commit-
tee to deal not only with the irreparable
damage that has already been done to these
young minds by sniffing toluene, but to tackle
the real problem, the root cause or reason
why a youngster would so desire to escape
reality. in this manner. I am firmly of the
opinion that only the Senate of this country
can actually bring to the attention of the
Canadian people the proper steps to be taken
in this matter. I feel that you must set up
immediate controls and spell them out in
your legislation. The State of New Jersey
had made glue-sniffing an act of disorderly
conduct, punishable by up to a year in jail or
a $1,000.00 fine. Houston, Texas passed an
ordinance four months ago prohibiting the
sale, giving or delivery of glue and cements
containing any of 12 solvents to persons
under 21 years of age. I am firmly of the
opinion that in the area of 10% of Metropoli-
tan Toronto school students require some
degree of adjustment. Parents must concern
themselves with the underlying factors that
bring about glue sniffing in children. They
must be urged to seek professional help
because I am strongly of the opinion that
sniffing airplane glue is just a first step in a
maladjusted child towards more sophisticated
drugs and the subsequent suicides, jail, ete.
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The Chairman: Mr. Archer, you know of
course we are going to pass this bill.

_ Mr. Archer: I certainly hope so. With that
In mind I will be quite happy to leave it in
your hands.

Mr. J. Chevalier, Secretary, Canadian
Manufacturers of Chemical Specialties As-
sociation: Mr. Chairman and hon. senators, I
am here representing the Canadian Manufac-
turers of Chemical Specialties Association. I
am the secretary. We feel we have something
to contribute to the consideration of this bill,
and I would request the opportunity of being
heard, possibly at a later date. Would next
week be convenient?

The Chairman: We will be sitting next
Wednesday, but we will have to deal with
this by that time.

Mr. Chevalier: We will have our presenta-
tion ready and we will be prepared for
examination at that time.

The Chairman: That will be all right, but
would you like to prepare a short statement
of the points you intend to make and for-
ward them to Dr. Crawford so that they may
be considered in the meantime?

Mr. Chevalier: Yes, we will do that.

Senator Thorvaldson: May I ask Dr. Craw-
ford one more question? Dr. Crawford, as a
matter of interest, just how did you get rid of
those Hong Kong ice balls and the necklaces
from the Caribbean?

Dr. Crawford: Well, we had to deal with
the provincial departments on this, Senator
Thorvaldson. We telephoned and telegraphed
and told them of the hazard which was in
their shops and ‘they dealt with it
provincially.

Senator Thorvaldson: I see.
Dr. Crawford: This is how we had to han-

dle that situation. Of course, it was a pretty
time-consuming process.

The Committee adjourned its consideration
of the Bill.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
November 8th, 1967:

“The Order of the Day being read,

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Grosart resumed the debate on the motion
of the Honourable Senator Hayden, seconded by the Honourable Senator
Macdonald, P.C., for second reading of the Bill S-24, intituled: “An Act
to amend the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Hayden moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Deschatelets, P.C., that the Bill be referred to the
Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MAcCNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.

143
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, November 22nd, 1967.
(15)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 2:00 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Baird, Beaubien
(Bedford), Croll, Dessureault, Everett, Gelinas, Gouin, Isnor, Leonard, Mac-
Kenzie, Molson, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson and Vien.—(15)

In attendance:
E. R. Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

On Motion of the Honourable Senator Molson it was Resolved to report
as follows: Your Committee recommends that authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300 copies in French of its proceedings
on Bill S-24.

Bill S-24, “An Act to amend the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation
Act”, was read and considered.

The following witness was heard:

Department of Insurance:
R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent.

With a view to possible amendment, consideration of the said Bill was
adjourned until the next meeting.

At 2:40 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

Attest.
Frank A. Jackson,

Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 22, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-24,
to amend the Canada Deposit Insurance Cor-
boration Act, met this day at 2.00 p.m. to
8lve consideration to the bill.

Senator Salter A. Hayden (Chairman) in
the Chair.

; The Chairman: We have before us for con-
Sideration Bill S-24, to amend the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation Act.

The committee agreed that a verbatim
report be made of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

The committee agreed to report recom-
mending authority be granted for the
printing of 800 copies in English and 300
copies in French of the committee’s pro-
ceedings on the bill.

This is a bill amending the Canada Deposit
In.surance Corporation Act, and that should be
fairly fresh in your minds as we dealt with it
arlier this year.

We have with us today Mr. Humphrys,
Superintendent of Insurance, who is the co-
ordinator, I believe, in respect of this legisla-
tion. My, Humphrys, would you come for-
Ward and tell us about it?

Mr. R. R. Humphrys, Superintendent of
Nsurance: Mr. Chairman and honourable
Senators, this bill was explained on second
feading in the Senate. I do not think there
Will be much advantage served by my
Tepeating it in detail.

I would just say that the principal purpose
Or coming back to Parliament for an amend-
ment to this act so soon after it was passed is
to enable arrangements to be made to co-
Ordinate the plan of deposit insurance estab-
lished under this legislation with a similar
Plan that has been adopted in Quebec under
Quebec legislation. The Quebec legislation
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guarantees all deposits in the province
regardless of what institution holds the
deposits. This would mean that the Quebec
plan would apply to federal institutions that
are doing business in Quebec and also to
institutions from other provinces that are
doing business in Quebec. This federal plan
of deposit insurance applies to all federal
institutions, and now by the issuance of poli-
cies in agreement with the provinces it also
applies to all the trust and loan companies
incorporated in provinces other than Quebec.
Some of those companies are doing business
in Quebec, so, in the absence of some
arrangement between the Canada Deposit In-
surance Corporation and the Quebec Deposit
Insurance Board, there would be duplication
of coverage and perhaps duplication of
charges in respect of deposits in Quebec.

Discussions have taken place between the
officials representing the federal Government
and the officials representing the Quebec
Government, reaching an exchange of letters
between the Minister of Finance and the
Premier of Quebec laying out a tentative
basis of agreement between the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Que-
bec Deposit Insurance Board that would
eliminate duplication of coverage. However,
to implement that agreement the powers of
the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation
have to be changed.

The basis of the tentative understanding is
that with regard to a provincially-incorporat-
ed institution that is doing business both in
Quebec and outside Quebec, the deposits in
Quebec would be guaranteed by the Quebec
Deposit Insurance Board under their legisla-
tion, and the deposits outside Quebec would
be covered by the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation, so we had to seek the power to
insure some of the deposits of member insti-
tutions, but not necessarily all. As the legisla-
tion is now, we can only insure all deposits
within the definition.



The second purpose, again stemming from
that, is that we are seeking the power to enter
into an agreement with the Quebec Deposit
Insurance Board for the administration of
the plan adopted under this act and their
plan in order to eliminate duplication of
inspections, duplication of the filing of
records, and really to cut the administrative
costs to the member institutions.

Power is also sought in this bill to enable
the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation to
make short term loans to any provincial agen-
cy that is doing deposit insurance. It is
intended initially to enable the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation to make short
term loans to the Quebec Deposit Insurance
Board, to enable that board to meet tempo-
rary liquidity needs.

Among the purposes intended to be met by
this bill, the principal one is to enable the
Quebec plan to operate at a lower level of
reserves and income than otherwise might be
felt necessary. In the exchange of letters to
which I have referred the Minister of Fi-
nance took the position that such an agree-
ment for short term financial support should
be contingent upon an agreement by Quebec
not to levy charges on federal institutions
doing business in Quebec that would dupli-
cate the premiums being paid by those insti-
tutions to the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation.

Those are the important purposes of the
bill. The other amendment which occupies a
fair amount of space is a technical one to
clarify the period for which the premium
runs. This amendment will not change the
existing situation, or the interpretation that
we had in mind to start with, but it will
make it clear that the premium year runs
from May 1 to April 30. This change is
desirable to remove some doubts that had
arisen in that respect, particularly for 1967,
since the plan started only in April.

Secondly, this amendment will make it
possible to have a formula for refunding
premiums by reason of agreements that may
be made with Quebec whereby the insurance
on deposits in Quebec that the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation now issues
would be transferred from the federal plan
to the provincial plan. In such cases we
would want to make a refund of premium
for the portion of the year that remained.

Mr. Chairman, those are the only prelimi-
nary comments that I have.

Standing Committee

The Chairman: Yes. I should point out that
there was at least one major question that
developed on the second reading of this bill,
and that had to do with the definition of
“deposit”. In the original act there is no
definition of “deposit”, and that is really a
basic element in the whole legislation. The
reason given was that the legislation was too
new, and it was not known how encompass-
ing it should be, and, therefore, flexibility
was wanted.

In the original act that was passed there
was a provision in the definition section
which simply provided that “deposit”’ means
a deposit as defined by the by-laws of the
corporation, and from there one had to go to
section 12 where the powers of the directors
to pass by-laws are set out, and among those
powers is one to pass a by-law, with the
approval of the Governor in Council, “defin-
ing the expression ‘deposit’ for the purposes
of this Act”. The Senate and the House of
Commons both agreed that in the circum-
stances, this being new legislation, that that
was a good way in which to leave it. Subse-
quently, the word “deposit” was defined by
by-law, and approved by the Governor in
Council.

We now have an amending bill before us
and the suggestion made on second reading,
with which I certainly concur, was that if
“deposit” can now be defined for the pur-
poses of administration in a by-law it can be
defined in the act.

I have a further suggestion on that point,
depending upon what Mr. Humphrys says
as to whether they are prepared to put a
definition in the act at this time.

Senator Vien: Is the Canada Deposit Insur-
ance Corporation Act administered by the
Insurance Department, or by the Finance
Department?

Mr. Humphrys: No, Mr. Chairman. Under
the statute the directors of the Corporation
are the deputy minister of finance, the Gov-
ernor of the Bank of Canada, the Inspector
General of Banks, the Superintendent of In-
surance and a fifth director to be appointed
by the Governor in Council.

Senator Vien: The Minister of Finance is
responsible for the acts of the department.
That is what I want to find out.

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. The corporation acts
as a separate Crown corporation. It is
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empowered to use the services and facilities
of the Department of Finance and the Depart-
ment of Insurance. The corporation is still
quite new. It has a secretary but no other
staff at the present time. It is empowered to
hire staff and, depending on how it develops
in future, it may reach the point where it has
quite a large staff of its own, or it may contin-
ue to operate with a minimum of staff of its
own, making use of staff in the Department
of Finance or the Department of Insurance.

Senator Vien: Is this amending bill made
at the request of the department?

Senator Leonard: Has a fifth director been
named?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes. Mr. Antonio Rainville
is Chairman of the board of directors of the
corporation.

The Chairman: Now do you think you can
answer my question?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Leonard: First of all, would you
tell us what the definition now is?

Mr. Humphrys: The definition is in the by-
Laws of the corporation. It runs a page and a
alf.

Senator Leonard: You do not need to read
it all. Just summarize it.

Mr. Humphrys: When you start paraphras-
ing you almost start reading it. It is an obliga-
tion of an insured institution to pay back any
funds held for a person or corporation where
the liablity is in terms of a demand liability or
iy a term liability if the depositor has the right
to demand his money back within five years.
It is a demand deposit or a deposit that can
be demanded within five years. If it runs
more than five years it is not an insured
deposit.

Senator Vien: That is provided for in the
statute?

Mr. Humphrys: It is provided for in the
definition, in the bylaws of the corporation
Which have been approved by the Governor
in Council.

The Chairman: It is not in the act.

Mr. Humphrys: It is not in the act. When
the bill was going through earlier this year
We were not in a position to set down a
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definition of “deposit” at the time. In arriv-
ing at the definition which now appears in
the bylaws a good deal of work and study
went into it. In principle I think that none of
the directors of the corporation would take
issue with the idea that an item of this
importance should be in the statute rather
than in the bill or in regulations.

I would say, however, that we feel we
have scarcely caught our breath in getting
this corporation into existence. We have not
completed our first inspection of the member
institutions to even audit the premium
return. We still have to work out an
agreement with Quebec if this power is given
to us under the bill. It is of very great im-
portance that the definition of “deposit” be
the same for their plan as for ours.

We have encountered some problems that
are now before us which may require a
change in the definition in order to accommo-
date the particular problems that have come
up. When the bill was going through the
Commons the Minister of Finance gave an
undertaking that he would refer the bylaws,
particularly the bylaw defining “deposit”, to
the Committee on Finance, Trade and Eco-
nomic Affairs for study.

The by-law has been referred to that com-
mittee but it has not yet been examined
there. I can say, from speaking for the corpo-
ration, that we would prefer to have some
more time to allow this thing to settle and
see if we can feel confident that we have
encountered all the variety of problems,
before writing the definition into the statute.

The Chairman: I had a purpose in asking
Mr. Humphrys that question. Many times—
and you will recall this, too—we had bills
before you, I could name some of the more
recent ones, where we have been persuaded,
or permitted ourselves to be persuaded, to
wait for a time in connection with some
amendments we were discussing, “because
the Act would be coming back to us and
there would be an opportunity then”. The
last one of those, I will not name it, we have
been waiting three years for the act to come
back and it has not come.

I was looking for a different approach. I
thought that, if we put a time limit on the
time within which they must come back to
Parliament with definition, or that is the ter-
mination date of the bill, that would make
them move within the length of time. It then



becomes a matter of how much time, I would
suggest maybe within a year from the date
on which this bill receives assent.

Senator Croll: Mr. Chairman, this bill is
hardly one that we can use in that way. I
agree with what you say. However, he is
making a deal with a province which has
some decided views on this and he may find
himself tied into some negotiations and it
may take an extraordinary amount of time
and it must be done or there will be double
taxation. Perhaps, with the question that you
asked and the words on the record we ought
to leave it alone in order to give them an
opportunity; because it would be quite unfair
for them to work under the gun. That is my
problem.

The Chairman: Do you know, Senator
Croll that, in variations, this is exactly the
answer that I have received, so many times,
on the basis that it will come back to us soon.

I am not suggesting that we do not give
the department what it wants now and let
them keep their definition in the order in
council; but I want some string, so that at
some time, whether it is a year or eighteen
months, within which they must come back
with their definition or they no longer can
operate. All they have to do is come back
with their amending bill and they keep their
authority but surely that is not an unreason-
able position.

Senator Vien: Why do you ask so much
time to come to a proper definition?

The Chairman: Actually, I do not think it
should. There are those factors. One is the
corporation is already collecting premiums on
whatever definition they have of “deposit”, so
the money is coming in and Quebec will be
doing the same thing. When the money is
coming in, sometimes there is not the same
urgency about tidying up. If you have to
wait until you have tidied up, for the money
to come, then you get started on it more
promptly.

Senator Croll: How much time does Mr.
Humphrys think he needs, what is his limit
in time?

The Chairman: A year?

Senator Croil: No. Go ahead.

Mr, Humphrys: I should think that after
we have inspected and audited every institu-
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tion, and reached agreement with Quebec or
any other province that had a plan of deposit
insurance, we should have things fairly well
settled so far as the definition of “deposit” is
concerned.

When I say that we feel that we would
still like to have some flexibility, I do not
mean to imply that we regard the definition
of “deposit” as something than can be
changed from day to day.

The Chairman: I would not think so.

Mr. Humphrys: It is extremely important
that it be firm, because we do not want any
depositor putting money in an institution
with the idea that he is insured and then
having the deposit definition changed and he
finds himself not insured. Actually, this
definition is one that, once you start on it,
you can move only one way so we feel it
quite important that we have a chance to
survey all the situation before we change it,
and we would like a little bit of room, in case
some new situations come up, at least in the
first year or two of our life.

I am a little bit uneasy about the concept
of putting a statutory termination on us,
because we have to enter into agreements
with Quebec and we have to issue contracts
to public institutions that are continuing con-
tracts and they can only be terminated by us
at least by following a specific procedure. SO
I am uneasy about our position if our defini-
tion of “deposit” is terminated by a certain
date because we cannot control when we can
get on the legislative calendar of Parliament.

The Chairman: If you set within a year or
if Parliament had not been sitting, within
sixty days after Parliament sits they must
come back.

Senator Vien: The question was whether
you feel a year or two years are necessary t0
come to that point of making a definite
definition.

Mr.
year.

Humphrys: I would think another

Senator Vien: A year?
Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

Senator Vien: Or if Parliament is not

sitting. ..

The Chairman: I think you should add that
if Parliament is not sitting at the time, then
within sixty days.
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Mr. Humphrys: If you feel it is necessary
Mr. Chairman, to proceed in that way, could
You not at least tie it down to a particular
Session rather than to a particular date? The
Circumstance might arise where you could
not get the legislation through by a particu-
lar date, but if the bill were introduced at a
Particular session you would know at least
that it was before you at that session.

The Chairman: That is reasonable.

Senator Leonard: I would have thought
that this might be covered in the interchange
of letters between the Minister of Finance
and the Province of Quebec. In any event
should these not have been tabled?

The Chairman:
months ago.

They were tabled some

Senator Lecnard: I thought the agreement
as reflected in the letters would cover this
definition of “deposit insurance”.

The Chairman: It may when they finalize
the agreement, but it has not yet been final-
ized. However, I would think that we could
Cover the situation that within a period of
time an amending bill dealing with the
definition of deposit, among other things,
Mmight be necessary. That would deal with
the problem you are concerned about. But we
Would have to get the draft prepared and
that will take a little time.

) Senator Isnor: Are there any other prov-
Inces involved besides Quebec?

Mz, Humphreys: At the present time that 1s
the only one. Ontario has legislation on the
Statute books which would adopt a plan of
deposit insurance and did have it in effect as
of last April. But as soon as the federal plan
tame into effect Ontario amended its act and
haq their institutions apply for insurance
Under the federal plan. The legislation is still
on the statute books but they are not grant-
Ing insurance.

The Chairman: There is one other point.

€ amendment I am going to suggest gives
the corporations more authority than they
Would have in the situation you have here. If
You look at page 4 of the bill where they
deal with these agreements you will see that
t subjection 3 under the heading “Regula-
tions» it says:

For the purpose of enabling the Corpo-
ration to carry out an insuring arrange-
ment referred to in subsection (1) or
provided for in an agreement under sub-
section (2), the Governor in Council may,
by regulation, adapt any of the provi-
sions of this Act to any provincial insti-
tution referred to in subsection (1), or to
any of the deposits with that institution,
and make provision for any other matter
or thing resulting from such insuring
arrangement or agreement that is not
provided for by this Act.

In other words, you are giving legislative
authority to the Governor in Council. I think
there is an apt way of doing it which
removes part of this difficulty and I had our
Law Clerk, Mr. Hopkins, draft something to
achieve this. It simply says:

For the purpose of enabling the Corpo-
ration to carry out an insuring arrange-
ment referred to in subsection (1) or
provided for in an agreement under sub-
section (2), the Governor in Council may,
by regulation, make provision for any
matter or thing resulting from such
insuring arrangement or agreement.

This is pretty much in line with the pro-
vision that they have in the Quebec act, and
it gives all the necessary authority and re-
moves that criticism that we should not give
power to legislate by regulation.

Now, we are going to have to adjourn
consideration of this bill so as to permit the
drafting of this other amendment. If the com-
mittee wants to deal with this now or at that
time—

Senator Croll: I can see no objection be-
cause I haven’t got the purpose of it all. But
should you not have that amendment con-
sidered by the people who drafted this bill?

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Croll: They may have had some-
thing in mind here. They are using a great
number of words to say something and it
may affect another bill.

The Chairman: The only words that create
a problem are found in the last clause, and
they are not provided for by this act.

Senator Leonard:
those words out.

Perhaps if you took
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The Chairman: That is about what I have
done.

Senator Leonard: It still leaves it within
the framework of the act.

Mr. Humphrys: The wording in this section
was carefully shaped with two ideas in mind.
An attempt was made to make it clear that
the Governor in Council could not by way of
regulation alter the provisions of the act. The
word “adapt” was used for the purpose of
enabling the corporation to carry out an
insuring agreement and the word “adapt”
was used to convey the idea that it was not a
power to affect the substantive content of
any provision of the act, but to shape it if
necessary to fit the insuring arrangement and
in that respect it was copied from a prece-
dent in the Canada Pension Plan Act which
contains a similar wording that enables the
Governor in Council to pass regulations that
will adapt the provisions of the act, as may
be necessary, for the purpose of an agree-
ment with other jurisdictions. The final
words here were intended to make it clear
that the Governor in Council could pass
regulations dealing with matters other than
those specified in the act, so that it removes
the power from him to change provisions in
the act. But the effect is that it gives the
power to the Governor in Council to lay
down rules within which the corporation
must act, and if you strike out those words
the result will either be that the corporation
will have to make its own rules or else that
the corporation won’t be able to carry out
some of the insuring arrangements. So we
put the words in for that purpose.

Senator Leonard: The corporation will
have to make its own rules within the frame-
work of this act, and if it is going to do
anything else then it should come back to the
legislature.

The Chairman: That is right. I can refer
the Superintendent to an article which a for-
mer Deputy Minister of Justice wrote enti-
tled: “The Composition of Legislation”. In it
he says very clearly what they should or
should not do. He says:

Authority is sometimes conferred to
make regulations for removing doubts or
for supplying any deficiency in the stat-
ute. Unless he is bidden to put them in, a
draftsman should resist provisions of this
character, because the authority intend-
ed to be conferred is extensive and the
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limits are obscure. If doubts arise on the
interpretation of the statute, let the
courts or Parliament resolve them; and
if there is any deficiency or omission in
the statute, let Parliament supply it!

Senator Croll: That is very good if he
would only follow the practice.

Senator Leonard: Surely, this is a case to
which those words do not belong.

Senator Croll: I shall not argue that.

Senator Vien: This is not without prece-
dent. There are other precedents, but I think
we have protested more than once against
the power to make regulations outside the
framework of any legislation. To make an act
more workable, and if they are within the
scope of the legislation, the Governor in
Council should be empowered to make regu-
lations. But, that is just for the purpose of
making the act more workable, and not for
the purpose of going outside its framework.

The Chairman: That is right. Is it the wish
of the committee that we adjourn considera-
tion of the bill so that our Law Clerk and
the departmental officials may get together t0
settle the wording?

Senator Vien: Yes, I so move.

The Chairman: Do you have anything fur-
ther to add to what I have said at great
length already, Senator Grosart?

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, I would
raise one point. I am aware of the fact that
this committee does not have the authority to
examine the by-laws of the corporation—I
am speaking now of the definition section
—>but in view of the fact that we have in @
way waived the suggestion that the definition
of the word “deposit” in the by-laws be
incorporated in the act at this time, and also
in view of the fact that the definition in the
by-law has now, and will remain with, the
full force of the statute, I wonder if I could
draw the attention of the Superintendent to a
part of Section 2 of the by-laws. I raised this
in the Senate, and I am still concerned about
it. By-law 2(c) reads:

“date of deposit” means with respect to
any moneys constituting a deposit within
the meaning of paragraph (a), the day
credit for such moneys is given to the
account of the depositor or the date an
instrument is issued for such moneys by
the member institution.
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There is a qualification of this phrase in
Section 2(a)(i) which reads “has given, or is
obligated to give,” while in Section 2(a)(ii)
the phrase is “has issued, or is obligated to
1ssue”.

I should like to draw Mr. Humphrys’
attention to my concern—and it may be only
a personal concern—that in Section 2(c) as it
1S now drafted the rights of the depositor
may not be fully protected. There may be an
explanation for this, but as I read it now, if a
deposit-taking institution failed for any rea-
son to give credit to the account of the
depositor then the practical date of the
deposit would not be the effective date.

The Chairman: You must remember this,
that there is an obligation on the parties—the
banks—which must take out this insurance
to correctly state who are the depositors.
That is correct, is it not, Mr. Humphrys?

Mr. Humphrys: Yes.

_ The Chairman: If they put the wrong date
In, or do not include somebody because of
Some mistake in their records, they are in
Violation of the statute. I do not think they
have any remedy in case of the failure of a
b_ank, and if any question came up about the
liability of the insurance to cover such a

93

situation. My own feeling is that the day
credit for such money is given would be read.

Senator Grosart: Would be?

The Chairman: Would be read, meaning
that the day I ranked as a depositor and was
entitled to have that noted in the records of
the bank. They may take a week to write up
their records, as you know. If we are going
to tidy up the definition, then, I suggest that
we tidy it up in every regard.

Senator Grosari: I am not going that far,
Mr. Chairman. The point I am raising is that
this phrase, “or is obligated to give,” is used
twice in the same section, in the definition of
“deposit,” but is omitted when we come to
the definition of ‘“deposit date”. Now, I am
not a lawyer, but I would suggest that the
question might arise why it was omitted
here. Is it significant that it was omitted in
this place while it is clearly spelled out in the
other two places?

That is the only question that I raised. I
realize we are not going to amend the by-
laws. It is not our job here to do that, but
I merely call it to Mr. Humphry’s attention.
Perhaps, if my point is valid, the corporation
itself might decide to amend its own by-laws.

The committee adjourned.
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Feeley, Laboratory Services Manager, Paint Research Laboratory,
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THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE
The Honourable Salter A. Hayden, Chairman

Aird

Aseltine

Baird

Beaubien (Bedjord)

Beaubien (Provencher)

Benidickson
Blois
Bourget
Burchill
Choquette
Cook

Croll
Dessureault
Everett
Farris
Fergusson

The Honourable Senators:
Gélinas

Gershaw

Gouin

Haig

Hayden

Irvine

Isnor

Kinley

Lang

Leonard

Macdonald (Cape Breton)
Macdonald (Brantford)
MacKenzie -
Macnaughton
MecCutcheon

McDonald

Molson

O’Leary (Carleton)

Paterson

Pearson

Pouliot

Power

Rattenbury

Roebuck

Smith (Queens-
Shelburne)

Thorvaldson -~

Vaillancourt

Vien

Walker

White

Willis—(47).

Ezx officio members: Flynn and Connolly (Ottawa West).

(Quorum 9)




ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Monday,
November 6th, 1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Carter, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Basha, for the second reading of Bill S-22, intituled:
“An Act to prohibit the sale and advertising of hazardous substances, to
amend the Food and Drugs Act and the Narcotic Control Act and to
make a consequential amendment to the Criminal Code”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Carter moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator McGrand, that the Bill be referred to the Standing Committee
on Banking and Commerce.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

J. F. MAcCNEILL,
Clerk of the Senate.

15—3
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEeEDNESDAY, December 6, 1967.
(16)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce met this day at 9:30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Hayden (Chairman), Aird, Aseltine,
Benidickson, Burchill, Croll, Everett, Fergusson, Gouin, Haig, Irvine, Lang,
Leonard, MacKenzie, McCutcheon, McDonald, Molson, Pearson, Pouliot, Ratten-
bury, Smith (Queens-Shelburne) and Thorvaldson. (22)

In attendance:

E. Russell Hopkins, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel.
R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk, Parliamentary Counsel and Chief Clerk
of Committees.

Consideration of Bill S-22, “Hazardous Substances Act”, was resumed.

The following witnesses were heard:

Department of National Health and Welfare: Dr. J. N. Crawford, Deputy
Minister.

Canadian Manufacturers of Chemical Specialties Association: A. L. Copeland,
President.

Canadian Paint Manufacturers Association: Eric Barry, Executive Vice-
President; M. R. Feeley, Laboratory Services Manager, Paint Research
Laboratory, Canadian Industries Limited; J. M, Coyne, Q.C., Parliamentary
Counsel.

Further consideration of the said Bill was deferred until the next meeting.
At 10.50 a.m. the Committee proceeded to the next order of business.
Attest.

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND COMMERCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, December 6, 1967

The Standing Committee on Banking and
Commerce, to which was referred Bill S-22,
to amend Bill S-22, to prohibit the sale and
advertising of hazardous substances, to
amend the Food and Drugs Act and the Nar-
cotic Control Act and to make a consequen-
tial amendment to the Criminal Code, met
this day at 9.30 a.m. to give further consider-
ation to the bill.

Salter A. Hayden (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: This is a bill which we
started to consider on November 22. There
were several witnesses who wished to be
heard. Last time we heard the departmental
officers. These other people are here today,
and I would suggest that now is the time
When they should come forward. Mr. Cope-
land is here. He is President of the Canadian
Manufacturers of Chemical Specialties As-
Sociation.

A. L. Copeland, President, Canadian Manu-
facturers of Chemical Specialties Association:

r. Chairman and honourable senators, if I
Mmay I should like to proceed by reading this
brief. It is short.

The Canadian Manufacturers of Chemical
Specialties Association was formed in 1958
and today represents a substantial proportion
of the manufacturers of household chemical
Specialty products in Canada.

Specific objectives of the association are:
the advancement of the industry through the
Creation of a climate in which it can best
Opberate; the advancement of the productive
output of member companies; the advance-
ment of management, technical, administra-
tive and marketing skills of member com-
Pany personnel; the promotion of ethical
Practices on the part of member companies;
and, above all, the promotion of the safety and
the welfare of the public and the efficient use
by the public of the industry’s products.
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The association is composed of five basic
product divisions. These are: aerosols, soaps,
detergents and sanitary chemicals, waxes and
floor finishes, insecticides and pesticides,
automotive chemicals.

A list of officers and directors and a roster
of members of the association are appended
to this submission.

The association, in its capacity as a recog-
nized spokesman for the chemical specialty
manufacturing industry, maintains a close
co-operative relationship with the Canadian
government, notably through the Food and
Drug Directorate of the Department of Na-
tional Health and Welfare and the Depart-
ment of Agriculture. At such time as the
Department of Consumer and Corporate
Affairs becomes a ministry of the Canadian
Government, a liaison with this Department
will be set up as well.

The association has been in effective liai-
son with the Consumers Association of Cana-
da for several years, and activity which is
mainly concerned with the education of
Canadian consumers in the safe and efficient
use of the industry’s products.

Labelling of Hazardous Household Prod-
ucts: The association has long been con-
vinced that hazardous household products
must be labelled in a manner to ensure that
consumers may use these products for their
intended purpose without danger to their
health or wellbeing. In addition, such labell-
ing should provide for the safe storage and
disposal of these products where necessary
and should indicate action to be taken in the
case of misuse, particularly that of accidental
ingestion by children.

The result has been the development and
wide dissemination since 1966 of a compre-
hensive labelling code which outlines proper
labelling practices to be followed for hazard-
ous household chemical products. The labell-
ing code received the unanimous endorse-



ment of member companies of the association
and their agreement, on a voluntary basis, to
comply with the requirements of the code.
Copy of the labelling code is appended to this
submission.

It is worthy of note that during the proc-
ess of development of the labelling code, the
association worked in close harmony with the
Food and Drug Directorate and with the
Consumers Association of Canada and their
assistance and counsel, in this connection, are
respected and are much appreciated.

The labelling code defined dangerous and
hazardous chemical products according to
degrees of toxicity, flammability and cor-
rosiveness.

In the considered opinion of the associa-
tion, it is important to limit the use of such
precautionary labelling to those products
only, which present a practical hazard to the
consuming public. To extend such labelling
practices to products which present no prac-
tical hazard confuses the issue and defeats
the purpose of the cautionary label state-
ments and can only lead the public towards
apathy in respect to label statements on truly
hazardous products.

Legislation as proposed in Bill S-22: The
association is completely in accord with the
intent of Bill S-22 and fully appreciates the
need for authority for the government to
remove from sale dangerous items of the
type outlined in Part I of the Schedule on
Page 8 of the Bill.

The association, though preferring a volun-
tary industry approach to the elimination of
deficiencies which the bill is designed to
offset, appreciates that it has been unable to
obtain the voluntary adherence to the labell-
ing code of all household products manufac-
turers in Canada who are not members of
the association.

The association, therefore, appreciates the
need for Ilegislation which will enable the
establishment of regulations covering the
proper labelling of hazardous household pro-
ducts; and also the authority to remove from
sale those hazardous products which are
improperly labelled according to regulations,
providing that there be a right of appeal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the associa-
tion feels that it has a responsibility to point
out that legislation alone will not solve the
problems of consumer carelessness or igno-
rance leading to the misuse and accidental
ingestion of these products. A program of
consumer education emphasizing the impor-
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tance of reading the information on labels
and storing products out of the reach of
children is also urgently required.

The association notes again that it has
been cooperating, and will continue to co-
operate, with the Food and Drug Directorate,
the Consumers Association of Canada and
the Industrial Accident Prevention Associa=
tion in such educational programs, and will
follow suit with other representative groups
as the need arises.

An examination of bill S-22: The associa-
tion respectfully submits that certain of the
provisions of the Bill require clarification and
modification. These are treated in order as
follows:

Section 2(a) Interpretation (Page 1): The
interpretation “advertise” implies that dispo-
sition of any kind would be prohibited. The
association recommends that such disposition
be specifically worded to imply disposition to
the general public so as not to be confused
with disposition as garbage or waste.

Section 4, Inspectors (Page 2): The associa-
tion notes that there is no provision in the
Bill for the qualification of Inspectors and
suggests that this is an important matter
which should not be overlooked. Inspectors
designated by the Minister should be “duly
qualified” for their responsibility, and the
association submits that these words “duly
qualified” be included in the Act.

Section 5, Search, Seizure and Forfeiture
(Page 2): The association submits that there
should be clarification of the powers of
inspectors. These should be clearly delineated
in the regulations and should not be too
broad. Search, seizure and forfeiture are seri-
ous, discretionary matters and could cause
significant damage to reputation, particularly
if unwarranted or improperly handled.

Schedule, Part II (Page 8): (a) Based on
the condition that those household products
noted will be prohibited from sale unless
otherwise authorized by regulation, the
association is concerned with the inclusion of
non-hazardous products. The association sub-
mits that the product examples listed in Part
II of the Schedule be deleted and that refer-
ence therein be limited to hazardous products
based on those described in the association’s
labelling code. This, the association feels,
would be fully compatible with the intent of
the bill.

(b) The association is naturally concerned
with the question of whether these products
will be banned from sale pending publishing
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of the regulations. It feels that clarification of
this matter is necessary and assumes that
such is not the intention of the Bill.

(¢) The association notes the designation of
products by their content of certain chemi-
cals. It submits that the wording should be
amended to clearly point out that the content
refers to “hazardous levels” of the chemicals
indicated.

(d) The bill does not specify that hazardous
Substances will be defined in the regulations
according to their toxicity, flammability or
corrosiveness. The association submits that
they should be defined in this manner on the
basis of an examination of biological hazards.

Participation of the Association in the
Preparation of Regulations: The association
advises of its willingness to assist in the
establishment of equitable regulations under
Bill'S-22,

Based on its past and present working
relationship with the Food and Drug Direc-
torate it feels that it has a valuable back-
ground and is a valuable source of technical
data which will allow it to contribute signifi-
cantly to this task.

Mr. Chairman and honourable senators,
this ends the written portion of our submis-
sion, but in summary, I would like to empha-
Size the following key points:

We in the Canadian Manufacturers of
Chemical Specialties Association are in com-
blete accord with what we understand the
intent of the bill to be, namely:

(1) To prohibit the sale and advertising of
certain hazardous articles and substances.

(2) To prescribe conditions and labelling
safeguards under which wuseful household
Products, although hazardous if misused, may
be advertised and sold.

We are concerned however that certain
sections of the bill as presently written do
not appear to be entirely consistent with the
intent. These are as follows:

(1) Section 3, page 2—The prohibitive na-
of this section appears to be unduly severe.
This suggests to us that most household
chemical products would be prohibited from
sale until such time as a permissive list is
bublished. We question whether this is con-
sistent with the stated intent of the bill.

(2) Part II of the Schedule on page 8 of the
bill is not limited to hazardous products
because products with any amount of chlo-
rine, alkali, acid, etc., are included. As writ-
ten therefore many mnon-hazardous products
Would fall within the requirements of the

bill, For example, if taken to the extreme,
water sold by municipalities for household
use would be prohibited because of chlorine
content. You will agree this is certainly not
consistent with the intent of the bill.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the oppor-
tunity afforded our association to appear here
this morning.

The Chairman: Are there any questions
which anyone wishes to ask Mr. Copeland? If
not, thank you very much, Mr. Copeland.

Honourable senators, we have now the
delegation from the Canadian Paint Manu-
facturers Association. Mr. J. M. Coyne, Q.C.,
parliamentary agent, is here representing
them. Do you wish to speak on behalf of the
association, Mr. Coynz?

Mr. J. M. Coyne, Q.C., Parliamentary
Agent, Canadian Paint Manufacturers As-
sociation: No, Mr. Chairman, I am appearing
with my colleagues. Mr. O’Neill is appearing
for the association. There are present
Mr. Roger Lamontagne, President of the
Association; Mr. Eric Barry, Executive Vice-
President of the Association; and Mr. M. R.
Feeley, a senior technician of Canadian Indus-
tries Limited.

It is proposed that Mr. Barry speak to the
brief.

The Chairman: Has the brief been filed?

Mr. Eric Barry, Executiive Vice-President,
Canadian Paint Manufaciurers Association:

Yes, Mr. Chairman, it has.

Mr. Coyne: Mr. Chairman, I hope that
copies of it have been distributed.

The Chairman: Yes, they have. Mr. Barry?

Mr., Barry: Mr. Chairman, honourable
senators, this submission is made on behalf
of the paint manufacturer members of the
Association. A list of these companies is
appended.

QOur concern is with Part I of Bill S-22 and
specifically with the products listed in para-
graphs 2 and 3 of Part I of the Schedule.
These are:

2. Furniture, toys and other articles
intended for children, painted with a
paint containing lead in excess of 0.1
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